"ORIGINAL ~ RECEIVED

JUL 15 2013

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT HEALTH FACILITIES &

SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION /. - 04
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project ldentification

Facility Name: VHS-Westlake Hospital

Street Address: 1225 Lake Street

City and Zip Code: Melrose Park, IL 60160 '

County: Cook Health Service Area Vil Health Planning Area:  A-06

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Tenet Healthcare Corporation

Address: 1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1400 Dallas, TX 75202
Name of Registered Agent: 1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1400 Dallas, TX 75202
Name of Chief Executive Officer: Trevor Fetter

CEO Address:

Telephone Number: 469/893-2000

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

] Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
X For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Jacob M. Axel ]
Title: President ]
Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.
Address: 675North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 6067
Telephone Number: 847/776-7101
| E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com
Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Honey Jacobs Skinner

Title: Partner

Company Name: Sidley & Austin

Address: 1_South Dearborn Chicago, IL 60603
Telephone Number: 312/853-7577

E-mail Address: mskinner@sidiey.com

Fax Number: 312/853-7036




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: VHS-Westlake Hospital
Street Address: 1225 Lake Street
City and Zip Code: Melrose Park, IL 60160 '
| County: Cook Health Service Area )il Health Planning Area:  A-06

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: VHS Westlake Hospital, Inc.

Address: 1225 Lake Street Melrose Park, IL 60160
- ‘Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer:  Joan Ormsby, Interim CEO

CEOQ Address: 1225 Lake Street Melrose Park, IL 60160

Telephone Number: . 708/938-7201

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

[l Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
X For-profit Corporation [l Governmental
O] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 6067
Telephone Number: 847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847{776-7004

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Honey Jacobs Skinner

Title: Partner

Company Name: Sidiey & Austin

Address: 1 South Dearborn Chicago, IL 60603
Telephone Number: 312/853-7577

E-mail Address: mskinner@sidley.com

Fax Number: 312/853-7036




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW B_OARD.
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: VHS-Westlake Hospital

Street Address: 1225 Lake Street

City and Zip Code: Melrose Park, IL 60160

County: Cook Health Service Area Vii Health Planning Area:  A-06

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Vanguard Health Systems, Inc.

Address: 20 Burton Hills Blvd. Suite 100 Nashville, TN 37215

Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer:  Charles N. Martin, Jr.

CEOQ Address: ' 20 Burton Hills Blvd. Suite 100 Nashville, TN 37215
Telephone Number: 61/665-6000

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

] Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
X For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ]

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lilinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Other

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Jacob M. Axel
Title: President
Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.
Address: 675North Court Suite 210 Palatine, Il 6067
| Telephone Number; 847/776-7101
E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com
Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Honey Jacobs Skinner

Title: . Partner

Company Name: Sidiey & Austin

Address: 1 South Dearborn Chicago, IL 60603
Telephone Number: 312/853-7577

E-mail Address: mskinner@sidley.com

Fax Number: 312/853-7036

=




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: Joan Ormsby

Title: Interim Chief Executive Officer

Company Name: VHS Westlake Hospital

Address: 1225 Lake Street Melrose Park, IL 60160
Telephone Number: 708/938-7201

E-mail Address: jormsby@WestSubMC.com

Fax Number: 708/938-7974

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: VHS Westlake Hospital, Inc.
Address of Site Owner: 1225 Lake Street Melrose Park, IL 60160

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 1225 Lake Street Melrose Park, IL 60160
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor’s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease or a lease
s

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

" Exact Legal Name: VHS Westlake Hospital, Inc.

Address: 1225 Lake Street Melrose Park, IL 60160

] Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

X For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship | Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownershl

Provide {for each co-applicant) an orgamzat;onal chart containing the name and relatlonshlp of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any

financial contribution.




Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project compiies with the

requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2005-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

[Refer to application instructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

i Prqserv_at' n Act.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b)]
Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:

Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only.]
[J Part 1120 Not Applicable
[J category A Project

X Category B Project
[J DHS or DVA Project

O Substantive

X Non-substantive




2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

Vanguard Health Systems, Inc. (“Vanguard”), through various subsidiaries, owns, among
other assets, four Illinois Hospitals:
e VHS —West Suburban Medical Center
e VHS-Westlake Hospital
e VHS-MacNeal Hospital
e VHS-Weiss Memorial Hospital

On June 24, 2013, Vanguard entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger to sell 100%
of its stock (by way of merger) to Tenet Healthcare Corporation (“Tenet”). Vanguard, through
various subsidiaries, currently owns hospitals in five states, and Illinois is the state with
Vanguard’s fewest holdings. The four Illinois hospitals, however, in addition to serving
numerous neighborhoods and communities in metropolitan Chicago, employ over 5,300 area
residents.

Both Vanguard and Tenet are publicly-traded companies, with shares traded on the New
York Stock Exchange. The proposed stock acquisition will result in a change of control at the
parent level of the hospitals—six corporate levels “above” (see ATTACHMENT 4) the hospitals.
Vanguard will continue to have operational responsibility for each of the Illinois hospitals.

As a result of the merger, Tenet will assume all of Vanguard’s indebtedness, liabilities
and other obligations relating to the conduct of business of Vanguard’s hospitals. Following the
closing of the proposed transaction, Vanguard will operate as a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Tenet, with Tenet having ultimate “control” over the hospitals, per the Illinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board’s definition. There will be no change to the licensees of the Illinois

hospitals.

This is a “non-substantive” project, with no new/replacement facility or IDPH-identified
category of service being proposed, and no IDPH-identified categories of service being
“discontinued” through this application.




Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modernization Contracts

Stock Acquisition

$57,634,837

Assumed Debt*

$80,048,385

Consulting and Other Fees

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net interest Expense During Construction (project
related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding
land) :

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

$137,683,222

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Cash and Securities

$57,634,837

Assumed Debt*

$80,048,385

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

$137,683,222

*assumed Vanguard debt will not be held at the hospital level
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project []Yes X No
Purchase Price: $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
[] Yes X No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target

utilization specified in Part 1100.
not applicable, a subsidiary of Vanguard will continue to operate the hospital

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $

Project Status and ‘Corh'pletion'-Schedul'es
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

X None or not applicable [] Preliminary

[ Schematics [ | Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): __ December 31, 2013*_

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

Project obligation will occur after permit issuance.

State AgencLSubmittaIs'

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
X Cancer Registry

X APORS
X All formal document requests.such as IDPH Questionnaires.and Annual Bed Reports been

submitted

X All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being

deemed incomplete.

*The national merger transaction is anticipated to occur well before this date. However, due to
reporting requirements in Illinois as well as other states, the December 31, 2013 date is ident-
ified in this application for “completion” purposes.
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Cost Space Requirements not applicable

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area’s portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose_lc_ih':'ltt)tlgl. Gross Square Feet

New Vacated

e | A
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Aslis Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL




Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the

application being deemed incomplete.

totals for each bed service.

FACILITY NAME: VHS-Westlake Hospital

CITY: Melrose Park

REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: January 1, 2012 to: December 31, 2012

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 111 3,_677 14,647 None 111

Obstetrics 24 1,079 2,207 None 24

Pediatrics 5 172 613 None 5

Intensive Care 12 466 2,461 None 12

Comprehensive Physical _

Rehabilitation 40 383 4,592 None 40

Acute/Chronic Mental lliness 33 850 10,327 None 33

Neonatal intensive Care

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other ((identify)

TOTALS: 225 6,627 34,847 None 225

/O




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of TENET HEALTHCARE CORPORATION*
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herejn, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief/ The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required

foﬁrtl:%phcatlon is senNt herewith or will byn request.

ST?’NWRE’ ~— £ SIGNATURE

Audrey T. Andrews Paul A. Castanon

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

SVP and General Counsel VP, Deputy General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization; Notarization:

Subscribed and swi fore me Subscribed and sworn to bgfore me

this day of g this_&7 _ day of 0/3

L

Signejure of Notary Signature”of Notary
SO, KATHLEEN M. KENNEDY ‘© T

Seal §*\ :": Notary Public, State of Texas { 5;?3‘ R ':f, NogéLHA-EEI’:‘cMSt,a(tEg':fEIT)Jan |
5?’,,,; .:,5 My Commission Expires 2‘—,0‘, o My Commission Expires

I,f,%“\\\ Sepfembef 30, 2015 %, .f‘o'“‘\:"\‘ SGDtembe' 30 2015
*Insert EXACT e amme o e appeam— e




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of _VHS WESTLAKE HOSPITAL, INC.___ *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

il

SIGNATURE / SIGNATURE
rugs H ey Delovvan T M eLoriress
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Lenve b biuspeor  Senier Vice President
INTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworp.tp before me Subscrj 4 ed and sworp.tp before me
this day of ZWH am ﬁ this 0] day of Eb aﬂl?z
YA"AA" I 3

© applicant
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CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of VANGUARD HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC._*
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

E%ATURE ; ; SIGNATURE

amez K Sparowe  Depsran T. Melomuieic

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Ereamve Viee ﬁf?fﬂ?f/fr Semwwf \/( Ce P/“QSI(JW
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TiTLE

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscriped and swo befor Subscgibed and sw 0 before. me
this 4+ day of [5’:1. el&; this day of [

/7




SECTION Il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:
BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

’

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but.not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the heaith care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.




ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;
B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or

entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS

REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

/S




SECTION VI - MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS AND ACQUISITIONS/CHANGES OF
OWNERSHIP

This Section is applicable to projects involving merger, consolidation or acquisition/change of ownership.

NOTE: For all projects involving a change of ownership THE TRANSACTION DOCUMENT must be
submitted with the application for permit. The transaction document must be signed dated and
contain the appropriate contingency language.

A

Criterion 1110.240(b), Impact Statement

Read the criterion and provide an impact statement that contains the following information:

Any change in the number of beds or services currently offered.

Who the operating entity will be.

The reason for the transaction.

Any anticipated additions or reductions in employees now and for the two years following
completion of the transaction.

5. A cost-benefit analysis for the proposed transaction.

PON =~

Criterion 1110.240(c), Access
Read the criterion and provide the following:
1. The current admission policies for the facilities involved in the proposed transaction.
2. The proposed admission policies for the facilities.
3. A letter from the CEO certifying that the admission policies of the facilities involved will
not become more restrictive.

Criterion 1110.240(d), Health Care System
Read the criterion and address the following:
1. Explain what the impact of the proposed transaction will be on the other area providers.
2. List all of the facilities within the applicant’s health care system and provide the following
for each facility. ‘
a. the location (town and street address);
b. the number of beds;
c. alist of services; and
d. the utilization figures for each of those services for the last 12 month period.
3. Provide copies of all present and proposed referral agreements for the facilities involved
in this transaction.
Provide time and distance information for the proposed referrals within the system.
Explain the organization policy regarding the use of the care system providers over area
providers.
Explain how duplication of services within the care system will be resolved.
Indicate what services the proposed project will make available to the community that are

not now available.

oA

NO®

/¢




The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the [atest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

e Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria

Section 1120.130 Financial Viability — Review Criteria

e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIil. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a)
$57,634,837__

b)

<)

d)

e)

9)
_$80,048,385_

Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2} interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

Pledges ~ for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

Gifts and Bequests — verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and the
estimated time table of receipts;

Debt ~ a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (inciuding the debt time period, variable or
permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for any
interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation
of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, inciuding the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions.

Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit

attesting to this intent;

Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project. Assumed debt (see ATTACHMENT 7)

$137,683,222 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

/7




IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

rmation to bg provided

not applicable, funded completely through internal sources

I

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the Iatest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.




X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing
not applicable, funded completely through internal sources

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;
2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is

more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment. ’

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page). '

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B c D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ* | Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (B xE) (G+H)

Contingency

TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

/?




Xil.  Charity Care Information VHS-Westlake Hospital

- Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1.. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the iatest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in lllinois. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44,

CHARITY CARE
2010 2011 2012
Net Patient Revenue $91,289,060 $89,999,234 " $95,763,808
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $5,279,333 $3,507,209 $4,183,415
Cost of Charity Care $922,480 | - $1,048,655 $842,958




Xll.  Charity Care Information VHS-West Suburban Medical Center

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in lflinois. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility’s projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
2010 2011 2012
Net Patient Revenue $183,522,653 $159,632,992 $163,459,975
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $12,217,704 $11,739,610 $6,676,019
Cost of Charity Care $2,444,614 $3,127,248 $1,289,807

ey



Xll.  Charity Care Information VHS-MacNeal Hospital

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in lllinois. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
2010 2011 2012
Net Patient Revenue $244,442 965 $248,332,243 $249,655,296
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $9,341,676 $9,741,520 $9,593,585
Cost of Charity Care $2,152,107 $2,244 223 $1,683,674

L2




Xll.  Charity Care Information VHS-Weiss Memorial Hospital

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects. . —’

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the iatest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in lllinois. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
2010 2011 2012
Net Patient Revenue $135,931,480 $142,160,025 $135,026,260
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $6,534,080 $6,391,892 $7,215,458
Cost of Charity Care $1,739,141 $1,689,488 $1,450,380




File Number 6878-488-3

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

TENET HEALTHCARE CORPORATION, INCORPORATED IN NEVADA AND LICENSED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THIS STATE ON JULY 01, 2013, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE
RELATING TO THE PAYMENT OF FRANCHISE TAXES, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A
FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT
BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 1ST
day of JULY A.D. 2013

\‘ . s /
N q 3 ‘A,“.‘.‘:' i Vi .
Wl R Q\ \ o
Authentication #: 1318202178 M

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 6704-412-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Hlinots, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of
Business Services. I certify that

VHS WESTLAKE HOSPITAL, INC., INCORPORATED IN-DELAWARE AND LICENSED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THIS STATE ON MARCH 04, 2010, APPEARS TO HAVE
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF
THIS STATE RELATING TO THE PAYMENT OF FRANCHISE TAXES, AND AS OF THIS
DATE, IS A FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Ilinois, this 11TH

dayof  APRIL A.D. 2013
e ce Wn s
Authentication #: 1310101903 .
Verify at www.cyberdriveillinois.com SECRETARY OF SIATATTACHMENT 1

AL




 File Number 6402-314-4

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greetmg |

1, ]esse thte, Secretary of State of the State of Illznozs do
~ hereby certify that

VANGUARD HEALTH SYSTEMS INC,, IN CORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED
TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THIS STATE ON FEBRUARY 02, 2005; APPEARS TO HAVE -
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF .
THIS STATE RELATING TO THE PAYMENT OF FRANCHISE TAXES, AND AS OF THIS
DATE, IS A FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Wher eof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affzxed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH o
dayof APRIL A.D,__ 2013

Authentication Tf 1 31 1301992
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VHS WESTLAKE HOSPITAL, INC.

Form of Entity:

Date of Organization:
Tax ID No.
Consolidated Subsidiaries:

Registered Agent and Office:

Qualifications (Date):
Nature of Business:

Fictitious/Assumed/DBA Names:

Trade/Service Marks:
Previous Names (date of change):

Status:

Capitalization and Holdings:
Par Value of Shares:
Shares Authorized:
Shares Issued:
Shareholder(s):

Management:
Directors:
Deborah W. Larios
Deborah T. McCormick
James H. Spalding

Officers:

Charles N. Martin, Jr.
Mark R. Montoney, M.D.
Joseph D. Moore
Bradley A. Perkins

Delaware Corporation [Seal] Y
Delaware Control No. 4793542

March 4, 2010
27-2071437
None

National Registered Agents, Inc.
160 Greentree Drive

Suite 101

Dover, DE 19904

Mlinois (March 4, 2010)
To own and operate Westlake Hospital

(The) Chicago Center for Bariatric Surgery (IL)
Joint Academy (IL)

Unity Health Westlake Hospital (IL)

Westlake Health Associates (IL)

Westlake Hospital (IL)

Vanguard Westlake Hospital (IL)

None
None

Active

Common Stock, $.01 par value

100,000

1,000

Vanguard Health Financial Company, LLC

President & CEO

Executive Vice President & Chief Medical Officer

Executive Vice President

Executive Vice President-Strategy & Innovation
& Chief Transformation Officer

ATTACHMENT 2
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Timothy M. Petrikin
Keith B. Pitts
Phillip W. Roe
James H. Spalding
Alan G. Thomas

Kelvin M. Ault

Carol A. Bailey

Scott Blanchette
Bruce F. Chafin
William T. Foley
Larry Lee Fultz
Deborah T. McCormick
Harold H. Pilgrim, IIT
Sunil M. Somaney
Gary D. Willis
Harold K. Bandy
Richard W. Brasher

Devin C. Carty
Officer

M.E. Cleary

John J. Faldetta
Secretary

Pamela R. Farrell

John M. Geer

Dennis K. Jacobs

Robert F. Jay

G. Bryan Jones

Deborah W. Larios
Secretary

John R. McCaslin

Elizabeth B. Minkoff
Secretary

Shannon E. Pinkston
Secretary

Ronald L. Rosenberger

Davis W. Turner
Secretary

Michael Weaver

Herman Williams, M.D.

Executive Vice President-Ambulatory Care Services
Executive Vice President

Executive Vice President, CFO & Treasurer

Executive Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary
Executive Vice President-Operations Finance

Executive Vice President & COO

Senior Vice President-Tax

Senior Vice President-Reimbursement

Senior Vice President & Chief Information Officer

Senior Vice President-Compliance & Ethics

Senior Vice President-Operations

Senior Vice President & Chief Human Resources Officer
Senior Vice President, Assistant General Counsel & Assistant Secretary
Senior Vice President & Chief Development Officer

Senior Vice President-Business Office Services

Senior Vice President, Controller & Chief Accounting Officer
Vice President-Information Technology

Vice President-Risk Management _

Vice President-Operations & CEO of Westlake Hospital

Vice President-Culture & Chief Marketing & Experience

Vice President-Regional Financial Operations Controller
Vice President, Assistant General Counsel & Assistant

Vice President-Health Information Management

Vice President-Development

Vice President-Facilities Development

Vice President-Development

Vice President-Financial Reporting

Vice President, Assistant General Counsel & Assistant

Vice President-Internal Audit l
Vice President, Assistant General Counsel & Assistant

Vice President, Assistant General Counsel & Assistant

Vice President-Development
Vice President, Assistant General Counsel & Assistant

Vice President-Development
Vice President-Medical Affairs
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Securities Ownership of Certain Shareholders

Based on reports filed with the SEC, each of the following entities owns more than 5% of Tenet
outstanding common stock. Tenet knows of no other entity or person that beneficially owns more than
5% of its outstanding common stock.

Percent of Class
Number of Shares as of

Name and Address Beneficially Owned September 7, 2011

Fraﬂkiiﬁ Mutual 'Adwsers, LLC 30,574,641(2 7.00%
101 John F. Kennedy Parkway
Short Hilts, NJ 07078-2789

The Vanguard Group, Inc.
100 Vanguard Blvd.
__Malv

28,170,815(4 6.48%

\ NEW. K,

Glenview Capital Management, LLC 22,405,900(6 5.46%
767 Fifth Avenue, 44" Floor _

. New York, NY 10153

(1) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2012 by FMR LLC, on behalf of itself
and its named subsidiaries and affiliates, as of December 31, 2011. Fidelity Management &
Research Company (“Fidelity”), a wholly owned subsidiary of FMR LLC and a registered investment
advisor to various investment companies, is described as the beneficial owner of 40,140,719 of the
shares indicated above, or 9.107% as of December 31, 2011. The number of shares owned by the
investment companies and indicated above includes 6,410,255 shares of common stock resulting
from the assumed conversion of 45,000 shares of our 7.00% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock
at a rate of 142.4501 shares of common stock for each share of preferred stock. The group
collectively reported sole voting power with respect to 285,011 of the shares indicated above and sole
investment power with respect to all of the shares indicated above. Edward C. Johnson 3d, through
his control of Fidelity, has sole voting power with regard to 139,767 of the shares indicated above and
sole investment power with regard to 40,280,486 of the shares indicated above.

(2) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 6, 2012 by Franklin Mutual Advisers,
LLC (“Franklin”), on behalf of itself and its named subsidiaries and affiliates, as of
December 31, 2011. Franklin reported sole voting and investment power with respect to all of the
shares indicated above.

(3) Based on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC by Harris Associates L.P. (“Harris”) on February 14,
2012, along with its general partner Harris Associates, Inc. (“HAI"), as of December 30, 2011. Harris
and HAI reported sole voting and investment power with respect to all of the shares indicated above.

(4) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 9, 2012 by The Vanguard Group, Inc.
(*Vanguard”), on behalf of itself and its named subsidiaries and affiliates, as of December 31, 2011.
The group reported sole voting power with respect to 592,789 of the shares indicated above, sole
investment power with respect to 27,578,026 of the shares indicated above and shared investment
power with respect to 592,789 of the shares indicated above.
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PROJECT COSTS AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

Stock Acquisition:
Tenet Healthcare Corporation (“Tenet”) is acquiring 100% of the stock of Vanguard Health |

Systems, Inc., (“Vanguard”) for $1.8B in cash, and as a consequence of the acquisition will
assume Vanguard’s outstanding debt, as discussed below. The applicant has confirmed that its
most recent audited financial statements confirmed that it had cash or equivalents in excess of
the imputed purchase price of the lllinois hospitals being acquired in this stock acquisition. A
total of 7,027 beds are located in the Vanguard hospitals, system-wide. As a result, $256,155 has
been allocated to each bed located in a Vanguard hospital ($1.8B /7,027 = $256,155).

Assumption of Vanguard Debt:
Tenet will assume responsibility for $2.5B in outstanding Vanguard debt. This debt will not be

held at the individual hospital level. However, and consistent with technical guidance provided
by IDPH staff, for purposes of the Illinois CON applications, a portion of that debt will be
attributed to each of the Illinois hospitals. Consistent with the methodology discussed above,
the debt to be assumed by Tenet is allocated at the rate of $355,771 per bed ($2,500,000,000 /

7,027 = $355,771).
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| AWERICAN GSTEOPATHIC ASSOCIATION

BUREAU OF HEALTHCARE FACILITIES ACCREDITATION
HEALTHCARE FACILITIES ACCREDITATION PROGRAM

142 E. Ontario Street, Chicago, IL 60611-2864 .. 3122028258 | 800-621-1773 X 8258

March 2, 2011

Patricia Shehorn

Chief Executive Officer
Westlake Hospital

1225 West Lake Street
Melrose Park, IL 60160

Dear Ms Shehorn :

The American Osteopathic Association's Bureau of Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Executive Committee, at its meeting
on February 22, 2011 reviewed the recertification survey report and found all Medicare conditions have been met. Your
facility has been granted Full Accreditation with Interim Report, with resurvey within 3 years and AOA/HFAP
tecommends continued deemed status.

Westlake Hospital Program: Acute Care Hospital

1225 West Lake Street CCN # 140240
Melrose Park, 1L 60160 HFAP ID: 156993

Survey Dates: 10/4/2010 — 10/6/2010
Effective Date of Accreditation: 12/21/2010 - 12/21/2013

Caondition Level Deficiencies: None
(Use crosswalk and CER citiations, if applicable):

In reviewing your report, the Executive Committee made the observations that are contained on the enclosed sheets and
requires that in Iriterim Report by your facility, indicating continued progress made toward correction of cited deficiencies, be
received in the AOA Division of Healthcare Facilities Accreditation prior to May 1, 2011

Sincerely,

f»fp LK,

George A. Reuther
Secretary

GAR/pmh

C: Laura Weber, Health Insurance Specialist, CMS
Region V, CMS

TREATING OUR FAMILY AND YOURS . ' . v slncpnfu( ory | do-an iné,crg

" J:\Executive Committee- Pendlng\February 2011\Westlake HOSpltal #156993 TR\Westlake Hospital. IL. CCN# 140240. hasp. doc y
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HOSPITALS OWNED OR LEASED BY TENET

The following table lists, by state, the hospitals owned or leased and operated by our subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2012:

Licensed
Hospital Location Beds Status
Alabama '
Brookw0ood Medical CEnter.........cociunriceirirrerienneinereennansnsaessasssesconsesssessisens Birmingham 631 Owned
California
Desert Regional Medical Center(1) .......coovvvrecrnnioreinininrrenesnrrenens e Palm Springs 387 Leased
Doctors Hospital of MAnECa ...........ccccoimeveciecrmmrceronmeserassatsesessnesiesseacsresesseseosne Manteca 73 Owned
Doctors Medical CEnter ........ouveeiireeiiecnieerrenenenrne st s esssesmaensessasesessens Modesto 461 Owned
Fountain Valley Regional Hospital & Medical Center ...........cceerrvecrcvcmrernerennne Fountain Valley 400 Owned
John F. Kennedy Memorial HOSPItal.......cc..cocooerurcrireeeniennnninnneeecanceneneensenanes Indio 156 Owned
Lakewood Regional Medical CEnter ...........ocovurmrrvcrncecmrimmninssnseneecneneeececens Lakewood 172 Owned
Los Alamitos MediCal CEnter ........cur.vuvureecammereceesirsisasrssssssassessrassssssessss Los Alamitos 167 Owned
Placentia Linda Hospital .... rer et h et bens Placentia 114 Owned
San Ramon Regional Medical Center(2)........... et r e ra st eneaner st nten San Ramon 123 Owned
Sierra Vista Regional Medical Center ...........oorurrerevenenuntreserresceeessscseseeeens San Luis Obispo 164 Owned
Twin Cities Community HOSPIAL ..........ccvioreenienenrcnrecriiienrcs s isesessiosssesssss s “Templeton 122 Owned
Florida
Coral Gables HOSPItal .........cocecvrmerinenceoervcnresereneceeraseceranianns rteresrarereierersaseneas Coral Gables 245 Owned
Delray Medical Center .........ournmrernirrriraenisinesensesessaessssnseseserensssostosasssees Delray Beach 493 Owned
Good Samaritan Medical CENtET............cererreririerneresesercanionseecssaessesssssssnsnnns West Palm Beach 333 Owned
Hialeah Hospital...........cccoocerinune. : Hialeah 378 Owned
North Shore Medical Center Miami 357 Owned
North Shore Medical Center — FMC Campus ...........covuveeerererececcneisencasiecsnnens Lauderdale Lakes 459 Owned
Palm Beach Gardens Medical Center(3) .....uveomeirnmensrsnsissossossressreecsnenes Palm Beach Gardens 199 Leased
Palmetto General Hospital ...................... ... Hialeah 360 Owned
Saint Mary’s Medical Center ...........o.ovoureieeeeinsnnrnicesmsesnanessensseconineses ... West Palm Beach 464 Owned
West Boca Medical Center......... o vemvioercceerireeceertscnesresss s eess e sesconensesens Boca Raton 195 Owned
Georgia
Atlanta Medical CENIEL .......ovovecseureeeeercerireener oo stesseseesestssenseesscssesseenenes Atlanta 460 Owned
North Fulton Regional Hospital(3) ........ccocvrviriemrenesmienireeiicseosicme s ... Roswell 202 Leased
South Fulton Medical Center(4) ........cvuerveererureeereenrereenenn. ...  East Point 338 Owned
Spalding Regional Hospital v Griffin 160 Owned
Sylvan Grove Hospital(5) .....cceceiieieeerinreinreieresie e seestes e s s nsessnaeeiseonasens Jackson 25 Leased
Missouri
Des Peres HOSPItal. ....ccocvveeimiicrinierir e srnsssessscesne feessasssnesemsesessaseranes St. Louis 143 Owned
St. Louis University HOSPital.......ccoocvirrmeerericnencsecreienmnrss st snesssseseseses St. Louis 356 Owned
North Carolina
Central Caroling HOSPItal........ccvrmeueiiiriecrerrecrne e senreesesseecssessssssssssensaenes Sanford 137 Owned
Frye Regional Medical Center(3) ........cccoveorevieccnsencctieninsarnsesnerasssnsseesinsacees Hickory 355 Leased
Pennsylvania
Hahnemann University Hospital st bt s s s e s eneanesna ... Philadelphia 496 Owned
St. Christopher’s Hospital for Children ..........ccouveriecenesunienrsessserseceeeseserenee Philadelphia 189 Owned
South Carolina -
Coastal Carolina Hospital.............. . e tese ettt e et a s eneene Hardeeville 41 Owned
East Cooper Medical CEnter ..........wumieereniircreeeseseresstnsssesessssssnsnessensesnsseas Mount Pleasant 140 Owned
Hilton Head Hospital...... etreeaebe e as s rsranrens Hilton Head 93 Owned
Piedmont Medical CeIEr........ccvwrummiennereeesieeieesessasnassnssessessssssssissasesens Rock Hill 288 Owned
Tennessee
Saint Francis Hospital .......ccceevrriiearineninecneescninees Memphis 519 Owned
Saint Francis Hospital — Bartlett Bartlett 196 Owned
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- Texas

2

.

-4
6]
LU pamupatcs in the Medicare and Medicaid programs by otherwise meeting the Medicare Conditions of Participation, The aurrent lease term for this facility

©
o)

' Centennial Medlcal Center : _ ; reeresnes tseusere  FrisSco S 118"~ Owned
+ Cypress Fairbanks Medical CERter .: ... sl aimisiesiemmimsesrivns: .. Houston’ : 181 - Owned -

" Doctors Hospital at White Rock Lake........c..... ; S Dallas : 218 Owned

Houston Northwest Medical Center(6)... vvin e ... Houston - 430 Owned

" Lake Pointe Medical Center(7).. Cresseapeisnraeiss R v . ROWett : 112 Owned

.- Nacogdoches Medical Center ..............: : e : Nacogdoches . 153 Owned:

Park Plaza Hospital ... ; ; eetcieesssrseosinsnsessss HOUSION _ 444 Owmed:

., Providence Memorial. Hospxtal ' _ : ' El Paso ' 508 Owned

Sierra Medical Center........ - . - ElPaso 351 Owmed

' Sierra Providence East Medical Center ......... : El Paso 110 Owned

' (1) Lease expires in 2027.

In January 2013, we announced that we were creatmn 2 joint venture partership with John Muir Health, a not-for-profit m(egmted system of doctors,

- hespitals and other health care services in the San Francisco Bay area, through which John Muir Health will invest approximately $100 million to acquire a

49% ownership intercst in San Ramon Regional Medical Center.
The current Jease terms for Palm Beach Gardens Medical Center, North Fulton Regional Hospital and Frye Regional Medical Center expire in
February 2014, but may be renewed thmugh at [east February 2039, in each case subjeet to certain canditions contained in the respective feases. In

February 2013, we exercised out options under the leases io purchase the Hospitals.

Effective. Ianuary 1,2013, South Fulion Medical Center was consolidated with Atlanta Medical Center and renamed Adanta Medical Center — South
Campus.

Designated by the Ccncnrs for Medicaré and Medicaid Servives (“CMS”) as a crifical access hospital. Although it has not sought to be accredited, the hospntal_
expires in December 2016, but tmay be renewed thirough December 2046, subject to certain conditioris contained in the lease.

Owned by a limited Hability campany in which a Tenet subsidiary owned an 86.61% iriterest at December 31, 2012 and is the managing member.
Owuéd by a limited liability company in which a Tenet subsidiary owned a 94.59% interest at December 31, 2012 and is the managing member:

As of December 31, 2012, the Jargest concentrations of licensed beds in our hospitals were in Florida (26.4%),

Texas (19.9%) and California (17. 7%) Strong concentrations of hospital beds within market areas help us contract more

successfully with managed care payers; reduce management, marketing and other expenses, and more efficiently utilize resources:

: '_ However, these concentrations increase the risk that, should any adverse economic, regulatory, environmental or other condition

occur in these areas, our overall business, financial oondmon results of operations or cash flows could be materially adversely
affected. : :

The followmg table presents the mumber of bospitals operated by our subsidiaries, a5 well as the total number of licensed

beds at those facilities, at December 31 20]2 2011 and 2010:.

December 31,
i L ) 2012 - 2011 ) 2010
Total mumber of facilities(1) .......... 49 50 - 50
Total number of licensed beds(?.\ : _ 13,216 13,453 13,428

m
@

Includes all general hospitals and our critical access facility, as well as onc facility at December 31, 20! 1 and 2010 thatis class:f' ed i in discontinued .

operations for financial reporting putposes 4s of December 31, 2012.
Information regatding utilization of licensed beds and otizer operaﬁng statistics can be toundm Ttem 7, Management’s Di ion and Analysis of Financial

_ Condltmn and Rsulls of Operations, of this report :
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Tenet

Paul A. Castanon

Vice President & Deputy General Counsel
Tel: 469-893-6733

Fax: 469-893-7733

paul.castanon@tenethealth.com

July 10, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Illinois Health Facilities
And Services review Board

525 West Jefferson

Springfield, IL. 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

In accordance with Review Criterion 1110.230.b, Background of the Applicant, we are submitting
this letter notifying the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board that:

1. Tenet Healthcare Corporation does not own or operate any licensed health care facilities in
Illinois;,

2. Tenet Health Care Corporation does not have any Adverse Actions against any facility
owned and operated by the applicant during the three (3) year period prior to the filing of this
application; and

3. Tenet Healthcare Corporation authorizes the State Board and Agency access to information
to verify documentation or information submitted in response to the requirements of Review
Criterion 1110.230.bor to obtain any documentation or information which the State Board or
Agency finds pertinent to this application.

If we can in any way provide assistance to your staff regarding these assurances or any other issue
relative to this application, please do not hesitate to call me.

Sincerely,

Paul A. Castanon
VP, Deputy General Counsel

PAC/sms

Tenet Healthcare Corporation ® Headquarters Office
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1400 ¢ Dallas, TX 75202 ¢ tenethealth.com
Mailing Address: P.0. Box 139036.¢ Dallas, TX 75313:9036. ATTACHMENT 11
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PURPOSE OF PROJECT

The project 1s limited to a change of ownership/control of one of four Illinois hospitals
currently owned by subsidiaries of Vanguard Health Systems, Inc. (“Vanguard”), with the
Illinois acquisitions representing a fraction of the hospitals being acquired by subsidiaries of
Tenet Healthcare Corporation (“Tenet”) as part of the acquisition by merger of 100% of
Vanguard’s stock. Similar CON applications were concurrently filed, addressing the change of
ownership of each of the other three Vanguard hospitals in Illinois. The continued operation of
VHS-Westlake'Hospital will improve the well-being of the communities served by the hospital,
as the hospital has done sitice its opening; and the merger of Vanguard and Tenet will enhance

the hospitals” ability to serve their surrounding communities.

The following table, taken from hospital discharge data, presents the hospital’s inpatient
origin, for the 12-month period ending May 31, 2013. Each of the eighteen ZIP Code areas
contributing a minimum of 1.0% of the hospital’s admissions during that period are identified.
As documented in the inpatient origin analysis presented below, VHS-Westlake Hospital
primarily serves the near western suburbs of Chicago, and the far west-central part of Chicago.

No changes in patient origin are anticipated as a result of the proposed change of ownership.

ATTACHMENT 12
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Zip
60153
60160
60104
60164
60644
60707
60131
60162
60651
60165
60639
60624
60155
60130
60402
60302
60634
60804

City
Maywood
Melrose Park
Bellwood
Melrose Park
Chicago
Elmwood Park
Franklin Park
Hillside
Chicago
Stone Park
Chicago
Chicago
Broadview
Forest Park
Berwyn
Oak Park
Chicago
Cicero
other, <1.0%

%
14.0%
13.2%
8.3%
5.8%
4.1%
4.0%
3.2%
2.3%
2.3%
2.1%
2.0%
1.7%
1.4%
1.4%
1.4%
1.3%
1.2%
1.1%
29.2%

Cum. %
14.0%
27.1%
35.4%
41.2%
45.3%
49.4%
52.5%
54.8%
57.1%
59.2%
61.2%
62.9%
64.3%
65.7%
67.1%
68.4%
69.7%
70.8%

100.0%

Due to the limited nature of the proposed project, specific service-related goals are not

applicable to the project, with the exception of the hospital’s continued service to the

surrounding communities.

ATTACHMENT 12



ALTERNATIVES

As noted in the NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION provided in Section I of this application,
the proposed change of ownership of the four Illinois hospitals owned by Vanguard Health
Systems, Inc. (“Vanguard”) is the result of the acquisition by merger of 100% of Vanguard’s
stock by Tenet Healthcare Corporation. This stock acquisition will result in a change to the
hospital’s “ultimate parent”, but will not result in a change in the Vanguard subsidiary that owns
the hospital or holds the IDPH license. This application is being filed to reflect that change in
the ultimate parent/control of the hospital. As a result, there are no alternatives to the proposed

project, which is limited to a change of ownership/control.

ATTACHMENT 13
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MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS, and
ACQUISITIONS/CHANGES OF OWNERSHIP

A. Impact Statement

It is not anticipated that the proposed change of ownership resulting from the acquisition
by merger will have any material impact on the manner in which services are provided at VHS-
Westlake Hospital. No changes to the staffing levels of the hospital, other than those changes
normally associated with the ongoing operations of a hospital are anticipated during the first two
years following the transaction, nor are any changes anticipated in the number of IDPH-approved

beds or the hospital’s IDPH-designated “categories of service”.

The change of ownership is a result of the stock acquisition discussed in this application’s
NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION. The operating entity will continue to be VHS Westlake
Hospital, Inc., and Tenet will honor commitments made by Vanguard in conjunction with

Vanguard’s acquisition of its four Illinois hospitals.

The cost associated with the proposed change of ownership is limited to those costs
identified in ATTACHMENT 7; and the primary benefit of the project is the ongoing operation

of the facility.

B. Access
The proposed change of ownership will not result in any change in accessibility to the

hospital’s services for residents of the area. The hospital will, following the change in control,

ATTACHMENT 19
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operate with the admissions, charity care and financial assistance policies currently in place at

the hospital. Confirmation, as required by review criterion 1110.240(c) is attached.
The admissions, charity care, and financial assistance policies are attached.

Consistent with the current practices of the hospital, services will continue to be provided

to Medicaid recipients.

C. Health Care System

The proposed change of ownership will not have any impact on any other area provider.

Neither Tenet Healthcare Corporation (“Tenet”) nor any of its subsidiaries currently own
or operate any hospitals in Illinois. As noted in this application’s NARRATIVE
DESCRIPTION, four Illinois hospitals are being acquired by subsidiaries of Tenet. The other
three hospitals are:

e VHS-Weiss Memorial Hospital, 4646 N. Marine Drive, Chicago (20.33 mi/36 min)

e VHS-MacNeal Hospital, 3249 S. Oak Park Avenue, Berwyn (7.26 mi/18 min)

e VHS-West Suburban Medical Center, 3 Erie Court, Oak Park (4.08 mi/12 min)

All four of those hospitals are located in the metropolitan Chicago area. Neither Tenet
nor any of its subsidiaries currently own or operate any licensed health care facilities in Illinois.
Certificate of Need applications addressing Tenet’s intended acquisition through its merger with

Vanguard of the three other hospitals identified above have been filed with the IHFSRB.

ATTACHMENT 19
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A table, identifying the IDPH-designated categories of services provided by each of
Vanguard’s currently-owned Illinois hospitals, along with each service’s 2012 utilization is

provided in this ATTACHMENT.

Photoéopies of all patient transfer/referral agreements currently in place at the hospital
are attached. Those agreements will stay in effect following the change in control, and

additional agreements are not anticipated.

Patient transfers and referrals are made by the patient’s physician and family, with no
requirement that transfers or referrals be made to specific facilities. There are currently no
restrictions on the use of other area care providers, and the same will apply following the

proposed change of control.

As part of management’s commitment to address the needs of the communities that the
individual Vanguard hospitals serve, the need to provide redundant clinical services is reviewed
on an ongoing basis. As appropriate for the communities being served and ;[he individual
hospitals, the potential exists (as it does at any hospital) for the consolidation of duplicated

services. Any decision to do so would be made consistent with all IDPH/THFSRB requirements.

VHS-Westlake Hospital is a vital community resource in the western suburbs of Chicago,
is an active participant in community activities, and provides a broad spectrum of community-

related services. As is the case with all hospitals, it is anticipated that VHS-Westlake Hospital’s

ATTACHMENT 19
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role in its community will continue to evolve following the change of control. It is unclear at
this time, however, what additional community services will be provided. A sampling of the

community programs offered by the hospital is attached.
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TeneT

Trevor Fetter

President & Chief Executive Officer
Tel: 469-893-6175

Fax: 469-893-8653

trevor fetter@tenctheatth.com

July 11,2013

Ms. Courtney Avery
Illinois Health Facilities

and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL. 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Pursuant to Review Criterion 1110.240(c), I hereby certify in my capacity as President and
Chief Executive Officer of Tenet Healthcare Corporation (“Tenet”) that, as specified in the
Application for Permit being submitted to the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review

Board:

(i) no reductions in access to care will result from the proposed acquisition by Tenet of
the four Illinois hospitals currently owned by Vanguard Health Systems, Inc. (the
“Vanguard Illinois Hospitals™); and

(ii) following the acquisition, Tenet will not amend the admissions, charity care and

. financial assistance policies currently in place at the Vanguard Illinois Hospitals to
reduce access to care. '

Trevor Fetter

President and CEO

Very truly yours,

Tenet Healthcare Corporation ® Headquarters Office
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1400 # Dallas, TX 75202 » tenethealth.com
Maiting Address: P;O. Box 139036 ¢ Dallas, TX 75313-9036 ATTACHMENT 19

o<




Date: January 24, 2013 Approved By: Neal Somaney

4~ Vanguard

Section: Business Office

HEALTH SYSTEMS
healti, forword  Subsection: Charity Care, Financial Assistance and Billing & Collection
Policies for Uninsured Patients

Policy Procedure No. — PPREVCS801

Effective Date: January 24, 2009 Previous Date:  N/A
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SCOPE:
All Company-affiliated hospitals.

PURPOSE:
This Policy and Procedure is established to provide the operational guidelines. for the Company’s

hospitals ( each a “Hospital” and, collectively, the “Hospitals™) to identify uninsured patients who
are Financially Indigent or Medically Indigent that may qualify for charity care (free care) or
financial assistance, to process patient applications for charity care or financial assistance and to bill
and collect from uninsured patients, including those who qualify as Financially Indigent or Medically

Indigent under this Policy.

POLICY:
L Charity Care or Financial Assistance. The Company’s Hospitals shall provide charity care

(free care) or financial assistance to uninsured patients for their emergency, non-elective care who
qualify for classification as Financially Indigent or Medically Indigent in accordance with the Charity
Care Financial Assistance Process set forth below. The Company’s Hospitals shall adopt a written
policy in conformity with the Company’s Policy and Procedure set forth herein. Charity Care (100%
discounts) under this Policy shall be available for uninsured patients with incomes below 200% of
the Federal Poverty Level (the “Financially Indigent”). 40% to 80% discounts shall be available for
uninsured patients either (1) with income below 500% FPL or (2) with balances due for hospital
services in excess of 50% of their annual income (the “Medially Indigent”). See attached Financial
Assistance Eligibility Guidelines.

2. Billing and Collection Processes for Uninsured _Patients. All uninsured patients receiving
care at the Company’s Hospitals will be treated with respect and in a professional manner before,
during and after receiving care. Each of the Company’s Hospitals should adopt a written policy in
conformity with the Company’s Policy and Procedure set forth herein for its billing and collection
practices in respect of all uninsured patients, including those uninsured patients who qualify for
classification as Financially Indigent or Medically Indigent under this Policy.

ATTACHMENT 19
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PROCEDURE:

A. CHARITY CARE AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROCESS

1. Application. Each Company Hospital will request that each patient applying for
charity care financial assistance complete a Financial Assistance Application Form (Assistance
Application). An example Financial Assistance Application Form is attached hereto. The Assistance
Application allows for the collection of needed information to determine eligibility for financial

assistance.

A. Calculation of Immediate Family Members. Each Hospital will request that
patients requesting charity care verify the number of people in the patient’s household.

1. Adults. In calculating the number of people in an adult patient’s
household, Hospital will include the patient, the patient’s spouse and any
dependents of the patient or the patient’s spouse.

2. Minors. For persons under the age of 18. In calculating the number of
people in a minor patient’s household, Hospital will include the patient, the
patient’s mother, dependents of the patient’s mother, the patient’s father, and
dependents of the patient’s father.

B. Calculation of Income.

1. Adudts. For adults, determine the sum of the total yearly gross income
of the patient and the patient’s spouse (the “Income”). Hospital may consider
other financial assets of the patient and the patient's family (members of
family are as defined in section “Calculation of Immediate Family Members™)
and the patient's or the patient’s family's ability to pay.

2. - Minors. If the patient is a minor, determine the Income from the
patient, the patient’s mother and the patient’s father. Hospital may consider
other financial assets of the patient and the patient's family (members of
family are as defined in section “Calculation of Immediate Family Members”)
and the patient's or the patient’s family's ability to pay.
2. Income Verification. Hospital shall request that the patient verify the Income and
provide the documentation requested as set forth in the Assistance Application. NOTE: Tax Returns
and W-2’s should be collected for year prior to date of admission.
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Date: January 24, 2013

Section: Business Office

heaith. farward  Subsection: Charity Care, Financial Assistance and Billing & Collection
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A.

following mechanisms:

B.

O w

Policies for Uninsured Patients

Policy Procedure No. — PPREVC801

Effective Date: January 24, 2009 Previous Date: ~ N/A

v R

Documentation Verifying Income. Income may be verified through any of the

Tax Returns (Hospital preferred income verification document)

IRS Form W-2

Wage and Earnings Statement

Pay Check Remittance

Social Security

Worker’s Compensation or Unemployment Compensation Determination
Letters

Qualification within the preceding 6 months for governmental assistance
program (including food stamps, CDIC, Medicaid and AFDC)
Telephone verification by the patient’s employer of the patient’s Income
Bank statements, which indicate payroll deposits.

Documentation Unavailable. In cases where the patient is unable to provide

documentation verifying Income, the Hospital may at it’s sole discretion verify the patient’s
Income in either of the following two ways:

L. By having the patient sign the Assistance Application attesting to the
veracity of the Income information provided or

2. Through the written attestation of the Hospital personnel completing
the Assistance Application that the patient verbally verified Hospital’s
calculation of Income.

Note: In all instances where the patient is unable to provide the requested documentation

to_verify Income, Hospital will require that a satisfactory explanation of the reason the patient is

unable to provide the requested documentation be noted on the Financial Assistance Assessment

Form.

C.

Expired Patients. Expired patients may be deemed to have no Income for

purposes of the Hospital’s calculation of Income. Documentation of Income is not required
for expired patients. Income verification is still required for any other family members
(members of family are as defined in section “Calculation of Immediate Family Members”).

D.

Homeless Patients. Homeless patients may be deemed to have no Income for

purposes of the Hospital’s calculation of Income. Documentation of Income is not required

ATTACHMENT 19
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Policies for Uninsured Patients

Policy Procedure No. — PPREVCS801

Effective Date: January 24, 2009 Previous Date: N/A
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for homeless patients. Income verification is still required for any other family members
(members of family are as defined in section “Calculation of Immediate Family Members™)

only if other family information is available.

E. Incarcerated Patients. Incarcerated patients (incarceration verification should
be attempted by Hospital personnel) may be deemed to have no Income for purposes of the
Hospital’s calculation of Income, but only if their medical expenses are not covered by the
governmental entity incarcerating them (ie the Federal Government, the State or a County is
responsible for the care) since in such event they are not uninsured patients. Income
verification is still required for any other family members (members of family are as defined
in section “Calculation of Immediate Family Members™).

F. International Patients. International patients who are uninsured and whose
visit to the Hospital was unscheduled will be deemed to have no Income for purposes of the
Hospital’s calculation of Income. Income verification is, moreover, still required for any
other family members (members of family are as defined in section “Calculation of
Immediate Family Members”) only if other family are United States citizens.

G. Eligibility Cannot be Determined. If and when Hospital personnel cannot
clearly determine eligibility, the Hospital personnel will use best judgment and submit a
memorandum (such memorandum should be the first sheet in the documentation packet)
listing reasons for judgment along with Financial Assistance documentation to appropriate
supervisor. The Hospital Supervisor will then review the memorandum and documentation.
If the Supervisor agrees to approve the eligibility, they will sign Eligibility Determination
form and continue with normal Approval process. If the Supervisor does not approve
eligibility of the patient under this Policy, the Supervisor should sign the submitted
memorandum and return all documentation to Hospital personnel who will note account and
send documentation to the Hospital’s Business Office for filing. If Supervisor disagrees with
hospital personnel’s judgment, Supervisor should state reasons for new judgment and will
return documentation to hospital personnel who will follow either denial process or approval
process as-determined by Supervisor.

H. Classification Pending Income Verification. During the Income Verification
process, while Hospital 1s collecting the information necessary to determine a patient’s
Income, the patient may be treated as a self-pay patient in accordance with Hospital policies.

I

ATTACHMENT 19

#7




Date: January 24, 2013 Approved By: Neal Somaney

Section: Business Office

42 Vanguard

HEALTH SYSTEMS
health. forward  Subsection: Charity Care, Financial Assistance and Billing & Collection
Policies for Uninsured Patients '

Policy Procedure No. — PPREVC801

Effective Date: January 24, 2009 Previous Date:  N/A

" M)
a0
or
0—
mao
o~
cm
awm
W

3. Information Falsification. Falsification of information may result in denial of the
Assistance Application. If, after a patient is granted financial assistance as either Financially
Indigent or Medically Indigent, and Hospital finds material provision(s) of the Assistance
Application to be untrue, the financial assistance may be withdrawn.

4. Request for Additional Information. If adequate documents are not provided,
Hospital will contact the patient and request additional information. If the patient does not comply
with the request within 14 calendar days from the date of the request, such non-compliance will be
considered an automatic denial for financial assistance. A note will be input into Hospital computer
system and any and all paperwork that was completed will be filed according to the date of the denial
note. No further actions will be taken by Hospital personnel. If requested documentation is later
obtained, all filed documentation will be pulled and patient will be reconsidered for Financial

Assistance.

5. Automatic Classification as Financially Indigent. The following is a listing of types
of accounts where Financial Assistance is considered to be automatic and documentation of Income
or a Financial Assistance application is not needed:

Medicaid accounts-Exhausted Days/Benefits

[ ]
o Medicaid spend down accounts
o Medicaid or Medicare Dental denials
o Medicare Replacement accounts with Medicaid as secondary-where Medicare
Replacement plan left patient with responsibility
6. Classification as Financially Indigent. Financially Indigent means an uninsured

person who is accepted for care with no obligation (charity care) or with a discounted obligation to
pay for the services rendered, based on the Hospital Eligibility Criteria.

A. Classification. ~The Hospital may classify as Financially Indigent all
uninsured patients whose income, as determined in accordance with the
Assistance Application, is less than or equal to 200% of the poverty
guidelines updated annually in the Federal Register by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (Federal Poverty
Guidelines).
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B. Acceptance. If Hospital accepts the patient as Financially Indigent, the patient
may be granted charity care or financial assistance discounts in accordance with the attached
Financial Assistance Eligibility Guidelines.

7. Classification as Medically Indigent. Medically Indigent means an wuninsured
patient who does not qualify as Financially Indigent under this policy because the patient’s Income
exceeds 500% of Federal Poverty Guidelines, but who’s medical or hospital bills exceed a specified
percentage of the person’s Income, and who is unable to pay the remaining bill.

A. Initial Assessment. To be considered for classification as a Medically Indigent
patient, the amount owed by the patient on all outstanding accounts after all payments by the
patient must exceed 10% of the patient's Income and the patient must be unable to pay the
remaining bill. If the patient does not meet the Initial Assessment criteria, the patient may
not be classified as Medically Indigent.

- B. Acceptance. The Hospital may also accept a patient as Medically Indigent
when they meet the acceptance criteria set forth below. '

(1) The patient’s bill is greater than 50% of the patient’s Income, calculated
in accordance with the Hospital’s income verification procedures, and the
patient’s Income is greater than 500% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines.
The Hospital will determine the amount of financial assistance granted to
these patient’s in accordance with the attached Financial Assistance
Eligibility Guidelines. '

(2) NOTE: TO QUALIFY AS MEDICALLY INDIGENT, THE PATIENT
MUST BE UNINSURED.

8. Approval Procedures. Hospital will complete a Financial Assistance Eligibility
Determination Form for each patient granted status as Financially Indigent or Medically Indigent.
The approval signature process is as following:

$1 -$2,000 . Director
$2,001 - $10,000 Director and CFO
$10,001 and above Director, CFO and CEO

ATTACHMENT 19

s/




Date: January 24, 2013 Approved By: Neal Somaney

4 Vanguard

Section: Business Office

HEALTH SYSTEMS :
health. forward  Subsection: Charity Care, Financial Assistance and Billing & Collection
Policies for Uninsured Patients

Policy Procedure No. - PPREVCS801

Effective Date: January 24, 2009 Previous Date:  N/A

T
A0
or
0—
mo
o-
cm
AWw
m

n

A. The accounts will be filed according to the date the Financial Assistance
adjustment was entered onto the account.

B. The Eligibility Determination Form allows for the documentation of the
administrative review and approval process utilized by the Hospital to grant financial
assistance. Any change in the Eligibility Determination Form must be approved by the
Director of Patient Financial Services. NOTE: If application is approved, approval
is automatic for all admissions for calendar year on balances that can- be
considered for Financial Assistance.

9. Denial for Financial Assistance. If the Hospital determines that the patient is not
Financially Indigent or Medically Independent under this policy, it shall notify the patient of this
denial in writing. A suggested denial of coverage letter is attached to this policy.

10. Document Retention Procedures. Hospital will maintain documentation sufficient
to identify for each patient qualified as Financially Indigent or Medically Indigent, the patient’s
Income, the method used to verify the patient’s Income, the amount owed by the patient, and the
person who approved granting the patient status as Financially Indigent or Medically Indigent. All
documentation will be forwarded and filed within the Hospital’s Business Office for audit purposes.
Financial Assistance applications and all documentation will be retained within the Hospital’s
Business Office for 1 calendar year. After which, the documents will be boxed and marked as:
Charity Docs, JANUARY YYYY-DECEMBER YYYY and forwarded to the Hospital Warehouse,
where it will then be retained for an additional 6 years before shredding.

11. Reservation of Rights. Tt is the policy of the Company and its Hospitals to reserve
the right to limit or deny financial assistance at the sole discretion of each of its Hospitals.

_ 12. Non-covered Services. Elective and non-emergency services are not covered by this
policy.

B. BILLING AND COLLECTION PRACTICES FOR ALL UNINSURED PATIENTS,
INCLUDING THOSE WHO QUALIFY AS FINANICALLY INDIGENT OR
MEDICALLY INDIGENT UNDER THIS POLICY

1. Fair and Respectful Treatment. Uninsured patients will be treated fairly and
with respect during and after treatment, regardless of their ability to pay.

2. Trained Financial Counselors. All uninsured patients at the Company’s
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hospitals will be provided with financial counseling, including assistance applying for state
and federal health care programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. If not eligible for
governmental assistance, uninsured patients will be informed of and assisted in applying for
charity care and financial assistance under the hospital’s charity care and financial assistance
policy. Financial counselors will attempt to meet with all uninsured patients prior to
discharge from the Company’s hospital. Hospitals should ensure that appropriate staff
members are knowledgeable about the existence of the hospital’s financial assistance
policies. Training should be provided to staff members (i.e., billing office, financial
department, etc.) who directly interact with patients regarding their hospital bills.

3. Additional Invoice Statements or Enclosures. When sending a bill to
uninsured patients, the Hospital should include (a) a statement on the bill or in an enclosure to
the bill that indicates that if the patient meets certain income requirements, the patient may be
eligible for a government-sponsored program or for financial assistance from the Hospital
under its charity care or financial assistance policy; and (b) a statement on the bill or in an
enclosure to the bill that provides the patient a telephone number of a hospital employee or
office from whom or which the patient may obtain information about such financial
assistance policy for patients and how to apply for such assistance. The following statement
on the bill or in an enclosure to the bill complies with the above requirements of this Section
B.3.: “Please note, based on your household income, you may be eligible for Medicaid [Note:
please refer to MediCal for California patients and Arizona’s AHCCCS program for Arizona
patients] or financial assistance from the Hospital. For further information, please contact
our customer service department at (XXX) XXX-XXXX.”

4. Notices. Each of the Company’s hospitals should post notices regarding the
availability of financial assistance to uninsured patients. These notices should be posted in
visible locations throughout the hospital such as admitting/registration, billing office and
emergency department. The notices also should include a contact telephone number that a
patient or family member can call for more information. The following specific language
complies the above notice requirements of this Section B.4.: “For help with your Hospital bill
or Financial Assistance, please call or ask to see our Financial Counselor or call (XXX) XXX-
XXXX (M-F 8:30 am to 4:30 pm).”

5. Liens on Primary Residences. The Company’s hospitals shall not, in
dealing with patients who quality as Financially Indigent or Medically Indigent under this
Policy, place or foreclose liens on primary residences as a means of collecting unpaid hospital
bills. However, as to those patients who qualify as Medically Indigent but have income in
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excess of 500% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines, the Company may place liens on primary
residences as a means of collecting discounted hospital bills, but the Company’s hospitals

may not pursue foreclosure actions in respect of such liens.

6. Garnishments. The Company’s hospitals shall only use garnishments on
Medically Indigent Patients where clearly legal under state law and only where it has
evidence that the Medically Indigent Patient has sufficient income or assets to pay his
discounted bill.

7. Collection Actions Against Uninsured Patients. Each of the Company’s
hospitals should have written policies outlining when and under whose authority an unpaid
balance of any uninsured patient is advanced to collection, and hospitals should use their best
efforts to ensure that patient accounts for all uninsured patients are processed fairly and
consistently.

8. Interest Free, Extended Payment Plans. All uninsured patients shall be
offered extended payment plans by the Company’s hospitals to assist the patients in settling
past due outstanding hospital bills. The Company’s hospitals will not charge uninsured
patients any interest under such extended payment plans.

9. Body Attachments. The Company’s hospitals shall not use body attachment
to require that its uninsured patients or responsible party appear in court.

10.

11. Collection Agencies Follow Hospital Collection Policies. The Company’s
hospitals should define the standards and scope of practices to be used by their outside (non-
hospital) collection agencies, and should obtain written agreements from such agencies that
they will adhere to such standards and scope of practices. These standards and practices
should not be inconsistent with the Company’s collection practices for its hospitals set forth

in this Policy.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS AGAINST THIRD PARTIES.
Nothing in this Policy shall preclude the Company’s hospitals from pursuing reimbursement

from third party payors, third party liability settlements or tortfeasors or other legally responsible
third parties.

REFERENCES
HHS, Office of Inspector General, Guidance dated February 2, 2004, entitled “ Hospital Discounts
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Offered to Patients Who Cannot Afford To Pay Their Hospital Bills”.

Letter dated February 19, 2004, from Tommy G. Thompson, HHS Secretary, to Richard J. Davidson,
President, American Hospital Association, including Questions and Answers attached thereto entitled

“Questions On Charges For The Uninsured”.

Federal Poverty Guidelines published by US Department of Health and Human Services from time to
time. (Most recent publication at effective date of this Policy is Federal Register, Volume 77, No. 7 FR

4150-05-P, January 23, 2012.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ELIGIBILITY GUIDELINES

Based on Federal Poverty Guidelines Effective January 23, 2013

Schedule A (shaded) Schedule B (unshaded)

Financially Indigent Medically Indigent

Number In Household 300% 400% 500%
1 34,470 | 45,960 | 57,450
2 46,530 | 62,040 | 77,550
3 58,500 | 78,120 | 97,650
4 70,650 | 94,200 | s
5 82,710 | #HHH# | #HHHH
6 94,770 | #HHH ] #itHERE
7 HIHHHEE | HEHHEE |
8 HHHEHE | A R

Piscount 80% 60% 40%

Schedule C

Catastrophic Eligibility as Medically Indigent -

Includes patient’s income that exceeds 500% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines

Balance Due

Discount

Balance Due is equal to or greater than 90% patients annual income

‘80% |

Balance Due is equal to or greater than 70% and less than 90% patients annual income

60%

Balance Due is equal to or greater than 50% and less than 70% patients annual income

40%

$¢
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[HOSPITAL LETTERHEAD]

«GUARANTOR» -
«ADDRESS»
«CITY», «State» «zip»

[DATE]

Re: «PATIENT»
Admission:  «ACCOUNT»
Balance Due: $«TOTAL CHARGES»

Dear «GUARANTORY,

Thank you for choosing Hospital the [system] [Hospital] of choice in
We appreciate you taking the time to complete and return the Application for As51stance
Hospital uses this information to determine your eligibility for a reduce fee under

the Hospital Financial Assistance program.

In reviewing your Application for Assistance, we are happy to inform you that you have been
approved for a «DISCOUNT»% discount your new balance has been reduced to
$«REMAINING BAL». Our determination was based upon your income, household size and

Federal Poverty Guidelines.

If you have any questions about our decision, please call the Hospital’s [Customer Service] at

Sincerely,

[Customer Service Representative]
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ELIGIBILITY DETERMINATION
OFFICE USE ONLY

Patient Name:

Account Number(s): : Total Yearly Income: $ Total Charges:$

Balance Due: § Income Verification Code: Number in Household: Financial

Class:
[ ]

1. Is Total Yearly Income equal to or less than 200% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines? (See Financial Assistance

Eligibility Guidelines - Schedule A) Circle One

YES Approved for 100% financial assistance as Financially Indigent.
NO Does not qualify for assistance as Financially Indigent. Continue to Step 2.
2. Is this balance due greater than 10% of Total Yearly Income? Circle One

YES Continue to Step 3.
NO Patient does not qualify for Financial Assistance.

3. Is Total Yearly Income equal to or less than 500% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines? See Financial Assistance

Eligibility Guidelines - Schedule B. Circle One

YES Total Yearly Income is greater than % and less than % of the Federal Poverty
Guidelines. Patient qualifies for % discount as Medically Indigent pursuant to Financial Assistance

Eligibility Guidelines - Schedule B .
NO: Continue to Step 4.
4, Is this balance due greater than 50% of Tetal Yearly Income? Circle One

YES Balance due is % of the total yearly income. Eligible for % discount as Medically

Indigent pursuant to Financial Assistance Eligibility Guidelines - Schedule C. Continue to Step 5.

NO: Patient does not qualify for Financial Assistance.
. |

5. $ : Multiply by % = $ $
Balance Due % Discount Discount Amount Remaining Balance
Before Discount Due After Discount

Employee Name (Print)

Employee Signature ) Approved By

Date Approved By

$1-%2,000 Director Approved By
$2,001 - $10,000 Director and CFO
$10,001 & above Director, CFO and CEQ

Income Verification Codes

1 [ IRS Form W-2, Wage and Earnings Statement 7 | Wntten attestation of patient
2 | Pay Check Remittance 8 | Verbal attestation of patient
3 | Tax Retums 9 | Patient deceased, no estate

4 | Social Security, Work Comp or Unempl Comp letter 10 | Government Program

5 11 | Other

Telephone verification by employer
6 | Bank Statements
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS

Instructions:
As part of its commitment to serve the community, Hospital elects to provide financial

assistance to individuals who are financially indigent or medically indigent and satisfy certain
requirements.

To determine if a person qualifies for financial assistance, we need to obtain certain financial information.
Your cooperation will allow us to give all due consideration to your request for financial assistance.

Please provide the information requested and mail to the following address:

Hospital

Income Verification:

IN ORDER TO CONSIDER YOUR REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, VERIFICATION OF INCOME IS
REQUIRED. PLEASE PROVIDE A COPY OF THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS:

e Governmental Assistance, Social Security, Workers Compensation, or
Unémployment Compensation Determination Letter
e Income Tax Return for previous year

PLEASE ALSO INCLUDE ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING:
o IRS Form W-2, Wage and Eamings Statement for all household earnings
o Last 2 pay check stubs for all household earnings
e Bank Statement that contains income information

In the event income verification is unavailable, please contact our office for further instructions.
Applications without verification are considered incomplete and WILL NOT BE PROCESSED. Please
return the application and verification of income within 7 days to the above address.

Notification of Determination:
We will notify you of your eligibility following receipt and review of all necessary information. The
notification will be mailed to the mailing address you have provided on the Financial Assistance

Application.

Physician Services: :

The physicians providing services at this Hospital are not employees of Hospital. You will
receive separate bills from your private physician and from other physicians whose services you required
(pathologist, radiologist, surgeon, etc.). The Financial Assistance Application does not apply to any
amounts due by you for physician services. For questions regarding their bills, or to make payment
arrangements for physician services, please contact the individual physician’s office.

For assistance in completing this application, please contact Hospital [Customer Service]
at(__) or Toll Free: 1- , Monday through Friday between the hours of 8:00

a.m. and 5:00 p.m.
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GRNTOR #:

HOSP CODE:

PATIENT INFORMATION/INFORMACION DEL PACIENTE

[Patient Namne/Nombre del Paciente

IAccount Balance/Balancia de Cuenta

Patient Number/Numero del Paciente

Date of Birth/Fetch del Nacimiento

[Admission Date/Fecha De Entrada

Discharge Date/Fecha De Despedida

Social Security No/Num de Seguro
Social

Marital Status/Estado Civil

[Home Address/Direccion De Residencia

City/Ciudad

State/Estado

Zip

[Name of Medical Provider/Nombre Del Proveedor De Sercisios Medicos

Beginning Coverage Date/Fecha del Comienzo

[Name of Doctor/Nombre Del Medico

[Employer Name/Nombre Occupation/Ocupacion [Telephone/Telefono
GUARANTOR INFORMATION/PERSONA RESPONSABLE

Social Security No/Num de Seguro
[Name/Nombre Social IAge/Edad
[Realationship to Applicant IAddress/Direccion [Telephone/Telefono
[Relacion con el Paciente
City/Ciudad State/Estado Zip
[Employer/Empleador [Employer Phone/Number De Empleador Occupation/Ocupacion
Address/Direccion
City/Ciudad State/Estado

ZIP:

ATTACHMENT 19

4/2



L

FINANCIAL INFORMATION/INFORMACION FINANCIAL

Total Monthly Incoine/Ingresos Mensuales No. of Dependents Residence(Own/Rent) ICar (Model/Year)/Carro (Modelo/Ano)
Cuantos Dependientes [Casa Propia o Renta
RESOURCES/RECURSOS
[Name of Bank/Nombre del Banco Checking Account/Cueta de Cheques  [Savings Account/Cuentas de Ahorros
)
MONTHLY EXPENSES/GASTOS MENSUALES
[Rent/Mortgage/ Payment Water Bill/Pago de Agua Gas Bill/Pago de Gas Phone Bill/Cuenta De Telefono
[Payment/Renta o Pago Hipotecario
5 $ \ 5
[Electric Bill/Pago de Electricidad Car Payment/Pago de Carro [nsurance Premium/Pago de Prima Other Bills/Otro Gastos
5
HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION/INFORMACION DE LA CASA
Relationship/Relacion con el
Name/Nombre Paciente Date of Birth/Fecha de Nacimiento Social Security No.
iNum de Seguro Social

If unable to provide requested documents, please explain below/
Por favor de dar una explicacion si no es posible proveer ios documentos.

COMMENTS/COMETARIOS:
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AFFIDAVIT/DECLARACION JURADA

| declare under penalty of perjury that the answers | have given are frue
and correct to the best of my knowledge.

| agree to tell the provider of service within ten (10) days if there are any
changes in my (or the persons on whose behalf | am acting) income,

property, expenses or in the persons household or any change of
address.

| understand that | may be asked to prove my statements and my
eligibility statements will be subject to verification by contact with my
employer, bank credit verification and property searches.

| understand the county is required by law to keep any information |
provide confidential.

| further agree, that in consideration for receiving health care services as
a result of an accident or injury, to reimburse the county from the
proceeds of litigation or settlement resulting from such an act.

Declaro bajo pena de perjuria que las respuestas que he dado son
verdaderas y correctas al mejor de mi conocimiento.
Acuerdo decirle al abastecedor del servicio en el plazo de diez dias si
hay algunos cambios en mi (o personas en el favor que yo este
actuando) renta, propiedad, gastos o en la casa de las personas o
cualquier cambio de direccion.

Entiendo que puedo ser pedido probar mis declaraciones de la
elegibilidad estaran conforme a la verificacion al ado de contacto con
mi patron, verification del credito de banco y busquedas de propiedad

Entiendo que el condado es requerido por ley de protejer cualquier
informacion que yo proporcione confidencial.

Tambien convengo, en la consideracion de recibir servicios del cuidado
medico como resuitado de un accidente o lesion, de tener que
reemboisarle al condado de los ingresos de la demanda o cualquier
resultado de tal acto.

Signature/Firma

Datel/Fecha
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[Hospital Logo]

Date:

Re:
Admission #
Balance Due:

Dear ,

Thank you for choosing - Hospital. We appreciate you taking the time to complete and
return the Application for Assistance. Hospital uses this information to
determine your eligibility for a reduced fee under the ' Hospitals Charity Care

Financial Assistance program.
In reviewing your Application for Financial Assistance, we have determined that you are not
eligible for charity care or financial assistance under our policy. Our determination was based

upon your income, household size and Federal Poverty Guidelines.

If you have any questions about our decision, please call Customer Service at
XXXy - :

Sincerely,

Customer Service Representative
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Driving Directions from Westlake Hospital-ER in Melrose Park, Illinois 60160 to Macnea... Page 1 of 2

i

Notes

mapquest

Trip to:

Macneal Hospital

3249 Oak Park Ave _,
(708) 783-2036

7.26 miles / 18 minutes

A Westlake Hospltal ER
1225 W Lake St, Melrose Park, IL 60160
(708) 938-7190

& 1. Start out going north toward Chicago Ave. Map 0.04 Mi
0.04 Mi Tofal

f’ 2. Take the 1st right onto Chicago Ave. Map 0.7 Mi

0.7 Mi Total

” 171 3. Turn right onto N 1st Ave / IL-171. Map 1.6 Mi

=3 2.3 Mi Total

f:t s 4. Merge onto 1-290 E / IL-110 E / Eisenhower Expy E via the ramp on the left. Map 1.3 Mi

‘ 3.6 Mi Tofal

5. Take the IL-43 / Harlem Ave exit, EXIT 21B, on the left. Map 0.2 Mi
EX{T .

3.8 Mi Total

”’ . 6. Turn right onto Harlem Ave / S Harlem Ave / IL-43. Continue to follow Harlem 2.1 Mi

Ave / IL-43. Map 5.9 Mi Total

q 7. Tum left onto 26th St. Map ' : 0.5 Mi

6.5 Mi Total

r’ 8. Turn right onto Oak Park Ave. Map . 0.8 Mi

' 7.3 Mi Total

.; 9. 3249 OAK PARK AVE is on the left. Map

@ Macneal Hospital
*  Macneal Physician Referral Service
3249 Oak Park Ave, Berwyn, IL 60402

(708) 783-2036

Tota| Travel Estimate: 7 26 mlles about 18 mmutes

BOOK TRAVEL vt~ mapquest (877) 577-5766

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from Westlake Hospital-ER in Melrose Park, Illinois 60160 to West S... Page 1 of 1

Notes . _ .

mapquest’

Trip to:

West Suburban Medical Center
3 Erie Ct

Oak Park, IL 60302

(708) 383-6200

4.08 miles / 12 minutes

9 Westlake Hospital-ER
¥ 1225 W Lake St, Melrose Park, IL 60160
(708) 938-7190

1. Start out going north toward Chicago Ave. Map _ 0.04 Mi

% 0.04 Mi Total
# 2. Take the 1st right onto Chicago Ave. Map 3.8 Mi
: 3.8 Mi Total
ﬂ 3. Tum right onto N Austin Blvd. Map 0.2 Mi
4.0 Mi Total
r’ 4. Turn right onto Erie St. Map 0.05 Mi
' 4.1 Mi Total
: ﬁ 5. Take the 1st left to stay on Erie St. Map 0.02 Mi
4.1 Mj Total

. 6. 3 ERIE CT. Map |

| tap

' West Suburban Medical Center
* 3 Erie Ct, Oak Park, IL 60302
(708) 383-6200

Total Travel Estimate: 4.08 miles - about 12 minutes

BOOK TRAVEL v mapauest (877) 577-5766

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from Westlake Hospital-ER in Melrose Park, Illinois 60160 to ATM - ... Page 2 of 2

ﬁ 13. Turn right onto N Marine Dr. Map 0.3 Mi
20.3 Mi Total

._ 14.. 4646 -N MARiNE Dﬁ is oh the left. Map
ATM - Louis Weiss Memorial Hospital
4646 N Marine Dr, Chicago, IL 60637
(800) 432-1000

Total Travel Estimate: 20.33 miles - about 36 minutes

BOOK TRAVEL win mapquest (877) 577-5766

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from Westlake Hospital-ER in Melrose Park, Illinois 60160 to ATM -

Notes . .

mapquest’

Trip to:

ATM - Louis Weiss Memorial
Hospital

4646 N Marine Dr

Chicago, IL 60637

(800) 432-1000

20.33 miles / 36 minutes

ﬁ' Westlake Hospltal ER
1225 W Lake St, Melrose Park, IL 60160
(708) 938 7190

;ﬁ 1. Start out going north toward Chlcago Ave Map
p 2. Take the 1st right onto Chicago Ave. Map

ﬁ 71l 3. Turn right ontoN1stAveIIL 171 M ap

f@ erze 4. Merge onto 1-290 E / IL-110 E / Eisenhower Expy E via the ramp on the left. Map
?\ | ———:
m 5. Merge onto l-90 WI I-94 WI Kennedy Expy W toward Wsconsm Map

o 6. Take EXIT 50B toward East Ohio St. Map

)
3
X
=

0 3
33 '

7. Stay straight to go onto W Ohio St. Map
8. Turn left onto N Michigan Ave. Map
9. Turn slight right to stay on N Michigan Ave. Map

morr 10. Merge onto N Lake Shore Dr/US-41 N. Map
41

e

T VY Y

o

11. Take the Montrose Ave ramp. Map

12. Turn left onto W Montrose Ave. Map

4
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0.04 Mi
0.04 Mi Tofal

0.7 Mi
0.7 Mi Total

1.6 Mi
2.3 Mi Total

9.6 Mi
11.9 Mi Total

1.5 Mi
13.4 Mi Total

0.8 Mi

14.2 Mi Total
0.7 Mi

14.9 Mi Toftal
0.5 Mi

15.4 Mi Total
0.06 Mi

15.4 Mi Total
4.4 Mi

19.8 Mi Total
0.1 Mi

19.9 Mi Total
0.07 Mi

20.0 Mi Total

6/29/2013
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HosPITAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

THIS TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made and effective as of October 03,
2012 (“Effective Date”), is by and between VHS Westlake Hospital, Inc., a Delaware
corporation d/b/a Westlake Hospital (“Westlake”), and VHS West Suburban Hospital,
Inc., a Delaware corporation d/bfa West Suburban Hospital (“West Suburban”). The
parties are sometimes referred to individually as a “Facility” and collectively as the

“Facilities.”
RECITALS

WHEREAS, the parties desire fo enter into this Agreement governing the transfer of
patients between the two facilities located in [llinois (“State™).

WHEREAS, Westlake is not able to provide 24-hour/365 days per year Cardiology
Consulting/Cardiac  Surgery On-Call Services (“Services”) to patients seeking
emergency care at Westlake's Emergency Department;

Whereas, West Suburban has available 24-hour/365 days per year Cardiology
Consulting/Cardiac Surgery On-Call Services in its Emergency Department;

WHEREAS, during those times that Westlake is unable to provide On-Call Cardiology
Consulting/Cardiac Surgery Services to its Emergency Depariment patients, West
Suburban is able and willing to accept such patients by way of transfer, as more fully set
forth below;

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to specify the rights
and duties of each of the parties and to specify the procedure for ensuring the timely
transfer of patients between the facilities.

Now, THEREFORE, to facilitate the continuity of care and the timely transfer of patients
and records between the facilities, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Transfer of Patients. |[f either facility believes that a patient of that facility
(“Transferring Facility”) requires the services of the other facility (‘Receiving Facility”)
and the transfer is deemed medically appropriate, a member of the nursing staff of the

Transferring Facility (or the patient's attending physician) will contact the Receiving

Facility's admitting office or Emergency Department to arrange for appropriate treatment
as provided herein. All transfers between the facilities shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws and regulations, the standards of the Joint
Commission (“TJC"), Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Program (“HFAP") and any
other applicable accrediting bodies, and reasonable policies and procedures of the
faciliies. Neither the decision to transfer a patient nor the decision to not accept a
request to transfer a patient shall be predicated upon arbitrary, capricious or
unreasonable discrimination or based upon the patient's inability to pay for services

1
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HOSPITAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

rendered by either facility. The Receiving Facility’s responsibility for the patient's care
shall begin when the patient is admitted to the Receiving Facility.

2. Responsibilities of the Transferring Facility. The Transferring Facility shall be
responsible to;

(@) . Provide, within its capabilities, the medical screening and stabilizing
treatment of the patient before transfer.

. (b) Arrange for appropriate and safe transportation and care of the patient
during transfer in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

(¢) Designate a person who has authority to represent the Transferring
Facility and coordinate the transfer of the patient from the facility.

(dY  Notify the Receiving Facility’s designated representative before transfer to
confirm availability of appropriate facilities, services and staff necessary to provide care
to the patient.

(e) Before patient transfer, the transferring physician shall contact and secure
a receiving physician at the Receiving Facility who shall attend to the medical needs of
the patient and who will accept responsibility for the patient’s medical treatment and
hospital care. .

1)) Provide, within its. capabilities, appropriate personnel, equipment and
services fo assist the transferring physician with the coordination and transfer of the

patient.

(@) Provide, within its capabilities, personnel, equipment and [ife support
measures determined appropriate for the transfer of the patient by the transferring

physician. :

(h) Forward to the receiving physician and the Receiving Facility a copy of
those portions of the patient's medical record that are available and relevant to the
transfer and continued care of the patient, including without limitation: records relating to
the patient's condition, observations of signs or symptoms, preliminary diagnosis,
treatment provided, results of any tests and, with respect to a patient with an emergency
medical condition that has not been stabilized, a copy of the patient's informed consent
to the transfer or physician certification that the medical benefits of the transfer outweigh
the risk of transfer. If all necessary and relevant medical records are not available at
the time the patient is transferred, then the Transferring Facility shall forward the
records as soon as possible.

2
ATTACHMENT 19

70



HosPiTAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

() Transfer the patient’s personal effects, including without limitation money
and valuables, and information related to those items.

() Provide the Receiving Facility any information that is available concerning
the patient’s coverage or eligibility under a third party coverage plan, Medicare or
Medicaid, or a health care assistance program established by a county, public hospital,
or hospital district.

(k)  Notify the Receiving Facility of an estimated time of arrival for the patient.

) Provide for the completion of a certification statement, summarizing the
risk and benefits of the transfer of a patient with an emergency medical condition that
has not been stabilized, by the transferring physician or other qualified personnel if the
physician is not physically present at the facility at the time of transfer.

(m)  Acknowledge any contractual obligations and comply with any statutory or
regulatory obligations that might exist between a patient and a designated provider.

(n)  Recognize the right of a patient to request a transfer to the care of a
physician and hospital of the patient’s choosing.

(o) Recognize the right of a patient to refuse consent to treatment or transfer.

(p) Complete, execute and forward a memorandum of iransfer form to the
Receiving Facility for every patient who is transferred.

() Establish policies and/or protocols for (i} maintaining the confidentiality of
the patient's medical records in accordance with applicable state and federal law and (ii)
the inventory and safekeeping of any patient valuables sent with the patient to the
Receiving Facility. ,

3. Responsibilities of the Receiving Facility. The Receiving Facility shall be

responsible to:

(@) Confirm with the Transferring Facility, as promptly as possible, that the
Receiving Facility has available beds and appropriate facilities, services and staff
necessary io treat the patient and that the Receiving Facility has agreed to accept
transfer of the patient. The Receiving Facility shall respond to the Transferring Facility
immediately after receipt of the request to transfer a patient with an emergency medical
condition or in active labor.

(b)  Provide, within its capabilities, appropriate personnel, equipment and
services to assist the receiving physician with the receipt and treatment of the patient

3
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transferred, maintain a call roster of physicians at the Receiving Facility and provide, on
request, the names of on-call physicians to the Transferring Facility.

(¢) Reserve appropriate beds, facilites and services for patients being
transferred from the Transferring Facility who have been accepted by the Receiving
Facility and a receiving physician, if deemed necessary by a transferring physician,
unless the Receiving Facility needs them for an emergency. ‘

(d)y Designate a person who has authority to represent and coordinate the
transfer and receipt of patients into the facility.

(e)  When appropriate and within its capabilities, assist with the transportation
of the patient as determined appropriate by the transferring or receiving physician.

S Provide the Transferring Facility with a copy of the medical records of the
patient that were generated at the Receiving Facility, if the Receiving Facility returns the
patient to the Transferring Facility.

(g) Maintain the confidentiality of the patient’s medical records in accordance
with applicable state and federal law.

(hy  Establish policies and/or protocols for (i} maintaining the confidentiality of
the patient’s medical records in accordance with applicable state and federal law, (ii) the
receipt of patients into the facility, and (iii) the acknowledgment and inventory of patient
valuables transported with patients.

(i) Provide for the return transfer of patients to the Transferring Facility when
requested by the patient or the Transferring Facility and ordered by the patient’'s
attending or transferring physician, if the Transferring Facility has a statutory or
regulatory obligation to provide health care assistance to the patient and, if transferred
back to the Transferring Facility, comply with Section 2.

() Upon request, provide to the Transferring Facility and patient current
information concerning the Receiving Facility's eligibility standards and payment
practices.

(k)  Acknowledge any contractual obligations and comply with any statutory or
regulatory obligations that might exist between a patient and a designated provided.

0 Comple’ce,'execute, and return the memorandum of transfer form to the
Transferring Facility.

4. Billing. All charges incurred with respect to any services performed by either
facility for patients received from the other facility pursuant to this Agreement shall be

4
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

billed and collected by the facility providing such services directly from the patient, third
party coverage, Medicare or Medicaid, or other sources normally billed by that facility.
In addition, it is understood that the physicians or other professional providers that may
participate in the care and treatment of the patient will bill professional fees at usual and
customary charges. Each facility shall provide information in its possession to the other
facility and such physicians/providers sufficient to enable them to bill the patient,

responsible party, or appropriate third-party payer.

5, Retransfer; Discharge. At such time as the patient is ready for transfer back to
the Transferring Facility or another health care facility or for discharge from the
Receiving Facility, in accordance with the direction from the Transferring Facility and
with the proper notification of the patient's family or guardian, the Receiving Facility will
transfer the patient to the agreed-upon location. If the Receiving Facility is to transfer
the patient back to the Transferring Facility, the Receiving Facility will be responsible for
the care of the patient up until the time the patient is re-admitted to the Transferring

Facility.

6. Compliance with Law. Both facilities shall comply with all applicable federal and
state laws, rules and regulations, including without limitation those laws and regulations
governing the maintenance of medical records and confidentiality of patient information
as well as with all standards promulgated by any relevant accrediting agency. Each
party represents and warrants to the other party, that it is not an Ineligible Person. An
“Ineligible Person” is an individual or entity who: (i) is currently excluded, debarred,
suspended, or otherwise ineligible to participate in the Federal health care programs or
in Federal procurement or non-procurement programs; or (i) has been convicted of a
criminal offense that falls within the range of activities described in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-
7(a), but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared

ineligible.

7. Responsibility; Insurance. The facilities shall each be responsible for their own
acts and omissions in the performance of their duties hereunder, and the acts and
omissions of each facility's own employees and agents. In addition, each party shall
maintain, throughout the term of this Agreement, comprehensive general and
professional liability insurance and property damage insurance coverage in amounts
reasonably acceptable to the other party and shall provide evidence of such coverage

upon request.

8. Term. The initial term of this Agreement (“|nitial Term”) shall be for a period of
one year, commencing on the Effective Date. Thereafter, this Agreement shall
automatically be renewed for an additional period of one (1) year unless either party
terminates this Agreement in accordance with the provisions set forth in paragraph 9
herein. To the extent that this Agreement is automatically renewed, each such renewal

)
ATTACHMENT 19

7z




HOSPITAL TO HOSPITAL
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term shall be upon the same terms and conditions of the immediate, preceding renewal
term.
9. Termination.

(a)  Termination Without Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at
any time without cause by giving the other party at least 30 days prior written notice of
such termination (a “Without Cause Notice of Temination”).

(b  Termination for Breach: Either party may terminate this Agreement upon
breach by the other party of any material provision of this Agreement, provided that, to
effect such termination, the non-breaching party must give the breaching parly at least
15 days prior written notice of the termination (a "Breach Notice of Termination®”) and
describe in such notice the breach claimed by the terminating party.

(¢) Immediate Termination. Either facility may terminate this Agreement
immediately by written notice to the other facility (an "Immediate Notice of Termination”)
upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

(1) The other facility's license in the State lapses or is denied, suspended,
revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or other
restriction;

(2) The other facility becomes debarred, excluded, or suspended, or if any
other event occurs that makes the other facility an |neligible Person;

(3) The other facility closes or ceases patient care operations to such an
extent that patient care cannot be carried out adequately.

(d) Effective Date of Temmination: Opportunity o Cure. The effective date of
termination of this Agreement shall be (i) in the case of a termination pursuant to
Section 9(a), the date of termination specified in the Without Cause Notice of
Termination, provided that such date shali not be less than 30 days after the date such
Without Cause Notice of Termination is given, (i) in the case of a termination pursuant
to Section 9(b), the date of termination specified in the Breach Notice of Termination,
provided such date shall not be less than 15 days after the date such Breach Notice of
Termination is given, and (iii) in the case of a termination pursuant to Section 9(¢), the
date on which the Immediate Notice of Termination is given. If a parly terminates this
Agreement pursuant to either Section 9(g) or Section 9(c), the other party shall have no
rights to cure or contest the termination of this Agreement. If a party terminates this
Agreement pursuant to Section 9(b), the other party shall have the right to cure the
breach described in the Breach Notice of Termination prior to the effective date of
termination set forth in such notice, provided that, if the breach is not cured during such

6
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period, this Agreement shall automatically terminate on the date of termination set forth
in the Breach Notice of Termination.

(e) Effect of Termination. As of the effective date of termination of this
Agreement, neither party shall have any further rights or obligations hereunder except
for rights and obligations accruing prior to such effective date of termination, or arising
as a result of any breach of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
provisions of this Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement, regardiess of the reason of such termination: Sections 4, 7, 8(e), and 12.

10. Disputes. In the event that there is any question regarding the interpretation or
implementation of this Agreement, the facilities agree to form a joint committee of three
persons from each facility, who shall meet and attempt to reach a mutually satisfactory
resolution of the issue within three business days of a request by either facility for such

meeting. -

11. Entire Agreement; Modification. This Agreement contains the entire
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes
all pricr agreements, oral or written, and all other communications between the parties
relating fo such subject matter. This Agreement may not be amended or modified
except by mutual written agreement. Any refererice to this Agreement shall include
each and every exhibit, each of which is fully incorporated into this Agreement where

referenced.

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws
of the State. The provisions of this Section shall survive expiration or termination of this
Agreement regardless of the cause of such termination.

- 13.  Counterparts: Transmission_ by Electronic Means. This Agreement may be
executed in two or more counterparts, each and all of which shall be deemed an original
and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. This
Agreement, and any executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement, may
be transmitted by fax or e-mail, and delivery of an executed counterpart of a sighature
page to this Agreement by fax or e-mail shall be effective as delivery of a manually
executed counterpart of this Agreement.

14.  Notices. Any notice, demand or communication required, permitted or desired to
be given hereunder shall be deemed effectively given if given in writing (i) on the date
tendered by personal delivery, (i) on the date received by facsimile or other electronic
means, (i) on the date tendered for delivery by nationally recognized overnight courier,
or (iv) on the date tendered for delivery by United States mail, with postage prepaid
thereon, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, in any event addressed as

follows: :

7
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Ifto  Westlake: ' With copy to:
Westlake Hospltal Vanguard Health Systems, Inc.
1225 Lake Street 20 Burton Hills Bivd., Ste. 100
Melrose Park, IL 60160 Nashville, Tennessee 37215
Attention: Chief Executive Officer Altn: General Counsel
Facsimile: 708.938.7974 Facsimile: 615.665.6197

Email Address: wbrown@westlakehosp.com  Email: generalcounsel@vanguardhealth.com

i to West Suburban:
West Suburban Medical Center
3 Erie Court
Oak Park, IL 60302
Attn: Chief Executive Officer
Facsimile No.: 708.383.3159
Email Address: jcleary@westsubme.com

or to such other persons or places as either party may from time to time designate by
written notice to the other.

15. Waiver. A waiver by either party of a breach or failure to perform hereunder shall
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or failure.

18. Captions. The captions contained herein are used solely for convenience and
shall not be deemed to define or limit the provisions of this Agreement.

17.  Assignment; Binding Effect. Neither facility may assign or transfer this Agreement
in whole or in part, or assign or delegate any of facility’s rights, duties or obligations
under this Agreement, in each case without the prior written consent of the other facility,
and any assignment, transfer or delegation by the facility without such consent shall be
null and void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either facility may assign this Agreement,
in whole but not in part, without the consent of (but with prior notice to) the other facility
in connection with the sale of all or substantially all of the assets constituting the facility.
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and
their respective heirs, representatives, successors and permitted assigns.

18. Referrals. The parties acknowledge than none of the benefits granted either
facility hereunder are conditioned on any requirement that a facility make referrals to, be
in a position to make or influence referrals to, or otherwise generate business for the

other facility.

19.  Financial Obligation. Neither facility shall incur any financial obligation on behalf
of the other facility without the prior written approval of the other facility.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

8
ATTACHMENT 19

75




HOSPITAL TO HOSPITAL

TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the

day and year first above written.

VHS WESTLAKE HOSPITAL, INC.,
D/B/A Westlake Hospital

By: ﬁ.;é&.‘.—/ /4 W

Name; William A. Brown, FACHE
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date signed: /0/3;//2/

VHS WEST SUBURBAN HOSPITAL, INC.
D/B/A West Suburban Hospital

Title: . hief Executive Officer
Date signed: [ﬂ'é,/ 20/2.

7¢
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT
BY AND AMONG
VHS oF ILLINOIS, INC. v/8/A MACNEAL HOSPITAL,
VHS WESTLAKE HOSPITAL, INC. , 0/8/A WESTLAKE HOSPITAL AND
ELMHURST MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

THIS TRANSFER AGREEMENT { “Agreement”) is entered into as of the _Zrl“day
ol'_E@_h,m, 2012, by and umong VIS of HHinois, Inc. d/b/a MacNeal Hospital and VHS Westlake
Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Westlake 1lospital (cach, a “Receiving l{ospital”) and Elmhurst Memorial
Hospital an llinois non-profit corpuration (“Transferring Facility”) (each a "Party" and
collectively "Parties”).

WHEREAS, Transfercing Facility operates a general acute care hospilal facility:

WHEREAS, each Receiving Hospital operates a general acute hospital and ancillary
facilities;

WHEREAS, Transferring Facility receives frum time to time patients who are in need of
specialized behavioral health inpatient scrvices not available at Transferring lacility and
Receiving Hospitals provide such specialized services;

WHEREAS, the Partics are legally separate organizations and the Receiving Hospitals
are not related in any way to the Transferring Facility through common ownership or control;
and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to join together to develop a relationship for the provision
of health care scrvices in order (o assure continuity of care for patients and to ensure accessibility
of services to patients.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, conditions, covcnants,
agreements and obligations contained hercin, and for other good and vatuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, it is hereby mutually agreed by the
Parties as follows:

ARTICLE L

Patient Transfers

[.1.  Acceptance of Patients. Upon recommendation of an attending physician and
pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, each Receiving Hospital agrees to admit a patient
mecling its inclusion criteria. as provided to Transferring Facility, as prompily as possible,
provided customary admission requirements are met, State and Federal laws and regulations are
mct. and Receiving Hospital has the capacity 1o treat the patient. Notice of the transfer shall be
given by Transferring Facility as far in advance as possible. Recciving Hospital shall give
prompt confirmation ol whether it can provide health care appropriate to the patient's medical
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needs. Receiving Hospital agrees to exercise its best efforts to provide for prompt admission of
transferred patients and, to the extent reasonably possible under the circumstances, give
preference to patients requiring transler from Transferring Facility. '

1.2,  AppropriateTransfer.  {f applicable, it shall- bc Transferring Facility's
responsibility to arrange for appropriate and safe transportation and to arrange for the care of the
patient during a transfer. The ‘lransferring Facility shall ensure that the transfer is an
“appropriate transfer” under the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act, as may be
amended ("EMTALA"). and is carried out in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations. The Transferring Facility shall provide in advance sufficient information to permit a
determination as to whether the Recciving Hospital can provide the necessary patient care. The
patient’s medical record shall contain a physician’s order transferring the paticnt.  When
reasonably possible, a physician lrom the Transferring Facility shall communicate dil eul!y with a
physician from the Receiving Hospital before the patient is transferred.

1.3.  Transfer Log. The Transferring Facility shall keep an accurate and current fog off
all patients transferred fo the Receiving Hospital and the disposition of such patient wansfers as
part of its log kept in compliance with EMTALA.

1.4, Admission _to the Receiving Hospital from Transferring Facility. When a

patient’s need for admission to the Receiving Hospital is determined by his/her attending
physician, Receiving Ilospital shall admit the patient in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement as follows:

(a) Patients determined to be emergent by the attending physician shall be
admitted, subject to bed, space, qualified personnel and equipment availability, provided that all
usual conditions of’ admission to Receiving Hospital are met.

(b} Al other patients shall be admitted according to the established routine of
Receiving Hospital.

1.5.  Standard of Performance. Each Party shall, in performing its obligations under
this Agreement, provide patient care services in accordance with the same standards as services
provided under similar circumstances to all other patients of such Party, and as required- by
federal and state laws and Medicare/Medicaid certification standards. Fach Party shall maintain
all legally required certifications and licenses from all applicable governmental and accrediting
bodies, and shall maintain full eligibility for participation in Medicare and Medicaid. Receiving
Hospital shall maintain accreditation by The Joint (‘ommlssmn (“TIC™) er the Healthcare
Facilities Accreditation Program (“HFAP™).

1.6.  Billing and Collections. Each Party shall be entitled to bill patiems, payors,
managed care plans and any other third party responsible for paying a patient’s hill, for services
rendered to patients by Party and its employces. agents and representatives under this
Agreement. Each Party shall be solely responsible lor all matters pertaining to the billing and
collection of such charges. The Parties shall reasonably cooperate with each other in the
preparation and completion of all nccessary forms and documentation and the detcrmination of
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insurance coverage and managed carc requirements for each transferred patient. Fach Party shall
have the sole final responsibility for all forms, documentation, and insurance verilication.

1.7.  Personal Effects. Personal effects, if any, of any transferred paticnt shall be
delivered to the transfer tcam or admissions department of the Receiving Hospital.  Persanal
effects include money, jewelry. personal papers and articles for personal hygiene.

ARTICLE 1L

Medical Records

Subject to applicable confidentiality requirements, the Parties shall exchange all
information which may be necessary or useful in the care and treatment of the transterred patient
or which may be relevant in determining whether such patient can be adequately cared for by the
other Party. All such information shall be provided by the Transferring Facility in advance,
where possible, and in any event, at the time of the transfer. The Transferring Facilily shall send
a copy of all patient medical records that are available at the time of wansfer to the Receiving
Hospital. Other records shall be sent as soon as practicable after the transfer. The paticnt’s
medical record shall contain evidence that the patient was translerred proraptly. safely and in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

ARTICLE Il

Term and Termination

3.1.  Term. This Agreement shall be effective as of the day and year written above and
shall remain in effect until terminated as provided berein.

3.2.  Termmination. This Agreement may be terminated as follows:

(a) Termination by Mutusl Consent. The Parties may terminate this

Agreement at any time by mutual writicn consent, and such termination shall be effective upon
the date stated in the consent.

(b}  Termination Withow Cause. Cither Party may terminate this Agreement,
for any reason whatsoever, upon thirty (30) days prioer written notice.

{©) Termination for Cause. The Parties shall have the right to immediately
terminate this Agreement for cause upon the happening of any of the foltowing:

Q) if either Party determines that the cqnlinualinn of this Agreement
would endanger patient care.

(il  Violation by the other Party of any material provision of this
Agreement, provided such violation continues for a period of thirty (30)
days alier receipt of written notice by the other Party specifying such
violation with particularity.
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(iii) A geneml assignment by the other Party for the benefit of
creditors; the institwtion by or against the other Party, as debtor. of
proceedings of any nature under any law of the United States or any state,
whether now existing or currently cnacted or amended, for the reliel of
debtors, provided that in the evenl such proceedings arc instituted against
the other Party remain unstayed or undismissed for thirty (30) days; the
liquidation ol the other Party for any reason; or the appointment of a
receivet to tuke charge of the other Party’s affairs, provided such
appointment remains undischarged for thirty (30) days. Such termination
of the provisions of this Agrecment shall not affect obligations which
accrued prior to the elTective date ol such termination.

(iv})  Exclusion of either PParty from participation in the Medicare or
Mcdicaid programs or conviction of either Party of a felony.

(v)  Either Party’s loss or suspension of any certification, license,
accreditation (including TJC or HFAP accreditation, as applicable), or
other approval necessary to render patient care scrvices.

ARTICLE IV.

Non-Exclusive Relationship

This Agreement shall be non-cxclusive. either Party shall be fice to enter into any other
similar arrangement at any time and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting the
right of either Party to affiliate or contract with any other hospital, nursing home, home health
agency, school or other entity on either a limited or general basis while this Agreement is in
effect. Neither Party shall usc the other Party's namc or marks in any promotional or advertising
material without lirst obtaining the written consent of the vther Parly. Notwithstanding the
foregoing however, the Recciving Hospitals shall be the “first choice™ and Transferring Facility
shall contact onc of the two Receiving Hospitals if Transferring Facility believes a patient
requires behavioral heaith acute care services in a hospital setting that the Transferring Facility is
unable to provide the paticnt, except (i) where a patient specifically requests the services of
another hospital or (iif) when the Receiving Hospital does not have the appropriate facilities.
services or stafl necessary to treat the respective patient, as communicated by Receiving Hospital
to Transferring Facility in the exclusion criteria provided to the Translerring Facility.

ARTICLE V.,

Certification and lnsurance

5.1.  Ligenses, Permits, and Certification. Each Party represents to the other that it and
all of its cmployees, agents and representatives possess and shall maintain in valid and current
status during the term of this Agreement all required licenses, permits and certifications enabling
each Party to provide the services set forth in this Agreement.
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5.2, Inswance. Each Party shall maintain during the term of this Agreement, at ity
sole cost and cxpense, peneral liability and protessional liability insurance in such amounts as
are reasonable and customary in the industiy (o guard against those risks which are customarily
insured against in connection with the operation of activities of comparable scope and size. A
written certificate of such coverage shall be provided upon request to each Party together with a
certification that such coverage may not be canceled without at least thirty {30) days notice 1o the-
other Party. Each Party shall notily the other Party within ten (10) days of any material change
or cancellation in any policy of insurance required to be secured or maintained by such Paity.

5.3. Notification of Claims. Each Party shall notify the other in writing, by certified
mail, of any action or suit filed and shall give prompt notice of any claim made against either by
any person or entity which may result in fitigation related in any way to this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI,

Indemnification

Each Party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other Party from and against any and
all manner of claims, demands, causes of action, liabilitics, damages, costs, and expenses
(including costs and reasonable attorncy’s fees) arising from or incident to the performance of
such Party’s duties hereunder, except for negligent or willful acts or omissions of the other Party.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, a Party’s obligations with respect to indemaification
far acts described in this anticle shall not apply to the extent that such application would nullify
any existing: insurance coverage af such Party or as to that portion of any claim of loss in which
insurer is obligated to defend or satisfy.

ARTICLE V1l

Compliance With Laws

At all times, both Pastics shall comply with all federal, state and local Jaws, rules and
regulations now in eltect or later adopted relating to the services to be provided hereunder and
that may be applicable (¢ the Parties including, but not limited to, laws, rules. and regulations
regarding confidentiality, disclosure and retention of patient records, such as the regulations
promulgated under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. A Party
shall promptly notify the other Party if it receives notice of any actual or alleged infraction,
violation, default or breach of the same that is related to this Agreement. Neither Transferring
Facility or Receiving Hospital, nor any employce, officer, direcior or agent thereof, is an
“excluded person” under the Medicare rules and regulations.

As of the date hereof and throughout the term of this Agrecment: (a) Transfecring Facility
represents, warrants and covenants to Receiving Hospital that Transferring Facility is licensed to
operate a general acute care hospital in lllinois and is a participating facility in Medicare and
Medicaid; and (b) Receiving Hospital represents. warrants and covenants (o ‘Transferring Facility
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that Receiving Hospital is licensed to operate a general acute hospital and . ncillary facilities
specializing in pediatric care and to participate in Medicare and Medicaid.

ARTICLE VIIL

Misceilancous

8.1.  Non-Referral of Patients. Neither Party is under any obligation to refer or transfer
patients to the other Party and neither Party will receive any payment for any patient referred- or
transferred to the other Party. A Parly may refer or transfer patients to any facility based on its
professional judgment and the individual needs and wishes of the patients.

8.2.  Relationship of the Parties. The Parties expressly acknowledge that in performing
their rcspective obligations under this Agreement, they are acting as independent contractors.
Transferring Facility and Hospilal are not and shall not be considered joint venturers or partncrs,
and nothing herein shall be construed to authorize either Party to act as general agent for the.
other. Neither Party, by virtue of this Agreement, assumes any liability for any debts or
obligations of either a financial or legal nature incurred by the other Party. [Cach Party shall
disclose in its respective dealings that they are separate entities.

8.3,  Notices. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed received when delivered personally or when deposited in the U.S.
mail, postage prepaid, sent registered or certified mail, return receipt requesled or sent via a
nationally recognized and receipted overnight courier service, to the Parties at their respective
principal office of record as set forth below or designated in writing from time to time. No
notice of a change of address shall be effective until received by the other Party:

To Receiving | lospitals:

Brian Lemon, CEO
MacNcal Hospital
3249 8. Qak Park Ave.
Berwyn, IL 60402

Fax No.:708-783-3001

William A. Brown, CEQ
Westlake Hospital

1225 West Lake Street
Melrose Park, 11, 60160
Fax No.: 708-938-7974

Copy t0: Vanguard Health Systems, |ne.
20 Burton Hills Boulevard, Suite 100
Mashville, Tennessee 37215
Attention: General Counsel
Fax No.: 6l §-665-6l97
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To Transferring Facility:

W. Peter Daniels, President/CEO
Elmhurst Mcmorial tospital

55 East Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, [L 60126

Fax No.: (331)-221-3716

8.4. = Assignment. Neither Party may assign its rights or delegate its obligations under
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other, except that either Party may assign
all or part of its rights and delegate all or part of its obligations under this Agreement to any
entity controlled by or under common control with such Party.

8.5.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of
the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and may not be amended or modified except
in a writing signed by both Partics. Al continuing covenants, duties, and obligations contained
herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

8.6. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and all of the rights, powers
and liabilities of the Parties hereunder shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the
State of lilinois; provided, however, that the conflicts of law principles of the State of !liinais
shall not apply to the extent that they would operate to apply the laws of another state.

8.7. Headings. The headings of articles and sections contained in this Agreement arc
for reference purposes only and will not afTect in any way the mcaning or interpretation of this
Agreement,

8.8.  Non-discrimination. Ncither Party shall discriminate against any individuals on
the basis of race, color, sex, age. religion, national origin, or disability in providing services
under this Agrcement.

8.9.  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance, shall be held to be invalid. illegal or unenforceable in any respect by any
court or other entity having the authority to do so. the remainder of this Agrecment, or the
application of such affected provision to persons or circumstances other than thosc to which it is
held invalid or unenforceable. shall be in no way affected, prejudiced or disturbed, and each
provision of this Agreement shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by
law.

8.10. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shali be binding upon, and shall inure
to the benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective successors and permitted assigns.
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8.11, Waiver. No failure by a Party to insist upon the strict performancc of any
covenant, agreement, temm or condition of this Agreement, shall constitutc a waiver of any such
breach of such covenant, agreement, term or condition. Any Party may waive compliance by the
other Party with any of the provisions of this Agreement if done so in writing. No waiver of any
provision shall be construed as a waiver of any other provision or any subscquent waiver of the
same provision.
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To Transferring ¥ acility:

W. Peter Daniels, President/CEO
Elmhurst Mcmorial Hospital

155 East Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, IL 60126

Fax No.: (331)-221-3716

8.4. Assignment, Neither Party may assign its rights or delegate its. obligations under
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other, except that either Party may assign
all or part of its rights and dclegate all or part of its obligations under this Agreement to any
entity controlled by or under common control with such Party.

8.5.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of
the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and imay not be amended or modified except
in a writing signed by both Partics, All continuing covenants, duties, and obligations contained
herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

8.6. Goveming Law. This Agreement shall be construed and all of the rights, powers
and liabilities of the Parties hereunder shali be determined in accordance with the laws of the
State of Illinois; provided, however, that the conflicts of law principles of the State of lllinois
shall not apply to the extent that they would operatc to apply the laws of another state.

8.7. Headings. The headings of articles and sections contained in this Agreement arc
for reference purposes only and will not afTect in any way the mcaning or interpretation of this
Agreement.

8.8. Non-discrimination. Ncither Party shall discriminate against any individuals on
the basis of race, color, sex, age. religion, national origin, or disability in providing scrvices
under this Agrecement.

8.9.  Sevembility. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance, shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect by any
court or other entity having the authority to do so. the remainder of this Agrecment, or the
application of such affected provision to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is
held invalid or unenforceable. shall be in no way affected, prejudiced or disturbed, and each
provision of this Agreement shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by
law.,

8.10. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure
to the benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective successors and permitted assigns. -
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8.11, Waiver. No failure by a Party to insist upon the strict performance of any
covenant, agreement, term or condition of this Agreement, shall constitutc a waiver of any such
breach of such covenant, agreement, term or condition. Any Party may waive compliance by the
other Party with any of the provisions of this Agreement i done so in writing. No waiver of any
provision shall be construed as a waiver of any other provision or any subscquent waiver of the
same provision.
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IN WITNESS WIHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agrecment to be executed

and delivered as of the day and ycar written above.

ELMHURST MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
By: @ . @@\f‘

Name: W. Peter Danicels

Title: President/ CEQ

VHS 0 ILLINOIS, INC. n/B/a MACNEAL
HOSPITAL.

By: FIZ' MJM

Name: 1 Sr2san [ Saton

Title: 2 AP

VHS WESTLAKE HOSPITAL, INC. 0/B/A
WESTLAKE HOSPITAL

By: wx&:‘w‘/ d;é‘w ;/y&..
Name: [J tLL 2747 A{u BK ow A}
Title: C['pef &ecu Ve 0FF/Z'({<._
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HosPITAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

THIS TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made and effective as of October 01,
2012 ("Effective Date"), is by and between VHS Westlake Hospital, Inc., a Delaware
corporation d/b/a Westlake Hospital ("Westlake”), and VHS of llinois, Inc., a Delaware
corporation d/b/a MacNeal Hospital (“MacNeal”). The parties are sometimes referred to
individually as a “Facility” and collectively as the "Facilities.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement governing the transfer of
- patients between the two facilities located in Hlinois (“State”).

WHEREAS, Westlake is not able to provide 24-hour/365 days per year Cardiology
Consulting/Cardiac  Surgery On-Call Services (“Services”) to patients seeking
emergency care at Westlake's Emergency Department;

Whereas, MacNeal has available 24-hour/365 days pér year Cardiology
Consulting/Cardiac Surgery On-Call Services in its Emergency Department;

WHEREAS, during those times that Westlake is unable to provide On-Call Cardiology
Consulting/Cardiac Surgery Services to its Emergency Department patients, MacNeal is
able and willing to accept such patients by way of transfer, as more fully set forth below;

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to specify the rights
and duties of each of the parties and to specify the procedure for ensuring the timely
transfer of patients between the facilities.

Now, THEREFORE, to facilitate the continuity of care and the timely transfer of patients
and records between the facilities, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Transfer of Patients. |If either facility believes that a patient of that facility
(“Transferring Facility”) requires the services of the other facility (“Receiving Facility”)
and the transfer is deemed medically appropriate, a member of the nursing staff of the
Transferring Facility (or the patient's attending physician) will contact the Receiving
Facility's admitting office or Emergency Department to arrange for appropriate treatment
as provided herein. All transfers between the facilities shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws and regulations, the standards of the Joint
Commission (“TJC") and/or Heaithcare Facilities Accreditation Program (*HFAP") and
any other applicable accrediting bodies, and reasonable policies and procedures of the
facilities. Neither the decision to transfer a patient nor the decision to not accept a
request to fransfer a patient shall be predicated upon arbitrary, capricious or
unreasonable discrimination or based upon the patient’s inability to pay for services
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HosPITAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

rendered by either facility. The Receiving Facility's responsibility for the patient’s care
shall begin when the patient is admitted to the Receiving Facility.

2. Responsibilities of the Transferring Facility. The Transferring Facility shall be
responsible to:

(a)  Provide, within its capabilities, the medical screening and stabilizing
treatment of the patient before transfer.

(b)  Arrange for appropriate and safe transportation and care of the patient
during transfer in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

(©) Designate a person who has authority to represent the Transferring
Facility and coordinate the transfer of the patient from the facility.

(d)  Notify the Receiving Facility's designated representative before transfer to
confirm availability of appropriate facilities, services and staff hecessary to provide care
to the patient.

(e)  Before patient transfer, the transferring physician shall contact and secure
a receiving physician at the Receiving Facility who shall attend to the medical needs of
the patient and who will accept responsibility for the patient's medical treatment and
hospital care.

h Provide, within its capabilities, appropriate personnel, equipment and
services to assist the transferring physician with the coordination angd transfer of the
patient.

@) Provide, within its capabilities, personnel, equipment and life support
measures determined appropriate for the transfer of the patient by the transferring
physician. :

(h)  Forward to the receiving physician and the Receiving Facility a copy of
those portions of the patient's medical record that are available and relevant to the
transfer and continued care of the patient, including without limitation: records relating to
the patient's condition, observations of signs or symptoms, preliminary diagnosis,
treatment provided, results of any tests and, with respect to a patient with an emergency
medical condition that has not been stabilized, a copy of the patient’s informed consent
to the transfer or physician certification that the medical benefits of the transfer outweigh
the risk of transfer. If all necessary and relévant medical records are not available at
the time the patient is transferred, then the Transferring Facility shall forward the
records as soon as possible.

2
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HosPITAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

(i) Transfer the patient's personal effects, including without limitation money
and valuables, and information related to those items.

1)) Provide the Receiving Facility any information that is available concerning
the patient's coverage or eligibility under a third party coverage plan, Medicare or
Medicaid, or a health care assistance program established by a county, public hospital,
or hospital district.

(k) Notify the Receiving Facility of an estimated time of arrival for the patient.

(3] Provide for the completion of a certification statement, summarizing the
risk and benefits of the transfer of a patient with an emergency medical condition that
has not been stabilized, by the transferring physician or other qualified personnel if the
physician is not physically present at the facility at the time of transfer.

(m) Acknowledge any contractual obligations and comply with any statutory or
regulatory obligations that might exist between a patient and a designated provider.

(n)  Recognize the right of a patient to request a transfer to the care of a
physician and hospitai of the patient’s choosing.

(o) Recognize the right of a patient to refuse consent to treatment or transfer.

(p) Complete, execute and forward a memorandum of transfer form to the
Receiving Facility for every patient who is transferred.

(q)  Establish policies and/or protocols for (i) maintaining the confidentiality of
the patient's medical records in accordance with applicable state and federal law and (ii)
the inventory and safekeeping of any patient valuables sent with the patient to the
Receiving Facility.

3. Responsibilities _of the Receiving Facility. The Receiving Facility shall be
responsible to:

(@)  Confirm with the Transferring Facility, as promptly as possible, that the
Receiving Facility has available beds and appropriate facilities, services and staff
necessary to treat the patient and that the Receiving Facility has agreed to accept
transfer of the patient. The Receiving Facility shall respond to the Transferring Facility
immediately after receipt of the request to transfer a patient with an emergency medical
condition or in active labor.

(b) Provide, within its capabilities, appropriate personnel, equipment and
services to assist the receiving physician with the receipt and treatment of the patient

3
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HOSPITAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

transferred, maintain a call roster of physicians af the Receiving Facility and provide, on
request, the names of on-call physicians to the Transferring Facility.

() Reserve appropriate beds, facilities and services for patients being
transferred from the Transferring Facility who have been accepted by the Receiving
Facility and a receiving physician, if deemed necessary by a transferring physician,
unless the Receiving Facility needs them for an emergency.

(d)  Designate a person who has authority to represent and coordinate the
transfer and receipt of patients into the facility.

(e)  When appropriate and within its capabilities, assist with the transportation
of the patient as determined appropriate by the transferring or receiving physician. -

(f) Provide the Transferring Facility with a copy of the medical records of the
patient that were generated at the Receiving Facility, if the Receiving Faclility returns the
patient to the Transferring Facility.

(@)  Maintain the confidentiality of the patient's medical records in accordance
with applicable state and federal law.

(h)  Establish policies and/or protocols for (i) maintaining the confidentiality of
the patient's medical records in accordance with applicable state and federal law, (i) the
receipt of patients into the facility, and (iii) the acknowledgment and inventory of patient
valuables transported with patients.

(i Provide for the return transfer of patients to the Transferring: Facility when
requested by the patient or the Transferring Facility and ordered by the patient's
attending or transferring physician, if the Transferring Facility has a statutory or
regulatory obligation to provide health care assistance to the patient and, if transferred
back to the Transferring Facility, comply with Section 2.

G Upon request, provide to the Transferring Facility and patient current
information concerning the Receiving Facility's eligibility standards and payment
practices. :

(k) Acknowledge any contractual oblig'ations and comply with any statutory or
regulatory obligations that might exist between a patient and a designated provided.

)] Complete, execute, and return the memorandum of transfer form to the
Transferring Facility.

4. Billing. Al charges incurred with respect to any services performed by either
facility for patients received from the other facility pursuant to this Agreement shall be

4
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HospPITAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

fto  Westlake: With copy to:
Westlake Hospital Vanguard Health Systems, Inc.
1225 Lake Street 20 Burton Hills Bivd., Ste. 100
Melrose Park, IL 60160 Nashville, Tennessee 37215
Attention; Chief Executive Officer Attn: General Counsel
Facsimile: 708.838.7974 Facsimile: 615.665.6197

Email Address: whrown@westlakehosp.com  Email: generalcounsel@vanguardhezlth.com

If to MacNea):
3249 South Oak Park Avenue
Berwyn, IL 60402
Attn:  Chief Executive Officer
Facsimile No.: 708.783.3489
Email Address: ssteiner@macneal.com

or to such other persons or places as either party may from time to time designate by
written notice to the other.

15.  Waiver. A waiver by either party of a breach or failure to perform hereunder shall
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or failure.

16. Captions. The captions contained herein are used solely for convenience and
shall not be deemed to define or limit the provisions of this Agreement.

17.  Assignment; Binding Effect. Neither facility may assign or transfer this Agreement
in whole or in part, or assign or delegate any of facility’s rights, duties or obligations
under this Agreement, in each case without the prior written consent of the other facility,
and any assignment, transfer or delegation by the facility without such consent shall be
null and void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either facility may assign this Agreement,
in whole but not in part, without the consent of (but with prior notice to) the other facility
in connection with the sale of all or substantially ali of the assets constituting the facility.
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and
their respective heirs, representatives, successors and permitted assigns.

18. Referrals. The parties acknowledge than none of the benefits granted either
facility hereunder are conditioned on any requirement that a facility make referrais to, be
in a position to make or influence referrals to, or otherwise generate business for the
other facility.

19.  Financial Obligation. Neither facility shall incur any financial obligation on behalf
of the other facility without the prior written approval of the other facility.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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HosPITAL TO HOSPITAL
TRANSFER AGREEMENT — CARDIOLOGY/CARDIAC SURGERY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the
day and year first above written. -

VHS WESTLAKE HOSPITAL, INC.,
DIB/A Westlake Hospital

oy Witlien A orrnr—
Name: William A. Brown, FACHE
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date signed: Z/) ;/l:r

VHS OF ILLINOIS, INC.

D/B/A MacNeal Hospifal ; %_‘

Name: Scott Sgéiné?
Title: lnterin/)‘f’Chief Executive Officer

I

Date signed: . ?{é}ﬁi/{ /A

S

ATTACHMENT 19

B\
I\




TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement’), made and effective as of “/#/72~
2012 (“Effective Date"), is by and between VHS Westlake Hospital, Inc., a Delaware
corporation d/b/a Westlake Hospital (“Hospital”), and Bellwood Nursing Center LLC, an
lllinois corporation d/b/a Bellwood Nursing Center (“Facility”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement governing the transfer of
patients between from Facility to Hospital; both Hospital and Facility are located in
llinois (“State”).

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to: specify the rights
and duties of each of the parties and to specify the procedure for ensuring the timely
transfer of patients from.Facility to Hospital.

Now, THEREFORE, to facilitate the continuity of care and the timely transfer of patients
and records between the facilities, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Transfer of Patients. If Facility believes that a patient of Facility requires the
services of Hospital, and the transfer is deemed medically appropriate, a member of the
nursing staff of the Facility (or the patient's attending physician) will contact the
Hospital's admitting office or Emergency Department to arrange for appropriate
treatment as provided herein. All transfers between the facilities shall be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations, the standards of the
Joint Commission (“TJC") and any other applicable accrediting bodies, and reasonable
policies and procedures of the facilities. Neither the decision to transfer a patient nor
the decision to not accept a request to transfer a patient shall be predicated upon
arbitrary, capricious or unreasonable discrimination or based upon the patient’s inability
to pay for services rendered by either facility. The Hospital's responsibility for the:
patient’s care shall begin when the patient is admitted to the Hospital.

2.  Responsibilities of Facility. Facility shall be responsible to:

(a) Provide, within its capabilities, the medical screening and stabilizing
treatment of the patient before transfer.

(b}  Arrange for appropriate and- safe transportation and care of the patient
during transfer in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

(c) DeS|gnate a person who has authority to represent the Facility and
coordinate the transfer of the patient from the Facility.
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(d)  Notify the Hospital's designated representative before transfer to confirm
availability of appropriate facilities; services and staff necessary to provide care to the
patient.

(e)  Before patient transfer, the transferring physician (if any) shall contact and
secure a receiving physician at the Hospital who shall attend to the medical needs of
the patient and who will accept responsibility for the patient's medical treatment and

hospital care. -

4] Provide, within its capabilities, appropriate personnel, equipment and
services to coordinate the transfer of the patient.

- (@) Provide, within its capabilities, personnel, equipment and' life support
measures determined appropriate for the transfer of the patient by the transferring

physician.

(hy  Forward to the receiving physician and the Hospital a copy of those
portions of the patient's medical record that are available and relevant to the transfer
and continued care of the patient, lncludmg without limitation: records relating to the
patient's condition, observations of signs or symptoms, preliminary diagnosis, treatment
- provided, results of any tests and, with respect to a patient with an emergency medical
condition that has riot been stabilized, a copy of the patient's informed consent to the
transfer or physician certification that the medical benefits of the transfer outweigh the
risk of transfer. If all necessary and relevant medical records are not available at the
time the patient is transferred, then the Facility shall forward the records as soon as
possible.

(i) Transfer the patient’s personal effects, mcludmg w1thout limitation money
and valuables, and information related to those items.

) Provide the Hospital any information that is available concerning the
patient's coverage or eligibility under a third paity coverage plan, Medicare or Medicaid,
or a health care assistance program established by a county, pubhc hospital, or hospital
- district.

(k)  Notify the Hospital of an estimated time of arrival for the patient.

()] Provide for the completion of a certification statement, summarizing the
risk and benefits of the transfer of a patient with an emergency medical condition that
has not been stabilized, by the transferring physician. or other qualified personnel if the
physician is not physically present at the facility at the time of transfer.

(m)  Acknowledge any contractual obligations and comply with any statutory or
regulatory obligations that might exist between a patient and a designated provider.
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(n) Recognize the right of a patient to request a transfer to the care of a
physician and hospital of the patient's choosing.
(o)  Recognize the right of a patient to refuse consent fo treatment or transfer:

{p) Complete,_ execute and forward a memorandum of transfer form to the
Hospital for every patient who is transferred.

(q) Eétablish policies and/or protocols for (i) maintaining the confidentiality of
the patient's medical records in accordance with applicable state and federal law and (ji)
the inventory and safekeeping of any patient valuables sent with the patient to the

Hospital.

3 Responsibilities of the Hospital. Hospital shall be responsible to:

(a) Confirm with the Facility, as promptly as possible, that the Hospital has
available beds and appropriate facilities, services and staff necessary to treat the
patient and that the Hospital has agreed to accept transfer of the patient. The transfer of
the patient to the Hospital will be done in compliance with the Emergency Medical
Treatment and Active Labor Act ("EMTALA”), and will be carried out in accordance with
all applicable laws and regulations.

(b) Provide, within its capabilities, appropriate personnel, equipment and
services to assist the receiving physician with the receipt and treatment of the patient
transferred; maintain a call roster of physicians at the Hospital and provide, on request,
the names of on-call physicians to the Facility,

: (¢) Reserve appropriate beds, facilities and services for patients being

transferred from the Facility who have been accepted by the Hospital and a receiving
physician, if deemed necessary by a transferring physician, unless the Hospital needs
them for an emergency.

(d) Designate a person who has authority to represent and coordinate the
transfer and receipt of patients into the facility.

~ (e) When appropriate and within its capabilities, assist with the transportation
of the patient as determined appropriate by the transferring or receiving physician.

) | Provide the Facility with a copy of the medical records of the patient that
were generated at the Hospital, if the Hospital returns the patient to the Facility.

(9)  Maintain the confidentiality of the patient's medical records in accordance
with applicable state and federal law.

(h)  Establish policies and/or protocols for (i) maintaining the confidentiality of
the patient’s medical records in accordance with applicable state and federal law, (i) the
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receipt of patients into the facility, and (iii) the acknowledgment and inventory of patient
valuables transported with patients. -

(i) Provide for the return transfer of patients to the Facility when requested by
the patient' or the Facilty and ordered by the patient’s attending or transferring.
physician, if the Facility has a statutory or regulatory obligation to provide health care
assnstance to the patient and, if transferred back to the Facility, comply with Section 2.

(j) Upon request, provide to the Facility and patient current information
concerning the Hospital's eligibility standards and payment practices.

(k)  Acknowledge any contractual obligations and comply with any statutory or
regulatory obligations that might exist between a patient and a designated provided.

()] Complete, execute, and return the- memorandum of transfer form. ta the
Facility.

4. Billing. All charges incurred with respect to any services performed by either
facility for patients received from the other facility pursuant to this Agreement shall be
billed and collected by the facnhty providing such services directly from the patient, third
party coverage, Medicare or Medicaid, or other sources normally billed by that facility.
In addition, i is understood that the physicians or other professional providers that may.
participate in the care and treatment of the patient will bill profess:onal fees at usual and
customary charges. Each facility shail provide information in its possession to the other
facility and such physicians/providers- sufficient to enable them to bill the patient,
responsible party, or appropriate third-party payer.

5. Retransfer; Discharge. At such time as the patient is ready for transfer back to
the Facility or another health care facility or for discharge from the Hospital, in
accordance with the direction from the Facility and with the proper notification of the
patient's family or guardtan the: Hospital will transfer the patient to the agreed-upon
location. If the Hospital is to transfer the patient back to the Fac|||ty, the Hospital will be
responsible for the' care of the patient up until the time the patient is re-admitted to the

Facility.

6. Compliance with Law. Both facilities shall comply with all applicable federal and
state laws, rules and regulations, including without limitation those laws and regulations
governing the maintenance of medical records and confidentiality of patient information
as well as with all standards promulgated by any relevant accrediting agency. Each
party represents and warrants to the other party, that it is not an Ineligible Person. An
“Ineligible Person” is an individual or entity who: (i) is currently excluded, debarred,
suspended or otherwise insligible to partlcapate in the Federal health care programs or
in Federal procurement or non-procurement programs; or (ii) has been convicted of a
criminal offense that falls withini the range. of activities described in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-
7(a); but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared

ineligible.
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7. Responsibility; Insurance. The facilities shall each be responsible for their own
acts and omissions in the performance of their duties hereunder, and the acts and
omissions of each facility's own employees and agents. In addition, each party shall
maintain, throughout the term of this Agreement, comprehensive general and
professional liability insurance and property damage insurance coverage in amounts
reasonably acceptable to thé other party and shall provide evidence of such coverage

. upon request.

8. Term. The initial term of this Agreement (“Initial Term”) shall be for a period of
one year, commencing on the Effective Date. Thereafter, this Agreement shall
automatically be renewed for an additional period of one (1) vear unless either party
terminates this: Agreement. in accordance with the provisions set forth in paragraph 9
herein. To the extent that this Agreement is automatically renewed, each such renewal
term shall be upon the same terms and conditions of the immediate, preceding renewal
term.

9. Termination.

(@) Termination Without Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at
any time without cause by giving the other party at least 30 days prior written notice of
such termination (a “Without Cause Notice of Temination”).

(b) Termination for Breach: Either party may terminate this Agreement upon
breach by the other party of any material provision of this Agreement, provided that, to
effect such termination, the non-breaching party must give the breaching party at least
15 days pnor written notice of the termination (a “Breach Notice of Termination”) and
describe in such notice the breach claimed by the terminating party.

(¢) Immediate Termmination. Either facility may terminate this. Agreement
immediately by written notice to the other facility (an “lImmediate Notice of Termination”)
upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

(1) The other facility’s license in the State lapses or is denied, suspended,
revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or other
restriction;

(2) The other facility becomes debarred, excluded, or suspended, or if any
other event occurs that makes the other facility an Ineligible Person; o

(3) The other facility closes or ceases patient care operations to such an
extent that patient care cannot be carried out adequately:

(d)  Effective Date of Terminafion; Opportunity to Cure. The e_ffective_ date of

termination of this Agreement shall be (i) in the case of a termination pursuant to
Section 9(a), the date of termination specified in the Without Cause Notice of
Termination, provided that such date shall not be less than 30 days after the date such _
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Without Cause Notice of Termination is given, (ii) in the case of a termination pursuant
to Section 9(b), the date of termination specified in the Breach Notice of Termination,
provided such.date shall not be less than 15 days after the date such Breach Notice of
Termination is given, and (jii) in the case of a termination pursuant to Section 9(c), the
date on which the Immediate Notice of Termination is given. If a party terminates this
Agreement pursuant to either Section 9(a) or Section 9(c), the other party shall have no
rights to cure or contest the termination of this Agreement. If a party terminates this
Agreement pursuant to Section 9(b), the other party shall have the right to cure the
breach described in the Breach Notice of Termination prior to the effective date of
termination set forth in such notice, provided that, if the breach is not cured during such
period, this Agreement shall automatically terminate on the date of termination set forth
in the Breach Notice of Termination. :

(e) Effect of Termination. As of the effective date of termination of thls
Agreement, neither party shall have any further rights or obligations hereunder except
for rights and obligations accruing prior to such effective date of termination, or arising
as a result of any breach of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
provisions of this- Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement, regardless of the reason of such termination: Sections 4, 7, 8(e), and 12.

10. Disputes. In the event that there is any question regarding the interpretation or
implementation of this Agreement, the facilities agree to form a joint committee of three
persons from each facility, who shall meet and attempt to reach a mutually satisfactory
resolution of the issue within three business days of a request by either facility for such
meeting.

11. Entire Agreement; Modification. This Agreement contains the entire
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes
all prior agreements, oral or written, and all other communications between the parties
relating to such subject matter. This Agreement may not be amended or modified
except by mutual written agreement. Any reference to this Agreement shall include
each and every exhibit, each of which is fully incorporated into this Agreement where

referenced.

12.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws
of the State. The provisions of this Section shall survive expiration or termination of this
Agreement regardless of the cause of such termination.

13. Counterparts; Transmission by Electronic Means. This Agreement may be

executed in two or more counterparts, each and all of which shall be deemed an original
and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. This

Agreement, and any executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement; may

be transmitted by fax or e-mail, and delivery of an-executed counterpart of a signature
page to this Agreement by fax or. e-mail shall be effective as delivery of a manually
executed counterpart of this Agreement.
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14.  Notices. Any notice, demand or communication required, permitted or desired to
be given hereunder shall be deemed effectively given if given in writing (i) on the date
tendered by personal delivery; (ii) on the date received by facsimile or other electronic
means, (iii). on the date tendered for delivery by nationally recognized overnight courier,
or (iv) on the date tendered for delivery by United States mail, with postage prepaid
thereon, certified or registered-mail, return receipt requested, in any event addressed as
foliows: X

Ifto VHS Westlake Hospital, Inc.: With copy to:

‘ 1225 Lake Street , Vanguard Health Systems, Inc.
Melrose Park, IL 60160 20 Burton Hills Blvd., Ste. 100
Attention: Chief Executive Officer  Nashville, Tennessee 37215
Facsimile: 708.938.7975 Attn: General Counsel-~

Email: wbrown@westlakehosp.com.  Facsimile: 615.665.6197

Email:generalcounsel@vanguardhealth.com
If to \\mo& NWS"M QQAW

73 wood\ 'j:L. Kaf)lbu\
Ars N CNREL Naly W |
Facsimile No.: 0%~ SA1- § 240
Email Address: griv el @ e wbel AUrSng @Al LD

or to such other persons or places as either party may from time to time designate by
written notice to the other.

15.  Waiver. A waiver by either party of a breach or failure to perform hereunder shall
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or failure.

16.  Captions. The captions contained herein are used solely for convenience and
shall not be deemed to define or limit the provisions of this Agreement.

17.  Assignment: Binding Effect. Neither facility may assign or transfer this Agreement
in whole or in. part, or assign or delegate any'Of' facility's rights, duties or obligations
under this Agreement, in each case without the prior written consent of the other facility,
and any assignment, transfer or delegation by the facility without such consent shall be
null and void. Notwnthstandlng the foregoing, either facmty may assign this Agreement,
in whole but not in part, without the consent of (but with prior notice to)-the other facility
in connection with the sale of all or substantially all of the assets constituting the facility.
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and
their respective heirs, representatives, successors and permitted assigns.

18.  Referrals.. The parties acknowledge than none of the benefits granted either
facility hereunder are conditioned on any requirement that a facility make referrals to, be
in a position to make or influence referrals to, or otherwise generate business for the
other facility.
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT

19.  FEinancial Obligation. Neither facility shall incur any financial obligation on behalf
of the other facility without the prior written approval of the other facility.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the
day and year first above written.

VHS WESTLAKE HOSPITAL, INC.
D/B/A Westlake Hospital

Name WllhamA Brown FACHE

Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date signed:-, ‘f/;{_/a'. o ‘ e

BELLWOOD NURSING CENTER, LLC
D/B/A Bellwoad N_ursing Center

By: . -
Name: Mlchaelmdeli
Title: Administrator
Date signed: S/ [ /
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U I c UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
AT CHICAGO

Department of Neurosurgery (MC 799)
912 South Wood Street
Chicago, Illinois 60612

Ms. Pat Shehorn

Chief Executive Officer

Westlake Hospital

1225 West Lake Street

Melrose Park, IL 60160Dr. Brad Langer

April 14, 2011

Dear Ms. Shehorn:

Enclosed, please find the fully executed neurosurgical transfer agreement between Westlake
Hospital and the University of Illinois at Chicago Medical Center.

We look forward to working toward a long term relationship and please let me know if you
have any questions or need any further information.

Professorand He'\d e ‘
I
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-'ﬁ% University of flinois Medical Center

’ Changing medicine. For good.

UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS MEDICAL CENTER
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS
PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT

To facilitate the appropriate transfer and care of Neurosurgery patients, the University of Illinois
Medical Center, Chicago, Illinois, (UIMC) and Westlake Hospital (referring/transferring hospital)
hereby formally establish this patient transfer Agreement. As provided in this Agreement and in
accordance with its established policies and procedures, UIMC agrees to promptly admit patients
transferred from the referring hospital when medically appropriate. The referring hospital agrees to
admit patients who are transferred back from UIMC for continuing care.

In order to provide for timely transfer, appropriate treatment and continuity of care, the referring
hospital further agrees:

1. The transfer is based on clinical need.

2. The transfer is not based on financial criteria.
3. The patient or patient designee gives written and informed consent to the transfer; in the event

this is not possible, as in the case of dire emergency, the transfer will be done in compliance
with the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (“EMTALA”).

4. In all transfers, arrangements shall be made by direct telephone contact between the attending
physician of the referring hospital (transferring physician) and an attending physician with
admitting privileges on the Medical Staff at UIMC (accepting physician). UIMC’S
Neurosurgery Transfer Center number is: 1-800-597-5970.

5. Transfers shall be based on the recommendation of the transferring physician who has assessed
the patient and determined that transfer is medically appropriate AND concurrence of the
accepting physician that transfer to a higher level of care/treatment is required and available at
UIMC.

6. The referring hospital shall be responsible for arranging required emergency life support
measures and stabilization of the patient’s condition prior to acceptance of the patient by
UIMC. '

7. The referring hospital shall arrange appropriate transportation of the patient to UIMC.

8. The referring hospital shall arrange for copies of all pertinent medical information, including
lab and x-ray studies, ECGs, emergency and ICU records and nurse’s progress notes and care
plan as well as demographic and financial data to be delivered to UIMC with the patient.

When a medical emergency does not allow time for such copies to accompany the patient, the
referring hospital shall provide UIMC an abstract of pertinent medical and other records
necessary to continue the patient’s treatment without interruption and identify the patient. This
abstract must accompany the patient or be transmitted electronically to arrive before the patient

and must include:

Current medical findings;

Diagnosis;

Brief summary of course of treatment of transferring hospital;

Pertinent demographic information, family or responsible party contacts and
insurance/payor information (of available and/or obtained by transferring hospital).
Emergency care or transfers should not be delayed, however, to collect this information.
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10.

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

UIMC shall not be responsible for personal effects, including money or other valuables that are
transferred with the patient until a receipt is signed for by a representative of UIMC.

UIMC retains the right, to the extent permitted by law, to decline acceptance of a transfer when
there are insufficient facilities or staff available, when the presence of the patient in the hospital
would be dangerous to other paticnts or staff, when the transfer is not necessary because the
referring hospital possesses the specialized services needed to stabilize the patient’s condition,
or when determined by.a UIMC physician that the transfer is not medically appropriate. Upon
receiving a transfer request, UIMC shall promptly confirm whether it will accept the patient for
transfer, and shall exercise its reasonable best efforts to provide for prompt admission of any
patients transferred pursuant to this Agreement.

Westlake Hospital will accept the patient in return when the patient’s UIMC attending
physician determines the patient is stabilized and all necessary procedures and diagnostic tests
have been completed or when the particular expertise initially required at UIMC is no longer
necessary. Once this determination has been made, Westlake Hospital agrees to accept the
return of the transferred patient within 48 hours of the notification, subject to bed.and staffing
availability.

This Agreement shall not be construed to create any partnership, joint venture, or agency
relationship between the hospitals. Each retains exclusive control over its own management,
assets and affairs. Neither Party assumes any liability for the debts or obligations of any
financial or legal nature incurred by the other Party in the Agreement. Charges for services
performed by either hospital or their medical staffs shall be collected by the entity or individual
providing the services.

Neither Party shall use the name of the other Party in any promotional or advertising material
unless review and written approval of the intended use shall first be obtained from the Party
whose name is used;

In entering into this Agreement, neither Party is acting to endorse or promote the services of the -
other Party. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting the rights of either
hospital to affiliate or contract with other hospitals, health care providers, organizations or
individuals.

Both hospitals shall take reasonable measures to ensure that the patient medical information
that is being transmitted prior to, in conjunction, or subsequent to the transfer is safeguarded
from inappropriate access, use or disclosure, in compliance with all applicable state and federal

laws, rules and regulations. ,

This Agreement shall be effective as of PTD\ { 1 la QD\ |

and shall be for an initial term of one year. This Agreement shall antomatically renew for an
additional year on each anniversary, unless a Party gives sixty (60) days notice in writing
before the anniversary. Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving
ninety (90) days notice in writing to the other. This Agreement shall automatically terminate if
either hospital (a) loses its legal authority to operate; (b) fails to maintain all legally required
certifications from applicable governmental and accrediting bodies; (c) fails to maintain full
eligibility to participate in or is excluded or suspended from participation in Medicare,
Medicaid or any other federal or state health care program; (d) is charged with or convicted of a
crime related to the provision of health care; or (e) makes a general assignment of its assets for
the benefit of creditors, is liquidated for any. reason or has a receiver appointed to take charge of
such Party’s affairs. '
All notices shall be sent by prepaid U.S. Mail (return receipt requested) and deéemed received
two days after mailing; or shall be sent by traceable courier service (e.g. FedEx or UPS) and
deemed received on the date of delivery, to the Parties at the addresses listed below, or to such
other addresses as a Party may.: designate by notice hereunder.

Neither Party may assign its rlghts hereunder without the prior written consent of the other
Party, except that either Party assign all or part of its rights or delegate all or patt of its
obligations hereunder to an entity controlled by or under commion control with such Party, or a
successor in interest to substantially all of the assets of such Party.
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19. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter
thereof, and may not be amended or modified except in a writing signed by both Parties.

20. Each Party shall, at its own cost and expense, obtain and maintain in force during the term of
this Agreement appropriate levels of general and professional liability insurance coverage, in
accordance with good business practice for similarly situated health care providers. Such
insurance shall be provided by insurance company/companies acceptable to the other Party and
licensed to conduct business in the State of Tllinois, as appropriate, or by an approptiately
designed and operated self-insurance program. Verification of insurance coverage shall be in
the possession of each Party at all times while this Agreement is in effect and shall be promptly
provided to the other Party upon request. In the event the form of irisurance held by a Party is’
claims made, such Party warrants and represents that it will purchase appropriate tail coverage
for claims, demands, or actions reported in future years for acts of omissions during the term of
this Agreement. In the event of insufficient coverage as defined in this Section, or lapse of
coverage, the non-breaching Party reserves the right to immediately and unilaterally terminate
this Agreement: _

21. At all times, both parties shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws, rules and
regulations now in effect or later adopted relating to the services to be provided hereunder and
that may be applicable to the parties, including the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active
Labor Act (“EMTALA™), state and local emergency medical treatment statutes, rules and
regulations and the laws, rules and regulations regarding confidentiality, disclosure and
retention of patient records, including the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
of 1996 and the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto (“HIPAA™). A Party shall promptly -
notify the other Party if it receives notices of any actual or alleged infraction, violation, default
or breach of the same.

22, Neither Party is under any obligation to refer or transfer patients to the other Party, nor will
ncither Party receive any payment for any patient referred to the other Party. A Party may refer
or transfer patients to any facility based on the professional judgment of the treating physician
and the individual needs and wishes of the patients.

23. Each Party shall, in performing its obligations under this Agreement, provide patient care
services in accordance with the same standards as services provided under similar
circumstances to all other patients of such Party, and as required by Federal and State laws and
Medicare/Medicaid certification standards.

24. Neither Party shall discriminaté against any individuals on the basis of race, color, sex, age,
religion, national origin, sexual orientation, marital status, or disability in providing services

under this Agreement.
FOR: BY:
Westlake Hospital A UIMC
1225 W. Lake Street University of Illinois Medical Center
Melrose Park, [L. 60160 1740 West Taylor Street, Suite 1400

Chicago, IL. 60612
UIMC NEUROSURGERY TRANSFER CENTER
PHONE NUMBER: 1-800-597-5970

R ﬂﬂfaﬁwuﬁuéiua_‘

Pat Shehorn = * William Chamberlin, MD

Chief Executive Officer Chief Medical Officer
I3/ s0 s  Hlelit
Date ' ' Date. '

WOlrfs01\sharedilLegal Affairs\RMC\2008\Agreements\UIMCC Patiem! Tx Agreement 12-14-07-CLEANCOPY-REVISIONS-June 2008.
FINAL doc
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.LE,.L'T'I’E:R OF RAGREEMENT
, _A;mng
- L Rush-Presbyteriﬁn—St.Lu]ge's Medical Center
Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Cénter
And
Westlake Hospital

Rush-Presbyterian St. Luke's Medical Center and Advocate Illinois Masonic
| Medical Center are recognized and designated by the Illinois Department of :
Public Health as Level III hospitals providing obstetrical and neonatal

carg. . The Ill:.no:.s Depar..ment ‘of Public Health has also designated ‘Rush

and Advocate as a Reglonal Co—Per.natal Center.

Rush .2nd A.dvoc:ate _are the responsible agents for the adm.m.stration and
mplementatlon of 'the Illinois Department of Public Health's Peri natal
1th Care Program within Regional Perinatal Network #6.

el
O

isistent with their required respons:.b..l:.tles, Rush and Advocate -

es:.abllsh this Letter of Agreement with Westlake Hospital

1) indicating the conditions of affiliation of Westlake Hospital
recognizing Westlake as a Level II Perinatal Facility consistent

2)
with the conditicns 'specifi'ed for such facilities in the

Pt i e —

Regionaiized Perinatal Health Care Code.

»mplementatmn of. tb.ls Letter of Ag:reament is the respans:.blllty of the

Co-Perinatal Center s Co-D:.rectors “and Ivetwork Adm:.m.s’trator For-the~
Pennatal Center and the Chalrpe’-sons of the Departments of Pedi atrics and
Obstetrics and Gynecology and Chief Executive Office @or his/her

representative for Westlake Hospital.

1 | | o
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with the Adopted Rules of the Illinois

Th-s agreement is con51stent :
Regionaiized'Perinatal Health Care Code (77

.wartment o: Public- Health,
31n01s Administrative Code 640).

-
]

P
{
|2

1. Introduction: 'Organization'of-the Co~Perinatal Network

The Co~Perinatal Network as curfently constituted contains seven Level
II hospitals; five Level II with extended capabilities hospitals, four
Level III hospitals, one Level 0 hospital and one administratiVe Co-"
Perinatal Center at Rush—Presbyterlan-St Luke s Medical Center at
1653 West Congress Parkway, Suite 501 Kldston, Chlcago, IL, 60612.

uEach hospital has obligations and _responsibilities consistent with its
_level of desmgnatlon ‘under the Reglonallﬁed Perlnatal Health Care

o ks T

o n a1 ey o

Code.

The regional reéponsibilities of.the“CoePerinatal Center
; . additionzlly include monitoring compliance with the Regiohalizad
) Perinatal Health Care Program, facilitating the provision of 0
... Perinatal care and education in the Co-Perinatal Network and
- : maintaining Rush’s status as a univgrsity affiliated facility.

e

II  RUSH AND ADVOCATE OBLIGRATIONS

A. Communications

, 1. Will provide 24-hour obstetrical'and neonatal "hotline"®
T telephones in the labor and Delivery and Special Care. -
Nursery Unlts oz Rush and Advacate for COﬂSUltaLan,

L i 771 g e A,
Y T At i v s

*eferral or Lransfer/transport oF perxnata; patlanua

Will prdvide,tha-"hotlihe" télephone numbers for Rush and

Z.
Advocate and the telephone nu@bé:é of the Network hospitals

to Westlake Hospital.

N

Lol “siewieeeo. . ATTACHMENT 19. ...
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Will-maintain facsimile capability in the Labor and Delivery
and the Special Care Nursery units of Rush and Advocate.

Will provide Westlake Hospital with the facsimile numbers
for the administrative offices of the Co-Perinatal Center at
Rush~Presbyter1an—St Luke’s Medlcal Center and the Network

hospltals

Will require timely and reqular communication by telephcne
and10r¢1étter‘to*referringfphysicians'regarding'maﬁagemEnt"

--and-outcome of their patients who _were transferred or .

transported. to Level III hospitals in the Co-Perinatal
Network. ‘

Consultation/Transport/Transfer/ﬁeturn Transport

Wikl provide-Westlzke HospitalwithTrequivements—for;

transport or transfer and eligibility for consultation, and
raturn transport consistent with the Regionaliéed Perinatal

Hezlth Care Code.

Within the limits of its resources, Rush and Advocate will .

accePt'éll:médiCally eligible obstetric and

4mneonatal“patients;uﬁ&u:ed“fromuWestlake"HospitalhmeWwwﬁww_hu

'II

N A e

s,
i
LT
1
' 3.
4,
5.
i
]
ot
il
f "
- L
2 -
L L ™
R
..
4.
______ 4 Y
REEEI
i
Ia

e Wﬂ-?i——r-equlr-e“thn.tfm “h-heyel

Perinatal Network 51mllarly accepts medlcally ellg_ble

patlents. ;

Will_requife that the Level III hospital in the Co—Perinétél*

-hospltal in. the»Co— ___;F@“_;:

TR R . -
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et

Network which first receives a requgﬁt_fqr transfer or’
transport from Westlake Hospital will either accept a
medically -eligible patient. If ﬁnable to accept, that Level
IIT unit will assist in arranging admission to another Co-
Perinatal Network Level III IaClllty or adm1551on to another

Perinatal Network Level III facxllty

Will require that the Level III facility handling a
transport requést facilitate the transfer or transport
wdthin'an.appropriate.time‘intervalr

s e vt et sor” e s

WYl requlrewthat~dec151ons regardlng transport and mode of '

transport for a necnatal patlent be made by the Level III
Hospital’s Neonatologlst in collaboration with the referring

phy5101an.

Will reguire that decisions regarding transfer/transport and

O

mode of tranéﬁﬁif“ﬁ?"trﬁﬁs*ér"zo**au”abstet*rcaI“patrent~be~"*~w“~

. made by the Level IIT Hospitzl’s Maternal-Fetel Medicine
Physician in collaboration with the referrlng’phy51c13n.

Once a decision is reached for transfer or transport, forms
for maternal/neonatal transport data will be generated and
maintained at Rush and Advocate for use in abstracts for =

- “-uﬁMorbldlEywandﬂﬂbrtallqy»REVlEW : e e——— e
Themﬁeve£4§E§wL;“ "szumllwretqrn.t:anspprt patlents back

. to Westlake Hospltal when’ medlcally fea51ble w1th phy51c1an

to phys;cxan consu1tatlon.

akx
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C. Morbidity and Mortality Reviews

1.Will conduct quarterly joint Mortality and Morbidity

reviews for Westlake Hospital.

2.Reviews will be attended by a Maternal-Fetal Medicine Physician

and Neonatologist from Rush or Advocate, as well as the Perinatal

Administrator, Perinatal Educator or Maternal Fetal Medicine

Educator.
"3TRush“o£~Advdcaté¥cé-PeinatalMcénterﬂp:epg;§§wg§§gmgp;;;gggﬁman@
makes them available to Westlake Hospital one week in advance - :

" of the Mortality and Mbrbidity Review.

4w-; , 4.Fetal deaths, neonatal deaths, maternal deaths and all
3’3 transports or transfers are reviewed at Rush or Advocate. All
= deaths and Selected HWorbidity caves zre-incindeddinmthe formsl

review. Westlzke Hospital may request that any Maternsl or

Reonatal case be reviewed.

D. Data Reporting and Quality Monitoring

1. Will maintain a network database that will allow for the
e e w~munaxer1ng*andmevaluat1on of_car:e.a.n_tne_Co«_ar.lnai:al,_..,.w i oo

Network.
2. Wil provvde quarterly network statlstlcs and quarteriy‘mwwhumwwww"
. statistics for Westlake Hospltal
E. Regionél Perinatal Advisory Committee (ThE”Regionél Perinatal
—" | | 5
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-:rL-f~—"wwdeveinpment~0f~sténdards~whan~requestad.

Management Group)

Will conduct gquarterly network advisory meetings providing
network hospitals the oppdrtunity'to participate in the
administration, evaluation and plénning of the Co-Perinatal
Network. '
F. Outreach and Educational Services
1. Will, in collaboration witq Westlake Hospital establish and
- provide educatiovnal -outreach services for physicians, -nurses,

~respiratory .therapy and.other staff as deemed necessary.

2. Will conduct needs assessments to determine Neonatal and
‘Maternal department educational priorities. ’

3. Will provide patient management protocols to assist in

-

4. Will make available Network Education Programs including
on~site Special Care education for nurses at Rush when

available.

G. Regional Quality Council

o <b b s

b smatie Aasners e o

s o 05 e e hs

T ———

Will provide a Regional Quality Council in accordance with

::37M"'Zwﬁfgu=~ncgﬁenakkzedeEexlnatalﬁaealtthare-Codawand conduct_quartﬂrly_*NNNM

Ry

meetings. The Chalr of the Council. w1ll be from a Network
facility. Goals and projects for the Council will be created,

reviewed and.aCCOmplished through the efforts of all Netwark

facilities.
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IIT. Westlake Hospital OBLIGATIONS:

A'

Communications

1.

Will provide a designated physician for the program to
assume . primary responsibility for initiating, supervising
and rev;ew1ng the plan for management of depressed infants'

-

°1n the dellvery room.

T S U -
S .

Will maintain facs1mile capabillty in the Labor and Dellvery
and therNursery units of Westlake Hospital.

Consultation/Transport/Transfer/Return Transfer

e

e ey e e b s 5 .
At WV

‘WiII"ﬁfﬁVidé”*imeIy*cammunicatiuns*by“te1eph0ne~regarding*—~———ﬂ-«

maternal and neonatal conditions requlfing consultation with

maternal-fetal or neonatal subspecialists. Certain
conditions will require transfer or transport (See Appendix

\\AII ) .

Will provide intermal review of cases to ensure compliance

~wW':L‘l:h--::equ:x.re.mer.mts_.:Eor«,.,cms\1.1.1:;—11:.:11:1_amzl/.cz.r: tran3¢er/t“anspn:rﬁ~wvnu

of maternal and neonatal conditions.

A o g ey

T
R e G

Will aCCEPt retum transports accordlng to the guldellnes of
the state of Illln01s Perinatal Rules and Regulations and

this Letter of Agreement.

L U
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v | 8
Mm{ﬂ | . Will forward a copy of the Electronic Birth Certificaté
o  Report and Perinatal Report to the administrative office of
the Co-Perinatal Center by the fifteenth day after the

ClOSlng month.

Will maiﬁtain aqlog of'any exception cases retained at

5.
Hospital for maternal or neonatal conditions outlined in
Appendix "A".
Will forward to the administrative offices of the Co-

"Perlnatal ‘Cefiter &all” infernatisn’ Feguested both- for the

- -purposes-of-conducting the Jﬂanda.t.ed..;ﬁ@?ﬁ%gﬂ_%tlpn...§.?—.«E§..__._:_._,l. -
visits and:éubSeqﬁéntly as.néeded“to facilitate periodic | ‘
monitoring of adherence to. the Regionalized Perinatal Health

Care dee,

Regional Perinatal Advisory Committee (The Regional Perlnatal

- ' MEnagement Group) and ReglonéT“Qu N oA 0(u1 55 s Yol I i

Will participate in the administration, evaluation and

-planning activities of ‘the Co—Perinatal Network through the
o-Perlnatal Network Advisory Commlttee and Regional Quality

1.

Council.

< -2u-em-Will--identify-a..representative-Lfor-obstetrics, pediatrics, -, .

nursing and a&ministration to serve as members to the Co-

e Ve m r e

e “efinatalaNetwnszAdv1saty Ccmmlttee and _two. represenuatlves -

T

to serve as membars of the Reglonal Quallfy Council.

— : R '
N T T ;,,4...AT4T..ACHMENT,19,

//;

o v e e mhkian b o e e ek ko a e A i -

et I i . L T




'F. oOutreach and Educational Services

Will provzde the administrative offices of the Co—Perlnatal

1.

' Center & written outllne of the expected role of the CO-'
Perinatal Center in Westlake Hospital’s educational
activities. ' '

2. Will develop and provide the administrative offices of the

Co-Perinatal Center annually a listing of in-house medical, .
nufsing and We&lth professitnal educational activities -
-provided by -their: hospital for their obstetric and neonatal

staff.

' G. Support Services and Resource Regquirements
Will maintain suuport servzces and Resaurce Requirements as

LT outllned in the "Regicnzlized- Parlnaual ‘Health-Care- Code..- (77
IllanlS Aﬁﬁiﬁig“?ﬁfiVE“CEEET“SéEti”ﬁ‘SEO‘a3r“as anoliﬁabie

v

H. Counseling,‘Home Nursing Pollow-up and Referral

1. Will provide information, counseling and’raferral services

to parants or potential parents or neonates with

handlcapplng conditions or developmental disabhilities upon
*%mw“theﬂadentiﬁ&cationhaiwthemhandlcapplngAcondltlons‘and“*fauwwggmww“,

developmental disabilities to assist in obtalning

T I TR
- A A I R e el e ot

s “ab¢litatlonfwrehapllltatlcnbwand 5pec1al educatlon S

SEI‘V’.’LCGS

2. Will append to this agreement a:listing of “any information,
counseling and referral services available within the local

Tt o R MATTACHMENT 19 .
. o : . . //% : e o ..

e s e s e = m e e 4 amE Ak e b e o e e e o s ] @ i e A o




10

- community and the region for parents.and potential parents
- of neonates with handicapping conditions or developmental

© disabilities. (Appendix "B¥)

Will outline medical and home nursing follow-up and referral -
services,- and méchanism-for compliance with established
reportihg and follow-up requirements of Illinois Department

of Public Hezlth.

LT

I. Local Hezlth Departménts and Community Resources
1.....5hall establish .and follow proceduresmﬁor referral to “
appropriate state and local educational serv1ce agenc;es of o

children having an identified handicapping condition oxr

de#elopmental-disability requiring evaluation and assessment

under such agencies. These procedures shall include a

“wi. h-prpvision for obtaining parental consent prior to the -

retease ol infurmetion—to—theaporoprizte—state—and-tocel

educational service agencies.

2. Will append to this agreement a listing of local health
departments and community resources as well as expectations
for referrals to Child and Family Connections (Appendix .
wgmy C

e s s fS b Ao b A et b o i e e e A e Sl AR Tt 7 S i 1B e e M s i

Jd. _Maternity Service Plan

et .
ey = RN

v e T .

Rl st
AT ™ vl TR

_Wlll submlt 2 copy of its Maternity and NEonatal Fervices”
Plan and upvdates-as_they become available to the
administrative offices of the Co-Perinatal Center.
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"o, TERMS OF AGREEMENT
. A. This agreement becomes ‘valid upon abproval by the Illinois

Department of Publlc Health. This agreement will remain valid
until such time as it is renegétiated or terminated as

hereinafter provided.

It will be reviewed annually-Ehd:inlconjunctibn with the periodic
level of care redesignation process of the Illinois Department of

Public Health.

- ‘Either Rush or-Advocate or Westlake Bospital -may-initiate

8.
- discussiong to make changes to this agreement w1th 90 days _
notice. Changes renegotiated must be submltted to the lllln01s
Department of Public Health and approved by the Illinois
Department of Public Health prior to implementation.
mh}
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. o 12
A _ ‘
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APPENDIX “A" To Letter of Agreement for Westlake Hospital

] MATERNAL CONDITIONS RECOMMEDMI\IG CONSULTATION WITH A
LY MATERNAL-FETAL MEDICINE SUBSPECIALIST

1. Intrauterine growth retardahon
2. Prior neonatal death-
3. Two or more previous preterm deliveries <34 weeks
4, A.single preterm delivery <30 weeks
5. Birth of 2 neonate vnth serious complications resulung in a handicapping
condition '
. 6, Recurrent spontaneous abortion or fetal demise
7. Family history of genetic disease. o v
8. Achve chronic medical problems inciuding
Cardiovascular disease — Class I and Class I
Autoimmune disease :
Reactive airway disease requiring treatment with corticosteroids
Seizure disorder
Controlled hyperthyrmdmm on replacament therapy
Hypertension controlled on a single medication
Idiopathic thrombocytopenia purpurs
Thromboembolic disease
_ Malignant disease
. | | Renal disease with functional iinpaim'xe.nt
: 9. Selected obstetric comphcanons which present prior to 34 weeks:
Polyhydramnios
Oligohydramnios
Pre-Eclampsia/PTH
Congenital viral digease
Maternal surgical conditions
Suspected fetal abnormality
Isoimmunization with antibody titers greater than 1:8
. Antiphospholipid syndrome
DES exposure
Insulin dependent diabetes C]ass A.2 and B

R e ... ATTACHMENT 19.
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.1 MATERNAL CONDITIONS REQUIRING REFERRAL TO AMATERNAL FETAL

y SUBSPECIALIST . SUBSEQUENT PATIENT MANAGEMENT AND SITE OF
: DELIVERY SHALL BE DETERMINED BY MUTUAL COLLABORATION

BETWEEN THE PATIENT’S PHYSICIAN AND MATERNAL-FETAL MEDICINE

SPECIALIST
1. Selected chronic medical canditions with a known increase in perinatal

Cardiovascular disease with functional impairment - Class III or greater
Respiratory failure requiring mechanical ventilation

Acute coagulopathy '

Intactable seizures

Coma -

Sepsis

Solid organtra.nsplant _

Active immune disease requiring corticostercid therapy

Unstable reactive mrway disease

Renal disease requiring dialysis or 2 serum creatinine >1.5mg%

Active hyperthymxdxsm

Bypertension which is unstable or requires more than one medication to
comntral - v
Severe hemoglobinopathy

%
I

. _ 2. Selected obstetric camplications which present prior to 32 weeks
B, Gestation with >2 fetuses
Twin gestation complicated by fetal demise
Discordancy or maldevelopment of one fetus
Twin-Twin transfision
Preterm labor unrespongive to first line tocolytics
PROM

Severe Pre-Ecl anipsia
Isoimmunization with need for imtrauterine transfission

3. Insulin dependent diabetes mellitus Classes C,D,R ForH

4. Suspected congenital anomaly réqumﬁg an invasive fetal procedure, neonatal
surgery or postnatal medical intervention to preserve life such as fetal hydrops,

s pleursal-effusion; and-ascites, persistent fetal. a:rhythmm,.ma]or.argan system

malfm'mauon-malﬁmchon or genetic condition,

— T C  .ATTACHMENT 19"
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o, APPENDIX “A” To Letter of Agreement for Westlake Hospital

NEONATAL CONDITIONS REQIMNG CONSULTATION WITH A
NEONATOLOGIST.

1. Premature birth with gestation <32 weeks but > or equal to 30 weeks
| 2. Infants with birthweights between 1200-1500 grams
3. Infants with APGAR scores at ten minutes of 5 or less
4. Stable infants identified as having handicappmg conditions or developmental
disabilities which threaten subsequent development

' NEONATAL CONDITIONS REQUIRING TRANSFER UPON RECOMMEDATION
OF THE PERINATAL CENTER

1. Premature birth <30 weeks

2. Birth wengbt < or equal to 1250 grams

3. Infants requmng ventilation beyond 6 hours of

4, Infants who require a sustained inhaled oxygen concentration in excess of 50%
in order to maintain & transcutaneous or arterial oxygen saturation greater than or

equal to 92%.
5. Infants with significant congenital heart disease associated with cyanosis,

congestive heart failure or impaired peripheral blood flow
4 6. Infants with major congenital malformations requiring immediate
camprehenswe evaluation or neonatal surgery.
7. Infants re.qmrmg neonatal surgery with general anesthesia
8. Infants with sepsis, unrespansive to therapy, associated with persistent shock or
other organ system failure _
9. Infants with uncontrolled seizuzes
10, Infants with stupor, coma, hypoxic ischemic encephalopathy Stage T or
greater
11. Infants reqmnng double-volume exchange transfusion.
12. Infants with metabolic derangement persisting after initial correction therapy
13. Infants identified as having handicapping conditions which threaten life for
which transfer can improve outcome. ' "
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Tenet Healthcare Corporation
Dallas, Texas

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Tenet Healthcare Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Juternal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on

our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the
company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2012 of the Company and our report dated February 25, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements and financial statement schedule.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Dallas, Texas
February 25, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Tenet Healthcare Corporation
Dallas, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tenet Healthcare Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, other
comprehensive income,changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2012. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Tenet Healthcare Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material

respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal contro] over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 25, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control

over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Dallas, Texas
February 25, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Dollars in Millions

December 31, December 31,

ASSETS 2012 2011
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............cccoeeeeveccrrerannnne. et baebesa Rt e ena A £ nternsn s et et s e st $ 364 $ 113
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts ($401 at December 31, 2012
and $397 at December 31, 20T 1) oo feeeeseeeeeeesesssssas e sssses e seenssssssssss s seesssseesssese s 1,345 1,278
TVENtOries OF SUPPLIES, AL COSL..vieerrrriierirriieeiriiesriesserressrierosisersstsrveesssssesserrassenssereesssssssssssssesensassnns 153 161
TNCOIMIE TAX TECEIVADIE ....coeett ittt ettt r s sea s a st ss b sttt se s e et nm et 7 7
Current portion of deferred income taxes... . 354 418
Assets held for sale ........ccooovccevcercnenccnns 0 2
Other current assets....... 458 378
TOLAL CUFTEIE ASSELS...........c.oierrecereieer ettt ste e et eesessesaet st ss e seesesetabebabasessnsessseasnrensrstanasen 2,681 2,357
Investments and Other ASSELS.........c.ccooi ittt ettt et eaen et et bee st bbb aeaea 162 156
Deferred income taxes, net of currcnt portlon ......................................................................................... 342 374
Property and equipment, at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization
($3,494 at December 31, 2012 and $3,386 at December 31, 2011) ..o 4,293 4,350
GOOAWILL....c.iieeieerirtei ettt ese sttt se e n s et ees s at s e esensan e s sre e s e e nbsse b s b s n s e et am e s s vssn st as b snsren 916 736
Other intangible assets, at cost, less accumulated amortization ($426 at December 31, 2012
and $360 at December 31, 2011 ). riiecrcirireiesee e sesssse e ssesssessssssessassescessssssessensecssssces 650 489
TOLA ASSEES ........oooovveveeeereceeeieeeeee s sen e senesens et $ 9,044 $ 8462
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of IONE-LETTN dEDL ..........cccevvieeenieereieeseisitessesessircsssee s bsesaersessessest st essnsssenssnsenes $ 94 b 66
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt see e e et eaas st asten e ees ettt e eeesee s nse s 722 760
Accrued compensation and benefits............... 415 376
Professional and general iabifity TESEIVES ......c..uviiuriemncemmmriner s s sssss s s 64 75
Accrued Iterest PAYADIE. ..o st et eeraees 125 112
Accrued legal SELIEMENT COSLS .....ccovirrireiieiereicieicreeereinnree st e reessresastassecsereesssescanpeserensacen 8 64
Other CUITENt HADITIHIES .....c.voivirerercr et cnbs ettt sest ettt sa s b ees e snta e e nnnnns 335 362
Total current Habilities................ccoociireii ettt sr ettt nae s 1,763 1,815
Long-term debt, net of CUITENt POITION.........cveeveormieresieicoereanetneesessrsaese it s bsssesssseserecbntanssssmsesassns 5,158 4,294
Professional and general Hability FESEIVES ..........coeovirmurmmiriensiesintreisseenrseeisesssessesssemsas st ss st e snesssesrasnns 292 337
Accrued legal SEtIEMENE COSES ..ot ceccie ettt ste e e e s ettt bat st ses bbb 2 -2
Other long-term liabilities 595 506
TOCAl TADIIGIES ...ttt et s e st sba s s sa et b e as s 7,810 6,954
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable noncontrolling interests in equity of consolidated subsidiaries..........ccocovvvoneccrircnicnnnes 16 16
Equity:
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.15 par value; authorized 2,500,000 shares; 345,000 of 7% mandatory
convertible shares with a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share issued at
DECemMDBEr 31, 20T 1 oot e vttt e b et st esereebesarebsntasae s erstcransrsereatnanas 0 334
Common stock, $0.05 par value; authorized 262,500,000 shares; 142,363,915 shares issued at
December 31, 2012 and 137,867,138 shares issued at December 31, 2011 ......cccoovvvrireerennene, 7 7
Additional paid-in CAPILAL ..........c..eeeeciriririeeririeeireceresarteastnsseses e tasssssssesesssessasasanbesstasssesesesssssronns 4,471 4,427
Accumulated other coOmMPrehensive 108S........ccvruresrinnrivormreresisesisnansesssesssrensecscesseesssassnseessenns (68) 52)
AccUMUIALEA AETICIE....eeurere ettt tte i s s s es e st v s s st et s s s s en s e ssmneans (1,288) (1,440)
Common stock in treasury, at cost, 37,730,431 shares at December 31, 2012
and 34,110,674 shares at December 31, 201 1.......oecmerneerceer e (1,979) (1,853)
Total shareholders’ equity 1,143 1,423
INODCONLTOING INEEIESES ................oooeorevereereeee ettt es et re oo 75 69
TOLAL @QUILY.........oooooeoeeee e ee e s oo ee s s e reseraemre e s s seeee e ereeeneeeeeeeserenn 1,218 1,492
Total Habilities AN EQUILY...............o..ocoooccvucmmeemmrreireneeene s cosissesss et sseeeecesseeseiesosis s cressorces $ 5,044 $ 8462
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Dollars in Millions, Except Per-Share Amounts

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Net operating revenues:
Net operating revenues before provision for doubtful accounts........couuveevererecrreernnnn... $ 9904 $ 5371 $ 8,992
Less: Provision for doubtfial ACCOURLS..............ererrrrermesermerssmnssssemssesssmssssesiorssssernrseseenens 785 717 727
Net Operating FEVEIUES ............cocceevirmiiicieii e rins et en s s eeos 9,119 8,654 8,265
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits..... . . 4257 4015 3,830
SUPPHES. .ottt s esee et et bes et s s ees s sna st e et bt nas e bbb ntcran s 1,552 1,548 1,542
Other OPETating EXPENSES, MEL......oveseiieurrerreearereeerisecoesesessimsaressonsessessassarsasssecsesesens 2,147 2,020 1,857
Electronic health record incentives..... . (40) (59) 0
Depreciation and amMOTtZAON ... ......creveresrerrescmsrenresesresesssssomssrasscssssenssensos 430 398 380
Tmpairment of Tong-lived assets and goodwill, and restructuring charges, net............. 19 20 10
Litigation and inVESHEAtION COSES ....c...cuvurrmreererccrnserininieseeiansrasesussresesnessans s senseeesanes 5 55 12
OPErating IMCOME ...ttt ceeet b e et s ebs et s st eebansebens 749 653 634
TNEETESE EXPEMSE .....ecovenrceieererecaeesceeesteieecateseeate bt eaeeeaaseassasc s se e s assemsresentaanse s s sesnsssasesinns 412) (375) (424)
Loss from early extinguishment of debt .........cc.ccocovvieinrieinneire e ce s e 4) (117 57
INVESHUNENT CALTLINES. .......eoeveereesvereeeeeesensssees e snssenessssseesestensss e sesesessesessssssssessesenssseesnesesens 1 3 5
Income from continuing operations, before income taxes..................cccooevoerveinnn. 334 164 158
Income tax benefit (EXPENSE) ....ocuvuvioereriieiecc e e etessreteas et seae e eetsaser s es st s s enaran (125) (61) 977
Income from continuing operations, before discontinued operations ................... 209 103 1,135
Discontinued operations:
Income (1088) frOM OPEIALIONS ........o.vueeieeieseernaeerretiaseesesessiscesatesssenssstse s sas s snesee s (#)) (18) - 11
Impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill, and restructuring charges, net. (160) 6) 1)
Litigation and inveStigation COSLS .........cvurerroreeererarnrrnnrerreonsssnsesasasesressesssasseees s seees 0 a7 0
Net gains on sales of FACIHHES..........cccirirverrrereecscnrernrresncrrerieenreonsessesssieieseenessananies 1 0 0
TNCOME tAX DENEFTE.....ceceeiecccctrtre e e ettt scne et sebec s aren 25 32 . 7
Tncome (loss) from discontinued OPerations ................cc...ccoovvvvvervecorecvereresens . (76) (£)) 17
NECINCOME.........ooooieieeiie ettt eve et e a et b et se e e s esanseseseenenbesnaens 133 94 1,152
Less: Preferred stock dividends .........c.occvoircnrenciieeininenceneecsnisssensesensernse e sseesnescnnsens 11 24 24
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
ContiNUING OPEIAtOMS «.....cvereeecirninrinerrercrerriemnieaseas s et sesstessasers et sersssessessessessssasssees 13 11 10
DiScoOntinued OPEIAtIONS.....c....vrcveerecrrearesceecsessetresearasersesseseasnmssenssssssansasesssesanssansonns (32) 1 1)
Net income attributable to Tenet Healthcare Corporation
common Shareholders ... $ 141 $ 58 $ 1,119
Amounts attributable to Tenet Healthcare Corporation common shareholders
Income from continuing operations, NEt Of tAX........cccoorueerrremnieneeseeriee s $ 185 $ 68 $ 1,101
Tncome (loss) from discontinued operations, Net 0f taX .....c..ccccueveeerrecrieererereinrenennns (44) 0 18
Net income attributable to Tenet Healthcare Corporation
common Shareholders ... s e § 141 $ 38 $ 1,119

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Tenet Healthcare Corporation
common shareholders:

Basic :
Continuing operations ..... 1.77 $ 058 $ 909
Discontinued operations (0.42) (0.09) 0.15
1.35 $ 049 $ 924
Diluted
COnMINUING OPELAHOIIS .....c..vocvereenrcenaeenrerennectsssenieseasieseeesessesssasecrsssesessassensiensesssansees 1.70 $ 056 $ 803

(0.40) (0.08) 0.13
1.30 $ 048 $ 816

Discontinued operations

Weighted average shares and dilutive securities outstanding (in thousands):

BASIC c.vtietieeimn et et e et e ettt e s s e nb et e 104,200 117,182 121,080
DHILEA ..ottt coe s smse st st st s be e 108,926 121,295 140,158
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Dollars in Millions '

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

INEE IIICOIIE. .ottt st et et s s s smasssse s e s st e s nest st es st nssbns et st am s bnesorsecotann $ 133 $ %4 $ 1,152
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Adjustments for supplemental executive retirement plans ............cocecmeercrvcrsneercnnes 25) (15) (20)

Unrealized gains on securities held as available-for-sale...........coreninmniniececrenonnnas 0 0 1

Reclassification adjustments for realized losses included in net income...................... 0 - 0 1
Other comprehensive loss before income taxes 25) sy as)
Income tax benefit related to items of other compreliensive 108s .........coveverrcnceemrecccninnnes 9 6 7
Total other comiprehensive 10ss, Mt O tAX .............oeeivvvciieiiiniere e 16) 9 {11
Comprehensive income........................ ettt bttt e ettt et v s ara et erene et 117 - 85 1,141
Less: Preferred stock dividends.................cococoveviiiviicneinineeeeneeenre s eienenans 11 24 24
Less: Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests ........... (19 12 9
Comprehensive income attributable to Tenet Healthcare Corporation

common shareholders ... e $ 125 $ 49 $ 1,108

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Dollars in Millions,
Share Amounts in Thousands

Tenet Healtheare Corporation Shareholders® Equity

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Accumulated
Issued Additional Other
Shares Issued Shayes Par Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated Treasury Noncontrolling Total
Outstanding Amount  Quistanding  Amount Capital Loss Deficit Stock Interests Equity
Balances at
December 31, 2009.... 345000  § 334 120284 § 7 $ 4481 s 32 $  (2,665) $ (1479 $ 51 $ 697
Net inCome...rmereerrrene 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,143 0 9 1,152
Distributions paid to
noncontrolling
INLEIESIS coveerenenenne i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ®) 8
Contributions from
noncontrolling
INCTCELS v vvsravereasasvescreeas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Other comprehensive
INCOME ceverersensecesmsisserenns 0 0 0 0 0 (11) 0 0 0 (11)
Preferved stock
dividends ....ovvcearrncerenns 0 0 0 0 (29 0 0 0 0 (e2)]
Stock-based
compensation
expense and issuance
of common §tock ........ 0 0 1,162 0 12 0 0 0 0 12
Balances at
December 31, 2010..... 345,000 $ 334 121,446 $ 7 $ 4469 § 4 $  (1522) $ 147 $ 53 $ 1,819
Net income 0 0 0 0 0 0 82 0 12 94
Distributions paid to
noncontrolting
IECICSES oo rvossesooner oo enn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (10) 10) .
Other comprehensive
INCOME coveeervscssisississnsens 0 0 0 0 0 [&)] 0 0 0 [C)]
Purchases of businesses
of joint venture
Ft7s S S 0 0 0o - 0 0 0 0 0 14 14
Preferred stock
dividends .......veomenes 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 4
Repurchases of common
Py P 0 0 (18.942) 0 0 0 0 (374) 0 (374)
Stock-based
compensation
expense and issuance
of common stock ... 0 0 1,252 0 (18) 0 0 0 0 (18)
Balances at
December 31, 2011 ..... 345,000 $ 334 103,756 $ 7 $ 4427 $ &y $  (1.440) $ (1,353) $ 69 $ 1,492
Net income (loss).. 0 0 0 0 0 0 152 0 22 130
Distributions paid to
noncontrolfing ’
[T 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [ 12) 12)
Contributions from )
nonconuolting
i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3
income.... 0 0 0 0 0 16) 0 0 0 (16)
Purchases of businesses
or joint venture
interests.. . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37 37
Preferred stock ’
dividends ..o 0 0 0 0 an 0 0 0 0 an
Repurchases of common
stock... 0 0 (4,733) 0 0 0 0 (126) 0 (126)
Repurchases of
preferred SEOCK .ouvenunennnns (298,700) (289) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (289)
Conversion of preferred
stock to common .
SLOCK v vcmssenmasssmsennssenins (46,300) 45) 1,979 0 45 0 0 0 0 0
Stock-based
compensation
expense and issuance
of common stock ......... 0 0 3,631 0 10 0 0 0 0 10
Balances at
December 31,2012.... o _$% o 104633 _ 8 7 8 4471 5_(68) $  (1.288) 5_(1979) 8 75 $ 1,218
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Fi jal §
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Dollars in Millions

INEEIICOMIIE ....oooeeee s e s s b e b e e e bRe b e ek as b et
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: -
Depreciation and amMOITIZALION. ...............c.oueuarieetorsoreesesseesseeeiesasreees ansss essesbeesissssesss e siesrnnescoreassress
Provision for dOUBDtill ACCOUNLS. ........cooocu ittt et e r et cr s s s st ens s cvasans st enesesonen
Deferred income tax expense (benefit).........
Stock-based compensation expense
Toipairment of long-lived assets and goodwill, and restructuring charges, Nek.........ccoocervreerercrirnens
Litigation and iNVESTIEALION COSIS ...c.ovwuurcermveromrureamsriasessmessasansmmessessassransssasssssssssnassassssnssrssasssassssesasessesanes
Loss from early extinguishment of debt
Fair market value adjustments related to interest rate swap and LIBOR cap agreements
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance costs
Pre-tax loss (gain) from discontinued operations
OENET TEEMS, MEL ...ucveii et eets et ent s e ae et aaea e sttt an s s e seb s e enesf s s s sebse e b et b er b s e S sans s benraseeos
Changes in cash from operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Tnventories and Other CUITENE ASSEIS ...ttt certes s e eaes s crseses st snnses s
IHCOITIE FAXES ..ottt st eaa st s bt 4kt e bt
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Payments against reserves for restructuring charges and litigation costs and settlements..............
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities from discontinued operations,
excluding income taxes
Net cash provided by operating activities ...
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment — continuing operations
Construction of new and replacement hOsPItals ............c.cccoieiirincromorri st coereseenses
Purchases of propesty and equipment — discontinued operations
Purchases of businesses or joint venture interests
Proceeds from sales of facilities and other assets — discontinued operations
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities, long-term investments and other assets
Release of escrow funds
Other items, net
Net cash used fn investing activities.......................
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of borrowings under credit facility
Proceeds from borrowings under credit facility ............ocovevvrurrieirceenciorniiiicn et aressees s
Repayments of Other BOTTOWINGES ..ottt ceeeercie e cecsennases e eesosions
Proceeds from other borrowings
Repurchases of preferred stock.
Deferred debt iSSUANCE COSLS........cerrerrernrvevreerorenan:
Repurchases of common stock
Cash dividends on preferred stock
Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests
Other items, net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ...
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash qQUIVAIENLS............ovcvururnceccnrienreeinrcoeerecesssesesveesrieesssnens
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of Period.................cocovoviviiiviniciiceece e et e
Supplemental disclosures: ’
Interest paid, net of capitalized INEEIESE..........ocmrveeureeieirreerscrcceer e creseecssssenssse s esse s srersesseoss
Proceeds from interest rate swap agreement
Income tax (payments) refunds, net

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

012 2011 2010
$ 133 S 94 § LIs2
430 398 380
785 717 727
92 81 (952)
32 24 22
19 20 10
5 55 12
4 117 57
0 0 3
2 30 31
101 41 (10)
(12) (13) )]
(868) (850) (731)
(59) (35) (15)
(5) (63) 3
9 32) 87
3 )] (58)
(63) 44) (83)
(35) 38) 16
593 497 472
(506) (467) (433)
0 0 (13)
@ ® (30
(211) (84) (65)
45 0 19
17 59 84
0 0 15
6 @) 3
(662) (503) (420)
(1,773) (365) 0
1,693 445 0
(248) (843) (886)
1,092 900 601
(292) 0 0
an @1 @7
(126) (374) 0
(14) Q4 (24)
(15) (10) (®)
20 6 7
320 (286) @3N
251 (292) (285)
113 405 690
$§ 364 §$ 113 8§ 405
$ (376) $ (347) $ (402)
$ 0 § 30 § 0
$ (13 § (10 § 34
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

Tenet Healthcare Corporation (together with our subsidiaries, referred to herein as “Tenet,” the “Company,” “we” or
“ug”) is an investor-owned health care services company whose subsidiaries and affiliates as of December 31, 2012 primarily
operated 49 hospitals with a total of 13,216 licensed beds, 117 outpatient centers and Conifer Health Solutions (“Conifer’”), which
provides business process solutions to more than 600 hospital and other clients nationwide.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Tenet and its wholly owned and majority-owned
subsidiaries. We eliminate intercompany accounts and transactions in consolidation, and we include the results of operations of
businesses that are newly acquired in purchase transactions from their dates of acquisition. We account for significant investments
in other affiliated companies using the equity method. Unless otherwise indicated, all financial and statistical data included in
these notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements relate to our continuing operations, with dollar amounts expressed
in millions (except per-share amounts). Certain balances in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and these notes
have been reclassified to give retrospective presentation for the discontinued operations described in Note 4. Furthermore, all
amounts related to shares, share prices and earnings per share have been restated to give retrospective presentation for the reverse

stock split described in Note 2.

Effective December 31, 2011, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-07, “Health Care Entities
(Topic 954): Presentation and Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Aliowance for Doubtful
Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities,” which requires health care entities to present the provision for doubtful accounts
relating to patient service revenue as a deduction from patient service revenue in the statement of operations rather than as an
operating expense. All periods presented have been reclassified in-accordance with the provisions of ASU 2011-07.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”), requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our Consolidated
Financial Statements and these accompanying notes. We regularly evaluate the accounting policies and estimates we use. In
general, we base the estimates on historical experience and on assumptions that we believe to be reasonable given the particular
circumstances in which we operate. Although we believe all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been
incfuded, actual results may vary from those estimates. Financial and statistical information we report to other regulatory agencies
may be prepared on a basis other than GAAP or using different assumptions or reporting periods and, therefore, may vary from
amounts presented herein. Although we make every effort to ensure that the information we report to those agencies is accurate,
complete and consistent with applicable reporting guidelines, we cannot be responsible for the accuracy of the information they

make available to the public.
Net Operating Revenues Before Provision for Doubtful Accounts

We recognize net operating revenues before provision for doubtful accounts in the period in which our services are
performed. Net operating revenues before provision for doubtful accounts primarily consist of net patient service revenues that are
recorded based on establislied billing rates (i.e., gross charges), less estimated discounts for contractual and other allowances,
principally for patients covered by Medicare, Medicaid, managed care and other health plans, as well as certain uninsured patients
under our Compact with Uninsured Patients (“Compact”).

Gross charges are retail charges. They are not the same as actual pricing, and they generally do not reflect what a hospital
is ultimately paid and, therefore, are not displayed in our consolidated statements of operations. Hospitals are typically paid
amounts that are negotiated with insurance companies or are set by the government. Gross.charges are used to calculate Medicare
outlier payments and to determine certain elements of payment under managed care contracts (such as stop-loss payments).
Because Medicare requires that a hospital’s gross charges be the same for all patients (regardless of payer category), gross charges
are also what hospitals charge all other patients prior to the application of discounts and allowances.

Revenues under the traditional fee-for-service Medicare and Medicaid programs are hased primarily on prospective
payment systems. Retrospectively determined cost-based revenues under these programs, which were more prevalent in eadier
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periods, and certain other payments, such as Indirect Medical Education, Direct Graduate Medical Education, disproportionate
share hospital and bad debt expense, which are based on our hospitals’ cost repotts, are estimated using historical trends and
curent factors. Cost report settlements under these programs are subject to audit by Medicare and Medicaid auditors and
administrative and judicial review, and it can take several years until final settlement of such matters is determined and completely
resolved. Because the laws, regulations, instructions and rule interpretations governing Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement are
complex and change frequently, the estimates recorded by us could change by material amounts.

We have a system and estimation process for recording Medicare net patient revenue and estimated cost report
settlements. This results in us recording accruals to reflect the expected final settlements on our cost reports. For filed cost reports,
we record the accrual based on those cost reports and subsequent activity, and record a valuation allowance against those cost
reports based on historical settlement trends. The accrual for periods for which a cost report is yet to be filed is recorded based on
estimates of what we expect to report on the filed cost reports, and a corresponding valuation allowance is recorded as previously
described. Cost reports generally must be filed within five months after the end of the annual cost reporting period. After the cost
report is filed, the accrual and corresponding valuation allowance may need to be adjusted. Adjustments for prior-year cost reports
and related valuation allowances, principally related to Medicare and Medicaid, increased revenues in the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 by $114 million ($81 million related to the industry-wide Medicare Rural Floor Budget
Neutrality Adjustment settlement), $1 million and $1 million, respectively. Estimated cost report settlements and valuation
allowances are deducted from accounts receivable in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets (see Note 3). We believe
that we have made adequate provision for any adjustments that may result from final determination of amounts earned under all
the above arrangements with Medicare and Medicaid.

Revenues under managed care plans are based primarily on payment terms involving predetermined rates per diagnosis,
per-diem rates, discounted fee-for-service rates and/or other similar contractual arrangements. These revenues are also subject to
review and possible audit by the payers. The payers are billed for patient services on an individual patient basis. An individual
patient’s bill is subject to adjustment on a patient-by-patient basis in the ordinary course of business by the payers following their
review and adjudication of each particular bill. We estimate the discounts for contractual allowances at the individual hospital
level utilizing billing data on an individual patient basis. At the end of each month, on an individual hospital basis, we estimate our
expected reimbursement for patients of managed care plans based on the applicable contract terms. Contractual allowance
estimates are periodically reviewed for accuracy by taking into consideration known contract terms as well as payment history.
Although we do not separately accumulate and disclose the aggregate amount of adjustments to the estimated reimbursement for
every patient bill, we believe our estimation and review process enables us to identify instances on a timely basis where such
estimates need to be revised. We do not believe there were any adjustments to estimates of individual patient bills that were
material to our revenues. In addition, on a corporate-wide basis, we do not record any general provision for adjustments to
estimated contractual allowances for managed care plans. Managed care accounts, net of contractual allowances recorded, are
further reduced to their net realizable value through provision for doubtful accounts based on historical collection trends for these

payers and other factors that affect the estimation process.

We know of no material claims, disputes or unsettled matters with any payer that would affect our revenues for which we
have not adequately provided for in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

Under our Compact, the discount offered to uninsured patients is recognized as a contractual allowance, which reduces
net operating revenues at the time the self-pay accounts are recorded. The uninsured patient accounts, net of contractual
allowances recorded, are further reduced to their net realizable value through provision for doubtful accounts based on historical
collection trends for self-pay accounts and other factors that affect the estimation process.

We also provide charity care to patients who are financially unable to pay for the health care services they receive. Most
patients who qualify for charity care are charged a per-diem amount for services received, subject to a cap. Except for the per-
diem amounts, our policy is not to pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care; therefore, we do not report
these amounts in net operating revenues or in provision for doubtful accounts. Patient advocates from Conifer’s Medical
Eligibility Program screen patients in the hospital to determine whether those patients meet eligibility requirements for financial
assistance programs. They also expedite the process of applying for these government programs.
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The table below shows the sources of net operating revenues before provision for doubtful accounts from continuing
operations: '

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
General Hospitals:
IMEAICALE ....cvoveneceeirriereiee e e et e et te et ssas bbb ettt ae s er et st n s e sse s nnenas $2,195 $2,068 $2,050
Medicaid........... 783 802 740
Managed care.......cooceccnireercnen 5,382 5,128 4,897
Indemnity, self-pay and other ............. 1,007 958 954
Acute care hospitals — Other TEVEAUE ..ottt s 69 105 115
Other:
Other operations .......... 468 310 236
$9,904 $9,371 $8,992

Net operating revenues before

Provision for Doubtful Accounts

Although outcomes vary, our policy is to attempt to collect amounts due from patients, including co-payments and
deductibles due from patients with insurance, at the time of service while complying with all federal and state laws and
regulations, including, but not limited to, the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (“EMTALA™). Generally, as
required by EMTALA, patients may not be denied etnergency treatment due to inability to pay. Therefore, services, including the
legally required medical screening examination and stabilization of the patient, ave performied without delaying to obtain insurance
information. In non-emergency circumstances or for elective procedures and services, it is our policy to verify insurance priot to a
patient being treated; however, there are various exceptions that can occur. Such exceptions can include, for example, instances
where (1) we are unable to obtain verification because the patient’s insurance company was unable to be reached or contacted,

(2) a determination is made that a patient may be eligible for benefits under various government programs, such as Medicaid or
Victims of Crime, and it takes several days or weeks before qualification for such benefits is confirmed or denied, and (3) under
physician orders we provide services to patients that require immediate treatment,

We provide for an allowance against accounts receivable that could become uncollectible by establishing an allowance to
reduce the carrying value of such receivables to their estimated net realizable value. We estimate this allowance based on the
aging of our accounts receivable by hospital, our historical collection experience by hospital and for each type of payer over an
18-month look-back period, and other relevant factors. A significant portion of our provision for doubtful accounts relates to self-
pay patients, as well as co-payments and deductibles owed to us by patients with insurance. Payment pressure from managed care
payers also affects our provision for doubtful accounts. We typically experience ongoing managed care payment delays and
disputes; liowever, we continue to work with these payers to obtain adequate and timely reimbursement for our services. There are
various factors that can impact collection trends, such as changes in the economy, which in turn have an impact on unemployment
rates and the number of uninsured and underinsured patients, the volume of patients through our emergency departments, the
increased burden of co-payments and deductibles to be made by patients with insurance, and business practices related to
collection efforts. These factors continuously change and can have an impact on collection trends and our estimation process.

Electronic Health Record Incentives

Under certain provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”), federal incentive
payments are available to hospitals, physicians and certain other professionals (“Providers™) when they adopt, implement or
upgrade (“AJU”) certified electronic health record (“EHR”) technology or become “meaningful users,” as defined under ARRA,
of EHR technology in ways that demonstrate improved quality, safety and effectiveness of care. Providers can become eligible for
annual Medicare incentive payments by demonstrating meaningfut use of EHR technology in each period over four periods.
Medicaid providers can receive their initial incentive payment by satisfying AIU criteria, but must demonstrate meaningful use of
EHR technology in subsequent years in order to qualify for additional payments. Hospitals may be eligible for both Medicare and
Medicaid EHR incentive payments; however, physicians and other professionals may be eligible for either Medicare or Medicaid
incentive payments, but not both. Hospitals that are meaningful users under the Medicare EHR incentive payment program are
deemed meaningful users under the Medicaid EHR incentive payment program and do not need to meet additional criteria
imposed by a state. Medicaid EHR incentive payments to Providers are 100% federally funded and administered by the states. The
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) established calendar year 2011 as the first year states could offer EHR
incentive payments. Before a state may offer EHR incentive payments, the state must submit and CMS must approve the state’s

incentive plan.
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We recognize Medicaid EHR incentive payments in our consolidated statements of operations for the first payment year
when: (1) CMS approves a state’s EHR incentive plan; and (2) our hospital or employed physician acquires certified EHR
technology (i.e., when AIU criteria are met). Medicaid EHR incentive payments for subsequent payment years are recognized in
the petiod during which the specified meaningful use criteria are met. We recognize Medicare EHR incentive payments when:
(1) the specified meaningful use criteria are met; and (2) contingencies in estimating the amount of the incentive payments to be
received are resolved. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, certain of our hospitals and physicians satisfied the
CMS AIU and/or meaningful use criteria. As a result, we recognized approximately $40 million and $55 million of Medicare and
Medicaid EHR incentive payments as a reduction to expense in our Consolidated Statement of Operations for years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Cash Equivalents

We treat highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less as cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents were approximately $364 million and $113 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, our book overdrafts were approximately $232 million and $252 million, respectively, which were

classified as accounts payable.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, approximately $65 million and $92 million, respectively, of total cash and cash
equivalents in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets were intended for the operations of our captive insurance
subsidiaries. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we repatriated $21 million of excess cash from our foreign insurance
subsidiary to our corporate domestic bank account.

Also at December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had $98 million and $109 million, respectively, of property and equipment
purchases accrued for items received but not yet paid. Of these amounts, $93 million and $104 million, respectively, were

included in accounts payable.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we entered into non-cancellable capital leases of approximately
$88 million and $23 million, respectively, primarily for equipment.

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

We classify investments in debt and equity securities as either available-for-sale, held-to-maturity or as part of a trading
portfolio. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had no significant investments in securities classified as either held-to-maturity or
trading. We carry secutities classified as available-for-sale at fair value. We report their unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes,
as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) unless we determine that a loss is other-than-temporary, at which point we
would record a loss in our consolidated statements of operations. We include realized gains or losses in our consolidated
statements of operations based on the specific identification method.

Property and Equipment

Additions and improvements to property and equipment costing $500 or more with a useful life greater than one year are
capitalized at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. We use the straight-line method
of depreciation for buildings, building improvements and equipment. The estimated useful life for buildings and improvements is
primarily 25 to 40 years and, for equipment, three to 15 years. We record capital leases at the beginning of the lease term as assets
and liabilities. The value recorded is the lower of either the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the
asset. Such assets, including improvements, are amortized over the shorter of either the lease term or their estimated useful life.
Interest costs related to construction projects are capitalized. In the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, capitalized

interest was $6 million, $8 million and $4 million, respectively.

We evaluate our long-lived assets for possible impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset, or related group of assets, may not be recoverable from estimated future
undiscounted cash flows. If the estimated future undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value of the assets, we
calculate the amount of an impairment if the carrying value of the long-lived assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. The fair
value of the assets is estimated based on appraisals, established market values of comparable assets or internal estimates of future
net cash flows expected to result from the use and ultimate disposition of the asset. The estimates of these future cash flows are
based on assumptions and projections we believe to be reasonable and supportable. They require our subjective judgments and
take into account assumptions about revenue and expense growth rates. These assumptions may vary by type of facility and
presume stable, improving or, in some cases, declining results at our hospitals, depending on their circumstances.
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We report long-lived assets to be disposed of at the lower of their carrying amounts or fair values less costs to sell. In
such circumstances, our estimates of fair value are based on appraisals, established market prices for comparable assets or internal

estimates of future net cash flows.

Asset Retirement Obligations

We recognize the fair value of a liability for legal obligations associated with asset retirements, primarily related to
asbestos abatement and costs associated with underground storage tanks, in the period in which it is incutred if a reasonable
estimate of the fair value of the obligation can be made. When the liability is initially recorded, we capitalize the cost of the asset
retirement obligation by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its
present value each period, and the capitalized cost associated with the retirement obligation is depreciated over the useful life of
the related asset. Upon settlement of the obligation, any difference between the cost to settle the asset retirement obligation and the
liability recorded is recognized as a gain or loss in our consolidated statements of operations.

. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of costs over the fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and other intangible
assets acquired in purchase business combinations and determined to have indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but instead are
subject to impairment tests performed at least annually. For goodwill, we perform the test at the reporting unit level when events
occur that require an evaluation to be performed or at least annually. If we determine the carrying value of goodwill is impaired, or
if the carrying value of a business that is to be sold or otherwise disposed of exceeds its fair value, we reduce the carrying value,
including any allocated goodwill, to fair value. Estimates of fair value are based on appraisals, established market prices for
comparable assets or intemal estimates of future net cash flows and presume stable, improving or, in some cases, declining results
at our hospitals, depending on their circumstances.

Other intangible assets primarily consist of capitalized software costs, which are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful life of the software, which ranges from three to 15 years. Also included in intangible assets are costs
associated with the issuance of our long-term debt, which are primarily being amortized under the effective interest method based

on the terms of the specific notes.

Accruals for General and Professional Liability Risks

We accrue for estimated professional and general liability claims, when they are probable and can be reasonably
estimated. The accrual, which includes an estimate for incurred but not reported claims, is updated each quarter based on an
actuarial calculation of projected payments using case-specific facts and circumstances and our historical loss reporting,
development and settlement patterns and is discounted to its net present value using a risk-free discount rate (1.18% at
December 31,2012 and 1.35% at December 31, 2011). To the extent that subsequent claims information varies from our
estimates, the liability is adjusted in the period such information becomes available. Malpractice expense is presented within other
operating expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method. This approach requires the recognition of deferred tax
assets and labilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax
bases of assets and liabilities. Income tax receivables and liabilities and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on
the amounts that more likely than not will be sustained upon ultimate settlement with taxing authorities.

Developing our provision for income taxes and analysis of uncertain tax positions items requires significant judgment
and knowledge of federal and state income tax laws, regulations and strategies, including the determination of deferred tax assets
and liabilities and, if necessary, any valuation allowances that may be required for defetred tax assets.

We assess the realization of our deferred tax assets to determine whether an income tax valuation allowance is required.
Based on all available evidence, both positive and negative, and the weight of that evidence to the extent such evidence can be

objectively verified, we determine whether it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax assets will be realized.
The main factors that we consider include:

e Cumulative profits/losses in recent years, adjusted for certain nonrecurring items;

o Income/losses expected in fisture years;
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e  Unsettled circumstances that, if unfavorably resolved, would adversely affect future operations and profit levels;

e  The availability, or lack thereof, of taxable income in prior carryback periods that would limit realization of tax
benefits; and

e The carryforward period associated with the deferred tax assets and liabilities.

We consider many factors when evaluating our uncertain tax positions, and such judgments are subject to periodic
review. Tax benefits associated with uncertain tax positions are recognized in the period in which one of the following conditions
is satisfied: (1) the more likely than not recognition threshold is satisfied; (2) the position is ultimately settled through negotiation
or litigation; or (3) the statute of limitations for the taxing authority to examine and challenge the position has expired. Tax
benefits associated with an uncertain tax position are derecognized in the period in which the more likely than not recognition

threshold is no longer satisfied.

Segment Reporting

We primarily operate acute care hospitals and related health care facilities. Qur general hospitals generated 95.3%, 96.7%
and 97.4% of our net operating revenues before provision for doubtful accounts in the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively. Each of our operating regions reports directly to our president of hospital operations. Major decisions,
including capital resource allocations, are made at the consolidated level, not at the regional, market or hospital level.

Historically, our business has consisted of one reportable segment, Hospital Operations and other. However,
during 2012, our Hospital Operations and other segment and our Conifer subsidiary entered into formal agreements, pursuant
to which it was agreed that services provided by both parties to each other would be billed based on estimated third-party
pricing terms. As a result, we have presented Conifer as a separate reportable business segment for all periods presented. The
factors for determining the reportable segments include the manner in which management evaluates operating performance
combined with the nature of the individual business activities.

Costs Associated With Exit or Disposal Activities

We recognize costs associated with exit (including restructuring) or disposal activities when they are incurred and can be
measured at fair value, rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan.

NOTE 2. EQUITY

Reverse Stock Split

On October 11, 2012, our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on a split-adjusted basis
following a one-for-four reverse stock split we announced on October 1, 2012. Every four shares of our issued and outstanding
common stock were exchanged for one issued and outstanding share of common stock, without any change in the par value per
share, and our authorized shares of common stock were proportionately decreased from 1,050,000,000 shares to 262,500,000
shares. No fractional shares were issued in connection with the stock split. All current and prior period amounts in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and these notes related to shares, share prices and earnings per share have been
restated to give retrospective presentation for the reverse stock split. '

Share Repurchase Programs

In October 2012, we announced that our board of directors had authorized the repurchase of up to $500 million of our
common stock through a share repurchase program expiring in December 2013. Under the program, shares may be purchased in
the open market or through privately negotiated transactions in a manner consistent with applicable securities laws and
regulations, including pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 plan maintained by the Company. Shares will be repurchased at times and in
amounts based on market conditions and other factors. Pursuant to the share repurchase program, we paid approximately
$100 million to repurchase a total of 3,406,324 shares during the period from the commencement of the program through

December 31, 2012.
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Total Number of Maximum Deollar Value
Total Number of Average Price Shares Purchased as of Shares That May Yet

Shares Paid Per Part of Publicly Be Purchased Under the
Perdod Purchased Share Announced Program Program
(In Thousands) (In Thousands) (In Millions)

November [, 2012 through

November 30, 2012 .....ccooeuveririrmrierereereens 1,095 $ 27.00 : 1,095 $ 470
December 1, 2012 through

December 31, 2012 ...oocuuuuueconerncenrcemensmennecnnees 2,311 30.47 2,311 400
Total ..o e 3,406 $ 2936 3,406 $ 400

In May 2011, we announced that our board of directors had authorized the repurchase of up to $400 million of our
common stock through a share repurchase program. Under the program, shares could be purchased in the open market or through
privately negotiated transactions in a manner consistent with applicable securities laws and regulations, including pursuant to a
Rule 10b5-1 plan maintained by the Company, at times and in amounts based on market conditions and other factors. The shate
repurchase program, which was scheduled to expire on May 9, 2012, was completed in January 2012. Pursuant to the program, we
repurchased a total of 20,268,466 shares for approximately $400 million.

Tota! Number of Maximum Dollar Value
Total Number of Average Price Shares Purchased as of Shares That May Yet
Shares Paid Per Part of Publicly Be Purchased Under the
Period Purchased Share Announced Program Program
(In Thousands) (In Thousands) (In Millions)
May 12, 201 through
December 31, 2011 ..o 18,942 $ 1975 18,942 $ 26
January 1, 2012 through 0
January 31, 2012 1,327 19.74 1,327
TOA] ... cene st 202659  § 19.75 20,269 $ o

Repurchased shares ate recorded based on settlement date and are held as treasury stock.

Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock

In April 2012, we repurchased and subsequently retired 298,700 shares of our 7% mandatory convertible preferred stock
with a carrying value of $289 million. In a related private financing, we issued an additional $141 million aggregate principal
amount of our 6% senior secuted notes due 2018 at a premium for $142 million of cash proceeds and an additional $150 million
aggregate principal amount of our 8% senior notes due 2020. We recorded the difference between the carrying value and the
amount paid to redeem the preferred stock in April 2012 as preferred stock dividends in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations. On October 1, 2012, the remaining 46,300 shares outstanding of our mandatory convertible preferred
stock automatically converted to 1,978,633 shares of our common stock. We accrued approximately $6 million, or $17.50 per
share, for dividends on the preferred stock in the three months ended March 31, 2012 and $1 million in each of the three months
ended June 30, 2012 and September 30, 2012, and paid the dividends in April, July and October 2012, respectively.
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NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The principal components of accounts receivable are shown in the table below:

December 31,
2012 2011
Continuing operations: .
Patient acCOUNLS TECEIVADIE .......cooeiveuiuieieeeeiieiee ettt ee s ene s eter s ser s sas st b e sesenesasens $ 1,668 $ 1,605
Allowance for dOUDHUL ACCOUNLS .....cocevirririeirireninrrecre et sseenese e seescscessenssanens (396) (382)
Estimated future recoveries from accounts assigned to our Conifer subsidiary. . 88 62
Net cost report settlements payable and valuation allowances ............eoeremeerccverrcnrreneerennes (¢2)] (39
1,336 1,246
Discontinued operations:
Patient acCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ......c..cicuicrerireiruireccrensmrerensenereescsnastneenaeinseeseesesstseseseeesessesessenencrerne 11 46
Allowance for doubtful accounts . &) (15)
Estimated future recoveries from accounts assigned to our Conifer subsidiary.........c.covccveeee 2 2
Net cost report settlements receivable (payable) and valuation allowances.........cocovvvverecerene. 1 ()
9 32
ACCOUNLS receiVabBle, MEt ..............o..ooooeivv oo oot $ 1,345 $ 1,278

Qur self-pay collection rate, which is the blended collection rate for uninsured and balance after insurance accounts
receivable, was approximately 28.9% and 27.7% as of December 31,2012 and 201 |, respectively. These self-pay collection rates
include payments made by patients, incfuding co-payments and deductibles paid by patients with insurance. OQur estimated
collection rate from managed care payers was approximately 98.0% and 98.2% at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. As
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, our allowance for doubtful accounts for self-pay uninsured accounts was 87.3% and 88.4%,
respectively, of our self-pay uninsured patient accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, our allowance for
doubtful accounts for self-pay balance after insurance accounts was 54.5% and 57.5%, respectively, of our self-pay balance after
insurance patient accounts receivable, consisting primarily of co-pays and deductibles owed by patients with insurance. Qur self-
pay write-offs, including uninsured and balance after insurance accounts, increased approximately $36 million from $182 million
in the year ended December 31, 2011 to $218 million iu the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily due to an increase in patient
account assignments to our Conifer subsidiary. The increase in provision for doubtful accounts primarily related to the increase in
uninsured patient volumes in the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011, partially offset
by the impact of a 120 basis point improvement in our collection rate on self-pay accounts.

Accounts that are pursued for collection through the regional business offices of Conifer are maintained on our hospitals’
"books and reflected in patient accounts receivable with an allowance for doubtful accounts established to reduce the carrying value
" of such receivables to their estimated net realizable value. We estimate this allowance based on the aging of our accounts
receivable by hospital, our historical collection experience by hospital and for each type of payer over an [8-month look-back
period, and other relevant factors. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, our allowance for doubttul accounts for self-pay was
73.8% and 76.5%, respectively, of our self-pay patient accounts receivable, including co-pays and deductibles owed by patients
with insurance. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, our allowance for doubtful accounts for managed care was 9.4% and 8.8%,
respectively, of our managed care patient accounts receivable.

Accounts assigned to our Conifer subsidiary are written off and excluded from patient accounts receivable and allowance
for doubtful accounts; however, an estimate of future recoveries from all accounts at our Conifer subsidiary is determined based
on historical experience and recorded on our hospitals’ books as a component of accounts receivable in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The estimated costs (based on selected operating expenses, which include salaries, wages and benefits, supplies and other
operating expenses) of caring for our self-pay patients for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were approximately
$437 million, $395 million and $368 million, respectively. Our estimated costs (based on the selected operating expenses
described above) of caring for charity care patients for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were approximately
$133 million, $117 million, and $113 million, respectively. Most states include an estimate of the cost of charity care in the
determination of a hospital’s eligibility for Medicaid disproportionate share hospital (“DSH”) payments. Revenues attributable to
DSH payments and other state-funded subsidy payments for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were
approximately $283 million, $255 million and $178 million, respectively. These payments are intended to mitigate our cost of
uncompensated care, as well as reduced Medicaid funding levels. Our method of measuring the estimated costs uses adjusted self-
pay/charity patient days multiplied by selected operating expenses per adjusted patient day. The adjusted self-pay/charity patient
days represents actual self-pay/charity patient days adjusted to include self-pay/charity outpatient services by multiplying actual
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self-pay/charity patient days by the sum of gross self-pay/charity inpatient revenues and gross self-pay/charity outpatient revenues
and dividing the results by gross self-pay/charity inpatient revenues.

NOTE 4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Tn the three months ended June 30, 2012, our Creighton University Medical Center hospital (“CUMC”) in Nebraska was
reclassified into discontinued operations based on the guidance in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 360, “Property, Plant and Equipment,” as a result of our plan to sell CUMC. We recorded an
impairment charge in discontinued operations of $100 million, consisting of $98 million for the write-down of CUMC?’s long-
lived assets to their estimated fair values, less estimated costs to sell, and a $2 million charge for the write-down of goodwill
related to CUMC in the three months ended June 30, 2012. We completed the sale of CUMC on August 31, 2012 at a transaction
price of $40 million, excluding working capital, and recognized a loss on sale of approximately $1 million in discontinued
operations. Because we did not sell the accounts receivable of CUMC, net receivables of approximately $9 million are included in
our accounts receivable in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012,

In May 2012, we completed the sale of Diagnostic Imaging Services, Inc. (“DIS”), our former diagnostic imaging center
business in Louisiana, for net proceeds of approximately $10 million. As a result of the sale, DIS was reclassified into
discontinued operations in the three months ended June 30, 2012, and a gain on sale of approximately $2 million was recognized
in discontinued operations.

: We recorded a $6 million impairment charge in discontinued operations during the year ended December 31, 2011 for
the write-down of goodwill related to DIS. Material adverse trends in our estimates of future operating results of the centers at that
time, primarily due to our limited market presence, indicated that the carrying value of the goodwill exceeded its fair value. As a
result, we reduced the carrying value of the goodwill to its fair value as determined based on an appraisal.

Effective April {, 2010, we completed the sale of certain of our owned assets at NorthShore Regional Medical Center
(“NorthShore™), located in Slidell, Louisiana, for approximately $16 million of cash proceeds. At that time, we also terminated owr
operating lease agreement for the hospital. We recorded $1 million of net impairment and restructuring charges in discontinued
operations during the year ended December 31, 2010, consisting of a $3 million write-down of land to expected sales proceeds
related to a previously divested hospital, partially offset by $1 million in impairment credits to discontinued operations relating to
an increase in the estimated fair values of NorthShore’s long-lived assets, less estimated costs to sell, and $1 million for a
reduction in reserves recorded in previous periods.

Net operating revenues and income (loss) before income taxes reported in discontinued operations are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
- 2012 2011 2010
Net OPETAUINE TEVEIUES ...vv.v.vovertesessesesissesesssssesserasissessssssssssssemssssasessessmessesssssssarsssssssssssesssases $ 154 $ 216 $ 240
Income (loss) before income taxes (1ot) 41 10

Included in loss before income taxes from discontinued operations in the year ended December 31, 2011 is approximately

$14 million of expense related to the settlement of two Hurricane Katrina-related class action lawsuits, which amount is net of
approximately $10 million of recoveries from our reinsurance carriers in connection with the settlement. We had previously
recorded a $5 million reserve for this matter as of December 31, 2010. Also included in loss before income taxes from
discontinued operations in the year ended December 31, 2011 is approximately $17 million of expense recorded in litigation and
investigation costs allocable to certain of our previously divested hospitals related to changes in the reserve estimate established in
connection with a governmental review and an accrual for a hospital-related tort claim.

Should we dispose of additional hospitals or other assets in the future, we may incur additional asset impairment and
restructuring charges in future periods.

NOTE 5. IMPAIRMENT AND RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

‘We recognized impairment charges on long-lived assets in 2012, 2011 and 2010 because the fair values of those assets or
groups of assets indicated that the carrying amount was not recoverable. The fair value estimates were derived from appraisals,
established market values of comparable assets, or intemal estimates of future net cash flows. These fair value estimates can
change by material amounts in subsequent periods. Many factors and assumptions can impact the estimates, including the future
financial results of the hospitals, how the hospitals are operated in the future, changes in health care industry trends and
regulations, and the nature of the ultimate disposition of the assets. In certain cases, these fair value estimates assume the highest
and best use of hospital assets in the future to a market place participant is other than as a hospital. In these cases, the estimates are

96

ATTACHMENT 39

/37




based on the fair value of the real property and equipment if utilized other than as a hospital. The impairment recognized does not
include the costs of closing the hospitals or other future operating costs, which could be substantial. Accordingly, the ultimate net
cash realized from the hospitals, should we choose to sell them, could be significantly less than their impaired value.

Our impairment tests presume stable, improving or, in some cases, declining operating results in our hospitals, which are
based on programs and initiatives being implemented that are designed to achieve the hospital’s most recent projections. If these
projections are not met, or if in the future negative trends occur that impact our future outlook, impairments of ong-lived assets
and goodwill may occur, and we may incur additional restructuring charges, which could be material.

As of December 31, 2012, our continuing operations consisted of two operating segments, our Conifer subsidiary and our
hospital and other operations. Our hospital and other operations are structured as follows:

e Our California region included all of our hospitals in California;
¢  Qur Central region included all of our hospitals in Missouri, Tennessee and Texas;
¢  OQOur Florida region included all of our hospitals in Florida; and

¢ Our Southern States region included all of our hospitals in Alabama, Georgia, North Carolina, Pennsylvania and
South Carolina. ‘

Year Ended December 31, 2012

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we recorded net impairment and restructuring charges of $19 million,
consisting of $3 million relating to the impairment of obsolete assets, $2 million relating to other impairment charges, $8 million
of employee severance costs and $6 million of other related costs.

Year Ended December 31, 2011

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we recorded net impairment and restructuring charges of $20 million. This
amount included a $6 million impairment charge for the write-down of buildings and equipment of one of our previously impaired
hospitals to their estimated fair values, primarily due to a decline in the fair value of real estate in the market in which the hospital
operates and a decline in the estimated fair value of equipment. Material adverse trends it our estimates of future undiscounted
cash flows of the hospital at that time, consistent with our previous estimates in prior years when impairment charges were
recorded at this hospital, indicated the carrying value of the hospital’s long-lived assets was not recoverable from the estimated
future cash flows. We believed the most significant factors contributing to the adverse financial trends at that time included
reductions in volumes of insured patients, shifts in payer mix from commercial to governmental payers combined with reductions
in reimbursement rates from governmental payers, and high levels of uninsured patients. As a result, we updated the estimate of
the fair value of the hospital’s long-lived assets and compared the fair value estimate to the carrying value of the hospital’s long-
lived assets. Because the fair value estimate was lower than the carrying value of the bospital’s long-lived assets, an impairment
charge was recorded for the difference in the amounts. The aggregate cairying value of assets held and used of the hospital for
which an impairment charge was recorded was $20 million as of December 31, 2011 after recording the impairment charge. In
addition, we also recorded impairment charges of $1 million in connection with the sale of seven medical office buildings in
Texas, $1 million related to a cost basis investment, $7 million in employee severance costs, $3 million in lease termination costs,
$1 million of acceleration of stock-based compensation costs and $1 million of other related costs.

Year Ended December 31, 2010

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we recorded net impairment and restructuring charges of $10 million. This
amount included a $5 million net impairment charge for the write-down of buildings, equipment and other long-lived assets,
primarily capitalized software costs classified in other intangible assets, of one of our previously impaired hospitals to their
estimated fair values primarily due to a decline in the fajr value of real estate in the market in which the hospital operates and a
decline in the estimated fair value of equipment. The aggregate carrying value of assets held and used of the hospital for which an
impairment charge was recorded was $25 million as of December 31, 2010 after recording the impairment charge. In addition, we
recorded a $5 million net impairment charge in connection with the sale of nine medical office buildings in Florida and $2 million
in employee severance and other related costs. These charges were partially offset by a $2 million credit related to the collection of
a note receivable due from a buyer of one of our previously divested hospitals, which had been fully réserved in a prior year.
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Accrued Restructuring Charges

The tables below are reconciliations of beginning and ending liability balances in connection with restructuring charges
recorded during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 in continuing and discontinued operations:

Balances at
Beginning of Restructuring Cash
Period Charges, Net Payments

Balances
at End
Other of Period

Year Ended December 31, 2012
Continuing operations:
Lease and other costs, and employee severance-
related costs in connection with hospital
cost-control programs and general
overhead-reduction plans ..........cccoonresccnerennn. $ 6 $ 14 $(12)
Discontinued operations:
Employee severance-related costs, and other
estimated costs associated with the sale or
closure of hospitals and other facilities............... 5 0 H

$ 11 s 14 $(13)

Year Ended December 31, 2011
Continuing operations:
Lease and other costs, and employee severance-
related costs in connection with hospital
cost-control programs and general
overhead-reduction plans ...........cooccoecinnnnens $ 4 $ 12 $(10)
Discontinued operations: .
Employee severance-related costs, and other
estimated costs associated with the sale or
closure of hospitals and other facilities............... 6 1 1)

5§o 5 6

(1) 5

$ 10 $ 13 san

s s 11

Year Ended December 31, 2010 -
Continuing operations:

Lease and other costs, and employee severance-
related costs in connection with hospital
cost-control programs and general
overhead-reduction plans ............cocovevvneeericnnas ' $ 6 $ 2 $ @

Discontinued operations:

Employee severance-related costs, and other
estimated costs associated with the sale or
closure of hospitals and other facilities............... 8 1) 1)

0 6

$ 4 $ 1 $ 5

$0 $ 10

The above liability balances at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are included in other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Cash payments to be applied against these accruals at December 31, 2012 are
expected to be approximately $7 million in 2013 and $5 million thereafter. The column labeled “Other” above represents charges
recorded in restructuring expense that are not recorded in the liability account, such as the acceleration of stock-based

compensation expense related to severance agreements.
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The table below shows our long-term debt as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Deeember 31, December 31,

5 2012 2011
Senior notes:
6 5%, QUE 201 2.ttt ees et ene b st e s sr e eenesr et $ 0 . $ 57
7%, due 2013.... 55 216
9%%, due 2014 60 60
0/4%, QUE 2015t eoeee v seseeemses e seseseeesee s st eseteseesreesseee s ses s resseseesoseseesees s eeree 474 474
6%.%, due 2020.... 300 0
8%, QUE 2020 ... eeerereeeesrieeeseeesessssaeseeessssersesssesesesessssessasee eensseesessontsenee b sstsbeseseeseereres i seeeenseree 750 600
67%b, AUE 2031 eeeeeee e eee e semeeeee s e s e s e seseene s sr e seereeee e e e eet e st nremeseneeeee 430 430
Senior secured notes: . '
9%, due 2015....... oo ee e rraenen 0 1
6Y4%, QUE 2018 oottt ss s seeaeer s eses s et seeses b ses s ers s ses e sesseese e nerenaresesesrnee 1,041 900
10%, QUE 2008 oot eeees e eee e e oo eeesne e eeseesaeeseem e seeeseemseeesrresea e reessnnrenes 714 714
B7/5%, QUE 2019 c.eeooeeoveeeeeosreeeeescoeseertreesosesasssrssssonne s sssosesasasesassssssesitssesesssssneeeessoreren s enenes 925 925
B3,%, AUE 2020 ...c..eoeervveeeeeeseveesteeeeseeasesesssoeeseeersbess s sesesseesra e s e see et eeseseseee e emessess e erren 500 0
Credit FACILEY QUE 2016.....c.crvoeereoveoresesieeseeseasesesacsessessesseesssessessorssseesesesssosesessesssoesseseseseeeessenersseeenens 0 80
Capital leases and MOITZAGE NOLES .....cccvuveuereieceertrtrere et eece et e s et en e 119 32
Unamortized note diSCOUNLS and PrEIMUMIT ...c.ocvvureeereeereremnmerssneesseseresnssssmescssesesmmsssnsassnsssessessasseses (116) (129)
Total long-term debt ... et e ana st 5,252 4,360
LESS CLITENE POITION. . ..eucereeeemeruracerensenseaesaesessessse eseseasesaimesesnessssesanses sonssnsesssnsassssnsansnsssanssssansnsasansnsen 94 66
Long-term debt, net of current portion...................cccooovvervrennen. e ees st e $ 5,158 $ 4,294
Credit Agreement

We have a senior secured revolving credit facility, as amended November 29, 201! (“Credit Agreement™), that provides,
subject to borrowing availability, for revolving loans in an aggregate principal amount of up to $800 million, with a $300 million
subfacility for standby letters of credit. The Credit Agreement has a scheduled maturity date of November 29, 2016, subject to our
repayment or refinancing on or before December 3, 2014 of approximately $238 million of the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of our 9'/,% senior notes due 2015 (approximately $474 million of which was outstanding at December 31, 2012). If such
repayment or refinancing does not occur, borrowings under the Credit Agreement will be due December 3, 2014. The revolving
credit facility is collateralized by patient accounts receivable of all of our wholly owned acute care and specialty hospitals. Tn
addition, borrowings under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by our wholly owned hospital subsidiaties. Outstanding
revolving loans accrued interest during a six-month initial period that ended in May 2012 at the rate of either (i) a base rate plus a
margin of 1.25% or (ii) the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a margin of 2.25% per annum. Outstanding revolving
loans now accrue interest at a base rate plus a margin ranging from 1.00% to 1.50% or LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 2.00%
to 2.50% per annum based on available credit. An unused commitment fee was payable on the undrawn portion of the revolving
loans at a six-month initial rate that ended in May 2012 of 0.438% per annum. The unused commitment fee now ranges from
0.375% to 0.500% per annum based on available credit. Our borrowing availability is based on a specified percentage of eligible
accounts receivable, including self-pay accounts. At December 31, 2012, we had no borrowings outstanding under the revolving
credit facility, and we had approximately $154 million of standby letters of credit outstanding. Based on our eligible receivables,
approximately $646 million was available for borrowing under the revolving credit facility at December 31, 2012.

Senior Notes and Senior Secured Notes

In October 2012, we sold $500 million aggregate principal amount of 4%,% senior secured notes due 2020 and
$300 million aggregate principal amount of 6%% senior notes due 2020. The 4%% senior secured notes will mature on
June 1, 2020, and the 6%% senior notes will mature on February 1, 2020, We will pay interest on the 4%,% senior secured notes
semi-annually in arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing on June 1, 2013. We will pay interest on the
6%,% senior notes semi-annually in arrears on February 1 and August 1 of each year; payments commenced on February 1, 2013.
We used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the notes to purchase $161 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of
our 7%% senior notes due 2013 in a tender offer. In connection with the purchase, we recorded a loss from early extinguishment
of debt of approximately $4 million primarily related to the difference between the purchase prices and the par vatues of the
purchased notes. »
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In April 2012, we issued an additional $141 million aggregate principal amount of our 6'4% senior secured notes due
2018 at a premium for $142 million of cash proceeds and an additional $150 million aggregate principal amouat of our 8% senior
notes due 2020 in a private financing related to our repurchase and subsequent retirement of 298,700 shares of our 7% mandatory
convertible preferred stock.

In November 2011, we sold $900 million aggregate principal amount of 6'/% senior secured notes due 2018. The notes
will mature on November 1, 2018. We will pay interest on the 6'/,% senior secured notes semi-annually in arrears on May 1 and
November 1 of each year; payments commenced on May 1, 2012.

Also in November 201 |, we purchased approximately $713 million aggregate principal amount of our 9% senior secured
notes due 2015 for total cash of approximately $776 million, including approximately $4 million in accrued and unpaid interest
through the dates of purchase. We purchased the senior secured notes with a portion of the proceeds from our sale of new
6'/,% senior secured notes due 2018, as described above. In connection with the purchase, we recorded a loss from early
extinguishment of debt of approximately $117 million related to the difference between the purchase prices and the par values of
the purchased notes, as well as the write-off of unamortized note discounts and issuance costs associated with the notes.

All of our senior notes are general unsecured senior debt obligations that rank equally in right of payment with all of our
other unsecured senior indebtedness, but are effectively subordinated to our senior secured notes described below, the obligations
of our subsidiaries and any obligations under our Credit Agreement to the extent of the collateral. We may redeem any series of
our senior notes, in whole or in part, at any time at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes
redeemed, plus a make-whole premium specified in the applicable indenture, together with accrued and unpaid interest to the

redemption date.

All of our senior secured notes are guaranteed by and secured by a first-priority pledge of the capital stock and other
ownership interests of certain of our subsidiaties. All of our senior secured notes and the related subsidiary guarantees are our and
the subsidiary guarantors” senior secured obligations. All of our senior secured notes rank equally in right of payment with all of
our other senior secured indebtedness. Our senior secured notes rank senior to any subordinated indebtedness that we or such
subsidiary guarantors inay incur; they are effectively senior to our and such subsidiary guarantors’ existing and future unsecured
indebtedness and other liabilities to the extent of the value of the collateral securing the notes and the subsidiary guarantees; they
are effectively subordinated to our and such subsidiary guarantors’ obligations under our Credit Agreement to the extent of the
value of the collateral securing borrowings thereunder; and they are structurally subordinated to all obligations of our non-

guarantor subsidiaries.

The indentures setting forth the terms of our senior secured notes contain provisions governing our ability to redeem the
notes and the terms by which we may do so. At our option, we may redeem our 4%,% senior secured notes and our 6%% senior
secured notes, in whole or in part, at any time at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes redeemed
plus the make-whole premium set forth in the related indenture, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the
redemption date. In addition, we, at our option, may redeem our 874% and 10% senior secured notes, in whole or in patt,oronor
prior to July 1, 2014 in the case of the 8%% senior secured notes and May 1, 2014 in the case of the 10% senior secured notes, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes redeemed plus the applicable make-whole premium set forth
in the applicable indenture, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the redemption date. At any time or from
time to time after July 1, 2014 in the case of the 8%% senior secured notes and May 1, 2014 in the case of the 10% senior secured
notes, we, at our option, may redeem the notes, in whole or in part, at the redemption prices set forth in the applicable indenture,
together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the redemption date.

In addition, we may be required to purchase for cash all or any part of each series of our senior secured notes upon the
occurrence of a change of control (as defined in the applicable indentures) for a cash purchase price of 101% of the aggregate
principal amount of the notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Covenants

Our Credit Agreement contains customary covenants for an asset-backed facility, including a minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio to be met when the available credit under the revolving credit facility falls below $80 million, as well as limits on
debt, asset sales and prepayments of senior debt. The Credit Agreement also includes a provision, which we believe is customary
in receivables-backed credit facilities, that gives our banks the right to require that proceeds of collections of substantially all of
our consolidated accounts receivable be applied directly to repay outstanding loans and other amounts that are due and payable
under the Credit Agreement at any time that unused borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility is less than
$100 million or if an event of default has occurred and is continuing thereunder. In that event, we would seek to re-borrow under
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the Credit Agreement to satisfy our operating cash requirements. Our ability to borrow under the Credit Agreement is subject to
conditions that we believe are customary in revolving credit facilities, including that no events of default then exist.

The indentures governing our senior notes contain covenants and conditions that have, among other requirements,
limitations on (1) liens on principal properties and (2) sale and lease-back transactions with respect to ptincipal properties. A
principal property is defined in the indentures as a hospital that has an asset value on our books in excess of 5% of our
consolidated net tangible assets, as defined. The above limitations do not apply, however, to (1) debt that is not secured by
principal properties or (2) debt that is secured by principal properties if the aggregate of such secured debt does not exceed 15% of
our consolidated net tangible assets, as further described in the indentures. The indentures also prohibit the consolidation, merger
or sale of all or substantially all assets unless no event of default would result after giving effect to such transaction.

The indentures governing our senior secured notes contain covenants that, among other things, restrict our ability and the
ability of our subsidiaries to incur liens, consummate asset sales, enter into sale and lease-back transactions or consolidate, merge
or sell all or substantially all of our or their assets, other than in certain transactions between one or more of our wholly owned
subsidiaries. These restrictions, however, are subject to a number of important exceptions and qualifications. In particular, there
are no restrictions on our ability or the ability of our subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, make restricted payments, pay
dividends or make distributions in respect of capital stock, purchase or redeem capital stock, enter into transactions with affiliates
or make advances to, or invest in, other entities (including unaffiliated entities). In addition, the indentures governing our senior
secured notes contain a covenant that neither we nor any of our subsidiaries will incur secured debt, unless at the time of and after
giving effect to the incurrence of such debt, the aggregate amount of all such secured debt (including the aggregate principal
amount of senior secured notes outstanding at such time) does not exceed the greater of (i) $3.2 billion or (ii) the amount that
would cause the secured debt ratio (as defined in the indentures) to exceed 4.0 to 1.0; provided that the aggregate amount of all
such debt secured by a lien on par to the lien securing the senior secured notes may not exceed the greater of (a) $2.6 billion or
(b) the amount that would cause the secured debt ratio to exceed 3.0 to 1.0.

Interest Rate Swap and LIBOR Cap Agreements

We were party to an interest rate swap agreement for an aggregate notional amount of $600 million from
February 14, 2011 through August 2, 201 1. The interest rate swap agreement was designated as a fair value hedge and was being
used to manage our exposure to future changes in interest rates. It had the effect of converting our 10% senior secured notes due
2018 from a fixed interest rate paid semi-annually to a variable interest rate paid semi-annually based on the six-month LIBOR
plus a floating rate spread of 6.60%. During the term of the interest rate swap agreement, changes in the fair value of the interest
rate swap agreement and changes in the fair value of the 10% senior secured notes, which we expected to substantially offset each
other, were recorded in interest expense. During the year ended December 31, 2011, our interest rate swap agreement generated
approximately $8 million of cash interest savings and a $22 million gain on the settlement of the agreement.

The fair value of the LIBOR cap agreement included in investments and other assets in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets totaled less than $1 million at both December 31, 2012 and 201 1. Tn addition, see Note 18 for additional disclosure
regarding the fair value of the LIBOR cap agreement.

Future Maturities

Future long-term debt maturities and minimum operating lease payments as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Years Ending Dccember 31, Later

Total 2013 2014 2013 2016 2017 Years
Long-term debt, including capital lease obligations « $5368 $ 94 85104 $ 497 $ 3 8 3 $4,667
Long-term non-cancelable operating leases .........ccococcoveaniiunes $ 439 $I118 $77 %8 58 $ 48 $ 35 § 103

Rental expense under operating leases, including short-term leases, was $156 million, $143 million and $134 million in
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Included in rental expense for these periods was sublease
income of $8 million, $8 million and $12 million, respectively, which was recorded as a reduction to rental expense.

NOTE 7. GUARANTEES

Consistent with our policy on physician relocation and recruitment, we provide income guarantee agreements to certain
physicians who agree to relocate to fill a community need in the service area of one of our hospitals and commit to remain in
practice in the area for a specified period of time. Under such agreements, we are required to make payments to the physicians in
excess of the amounts they earn in their practices up to the amount of the income guarantee. The income guarantee periods are
typically 12 months. If a physician does not fulfill his or her commitment period to the community, which is typically three years
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subsequent to the guarantee period, we seek recovery of the income guarantee payments from the physician on a prorated basis.
We also provide revenue collection guarantees to hospital-based physician groups providing certain services at our hospitals with
terms generally ranging from one to three years.

At December 31, 2012, the maximum potential amount of future payments under our income guarantees to certain
physicians who agree to relocate and revenue collection guarantees to hospital-based physician groups providing certain services
at our hospitals was $120 million. We had a liability of $81 million recorded for these guarantees included in other current
liabilities at December 31, 2012.

We have also guaranteed minimum rent revenue to certain landlords who built medical office buildings on or near our
hospital campuses. The maximum potential amount of future payments under these guarantees at December 31, 2012 was
$4 million. We had a liability of $2 million recorded for these guarantees at December 31, 2012, of which $1 million was included
in other current liabilities and $1 million was included in other long-term liabilities.

NOTE 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Share-Based Compensation Plans

We currently grant stock-based awards to our directors and key employees pursuant to our 2008 Stock Incentive Plan,
which was approved by our shareholders at their 2008 annual meeting. At December 31, 2012, approximately four million shares
of common stock were available under our 2008 Stock Incentive Plan for future stock option grants and other incentive awards,
including restricted stock units. Options have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant and
generally expire 10 years from the date of grant. A restricted stock unit is a contractual right to receive one share of our common
stock or the equivalent value in cash in the future. Options and restricted stock units typically vest one-third on each of the first
three anniversary dates of the grant; however, from time to time, we grant performance-based options and restricted stock units
that vest subject to the achievement of specified performance goals within a specified timeframe.

All amounts related to shares, share prices and earnings per share have been restated to give retrospective presentation for
the reverse stock split described in Note 2.

Our income from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 includes $33 million,
$25 million and $22 million, respectively, of pretax compensation costs related to our stock-based compensation arrangements
($21 million, $15 million and $14 million, respectively, after-tax, excluding the impact of the deferred tax valuation allowance).
The table below shows the stock option and testricted stock unit grants and other awards that comprise the $33 million of
stock-based compensation expense recorded in salaries, wages and benefits in the year ended December 31, 2012. Compensation
cost is measured by the fair value of the awards on their grant dates and is recognized over the requisite service period of the
awards, whether or not the awards had any intrinsic value during the period.

Stock-Based
Fair Value Compensation Expense
. Exercise Price Per Share at for Year Ended
Grant Date Awards Per Share Grant Date December 31,2012
(In Thousands) (In Millions)

Stock Options: '

February 29, 2012 oo 379 $22.60 $11.96 $1

February 25, 2010......c.ooooiriiieienieeceeane 232 20.12 11.56 1

February 26, 2009..........ccooieiiceiiicccccnnans 2,746 4.56 2.84 1
Restricted Stock Units: .

May 11,2012, 67 . 20.28(1) 2

February 29, 2012.......covvieeecciniacneceraeeens 1,019 22.60 7

November 4, 2011 .. 60 19.44(1) 1

February 23, 201 1.....comicerreceeiecermiranionane ’ 935 27.60 9

February 25, 2010.......ccoovcviniennecrieerrrennns 1,065 20.12 8

Other Brants .....cc.cecervevveereeeeeerenresrecersssressnnes 3

333
(1) End of month fair market value was used for this grant to calculate compensation expense.
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Prior to our shareholders approving the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, we granted stock-based awards to our directors and
employees pursuant to other plans. Stock options remain outstanding under those other plans, but no additional stock-based
awards will be granted under them.

Pursuant to the terms of our stock-based compensation plans, awards granted under the plans vest and may be exercised
as determined by the compensation committee of our board of directors. In the event of a change in control, the compensation
committee may, at its sole discretion without obtaining shareholder approval, accelerate the vesting or performance petiods of the
awards.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes stock option activity during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

‘Weighted
Average Weighted
Exercise Aggregate Average
Price Per Intrinsic Remaining
Options Share Value Life
(In Millions)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2009............ccocormeieirereieeressereeeeeeenns 12,079,314 $ 4232
Granted ........c.coocuvnereee . 241,002 20.12
BXELCISEA oottt ettt saastanesar e s snes s asssasssasaesnnsanseasen (520,495) 4.84
Forfeited/EXPITed.....c..cvvmvverremicereresernicranenreriesse et vt testnenraneseasanen (1,010,934) 82.48
Outstanding as of December 31, 2010 10,788,887 39.88
Granted .........cccererenenee 0
EXEICISEA ...t tcee et et rses v e ses e s et ne e be s enansaasessanan (629,021) 5.24
Forfeited/Expired.........cooeverrunneernerecene. (1,661,473) 128.92
Outstanding as of December 31, 2011.........cceeveenneee. 8,498,393 25.04
Granted ........cooeceeieeccennncs . 477,500 22.79
Exercised ............. (3,657,127) 5.77
Forfeited/EXpired........cccocevcnreriereencrrenens (1,029,574) 69.72
Outstanding as of December 31, 2012 4,289,192 $ 30.49 $ 34 4.1 years
Vested and expected to vest at December 31,2012 ............................. 4,284,062 $ 30.50 $ 34 4.1 years
Exercisable as of December 31, 2012 .. .............ccoooeoiivivecreceeen. 3,8152870 $ 31.47 $ 29 3.5 years

There were 3,657,127 stock options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2012 with a $71 million aggregate
intrinsic value, and 629,021 stock options exercised in 2011 with a $14 million aggregate intrinsic value.

As of December 31, 2012, there were $4 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These
costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted average petiod of 2.1 years.

Tn the year ended December 31, 2012, we granted an aggregate of 477,500 stock options under our 2008 Stock Tncentive
Plan to certain of our senior officers; 257,500 of these stock options are subject to time-vesting and 220,000 of these stock options
were granted subject to performance-based vesting. If all conditions are met, the performance-based options will vest and be
settled ratably over a three-year period from the date of the grant. In the year ended December 31, 2011, there were no stock
options granted.

The weighted average estimated fair value of stock options we granted in the year ended December 31, 2012 was $12.05
per share. This fair value was calculated based on the grant date using a binomial lattice model with the following assumptions:

Year Ended
December 31, 2012
EXPECLEA VOLALILILY .. .co.cevverreerrsieriieieasstetcses b v s saras s ranastasnseaanassssboe s saranensasas et et enssnssassosrsnnas 52%
Expected dividend yield.. 0%
Expected life.........ccccovrernnen 6.9 years
Expected forfeiture rate... 2%
Risk-free interest rate ..... 1.06%-1.41%
Early exercise threShold ..ottt e et s s as b s st st et ssans 70% gain
Barly EXEICISE FRLE ....cuvermiiiecreecrriare ittt ettt ee et st sas e e et et eeaanta s en bbbt s eseasnaneeasaen 20% per year
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The expected volatility used in the binomial lattice model incorporated historical and implied share-price volatility and
was based on an analysis of historical prices of our stock and open-market exchanged options. The expected volatility reflects the
historical volatility for a duration consistent with the contractual life of the options, and the volatility implied by the trading of
options to purchase our stock on open-market exchanges. The historical share-price volatility excludes the movements in our stock
price during the period October 1, 2002 through December 31, 2002 due to unique events occurring during that time, which
caused extreme volatility in our stock price, and two dates (one in 2010 and one in 201 1) with unusual volatility due to an
unsolicited acquisition proposal. The expected life of options granted is derived from the output of the binomial lattice model and
represents the period of time that the options are expected to be outstanding. This model incorporates an early exercise assumption
in the event of a significant increase in stock price. The risk-free interest rates are based on zero-coupon United States Treasury
yields in effect at the date of grant consistent with the expected exercise timeframes.

The following table summarizes information about our outstanding stock options at December 31, 2012:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
‘Weighted Average

Number of Remaining ) ‘Weighted Average Number of ‘Weigbted Average
Range of Exercise Prices Options Contractual Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$0.00 to $4.569................. 615,138 6.1 years $ 456 615,138 $ 456
$4.57 to $25.089............... 1,254,167 6.9 years 20.85 780,845 19.84
$25.09 to $32.569............. 758,531 3.5 years 30.01 . 758,531 30.01
$32.57 to $42.529............. 738,289 2.1 years 42.14 } 738,289 42.14
$42.53 to $55.129............: 700,317 1.2 years 48.44 700,317 48.14
$55.13t0 $70.249............. 222,750 0.5 years 62.88 222,750 62.88

4289192 4.1 years $30.49 3,815,870 $31.47

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 75.0% of our outstanding options were held by current employees and
approximately 25.0% were held by former employees. Approximately 61.1% of our outstanding options were in-the-money, that
is, they had an exercise price less than the $32.47 market price of our common stock on December 31, 2012, and approximately
38.9% were out-of-the-money, that is, they had an exercise price of more than $32.47 as shown in the table below:

In-the-Money Options QOut-of-the-Money Options All Options
Outstanding % of Tatal Qutstanding % of Total Qutstanding % of Total
Current employees.................. 2,213,930 84.4% 1,004,781 60.3% 3,218,711 75.0%
Former employees.. 408,906 _15.6% 661,575 39.7% 1,070,481 25.0%
TOAIS ..o 2,622,836 100.0% 1,666,356 100.0% 4,289,192 100.0%
% ot all outstanding options.... 61.1% 38.9% 100.0%

Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

‘Weighted Average
Restricted Stock Grant Date Faixr Value
Units Per Unit
Unvested as of DeCember 31, 2000 ........oooiierecriicierarerieeetsemisraseessesesessessssesessesssanss 1,201,610 $ 2328
Granted ..........cooevveeirvineeecrecernreines . 1,284,825 20.12
Vested.... o ebeeterrae e sarts e e bebranraraen (625,213) 22.80
FOrfefted. ... reeeeecerenee e (280,904) 25.04
Unvested as of December 31, 2010 ........covrieeocrrineeee e veersasnsenaes 1,580,318 20.56
Granted . . 1,138,350 27.04
VESLEW ..ottt et ee sttt re e s a s e s ar et s sr e b aresens bbb s bete s bensers s s s nrrais (722,471) 19.92
FOITEIE. .....rvvveerererenerssessmsereneseneesssseesesssesss e sesesse s e sesesssbes s s ssrnsessceansrenns (68.890) 2372
1,927,307 24.52
1,654,337 22.18
(1,033,632) 2351
(252,070) 23.39
2,295942 $ 2340

In the year ended December 31, 2012, we granted 1,468,403 restricted stock units subject to time-vesting. In addition, we
granted 116,255 performance-based restricted stock units certain of our senior officers. Because all conditions were met, the
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performance-based restricted stock units will vest and be settled ratably over a three-year period from the date of the grant. We
also granted 69,679 restricted stock units to our directors, which vested immediately on the grant date and may be settled in cash,
shares of our common stock or a combination of cash and stock. The fair value of restricted stock units granted to directors will be
adjusted based on our share price at the end of each calendar quarter. Annual grants of restricted stock units to our directors settle
on the earlier of the third anniversary of the date of the grant or termination of board service, unless settlement has been defetred
by the director. Initial grants of restricted stock units to newly appointed directors are settled only upon termination of board

service.

In the year ended December 31, 2011, we granted 882,362 restricted stock units subject to time-vesting. In addition, we
granted 188,859 performance-based restricted stock units to certain of our senior officers. Because all conditions were met, the
performance-based restricted stock units will vest and be settled ratably over a three-year period from the date of the grant. In the
year ended December 31, 2011, we also granted 67,129 restricted stock units to our directors, which vested immediately on the
grant date and may be settled in cash, shares of our common stock or a combination of cash and stock.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were $33 million and $29 million, respectively, of total unrecognized
compensation costs related to restricted stock units. These costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of

2.2 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We have an employee stock purchase plan under which we are currently authorized to issue up to 5,062,500 shares of
common stock to our eligible employees. As of December 31,2012, there were approximately 502,900 shares available for
issuance under our employee stock purchase plan. Under the terms of the plan, eligible employees may elect to have between
1% and 10% of their base earnings withheld each quarter to purchase shares of our common stock. Shares are purchased at a price
equal to 95% of the closing price on the Jast day of the quarter. The plan requires a one-year holding period for all shares issued.
The holding period does not apply upon termination of employment. Under the plan, no individual may purchase, in any year,
shares with a fair market value in excess of $25,000. The plan is currently not considered to be compensatory.

We sold the following numbers of shares under our employee stock purchase plan in the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010:

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Number of shares........c.ccoeveeeceerierenn. 144,021 187,409 192,830
Weighted average price........ccc.ccrereeee $22.81 $21.44 $19.72

Employee Retirement Plans

Substantially all of our employees, upon qualification, are eligible to participate in a defined contribution 401(k) plan.
Under the plan, employees may contribute 1% to 75% of their eligible compensation, and we match such contributions annually
up to a maximum percentage for participants actively employed as of December 31. During the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, the employer match was discretionary, employees were required to work 1,000 hours or more during the plan year
to be eligible to receive any match and the matching percentage was 1.5%. Plan expenses, primarily related to our contributions to
the plan, were approximately $32 million, $32 million and $26 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Such amounts are reflected in salaries, wages and benefits in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of

Operations.

‘We maintain one active and two frozen non-qualified defined benefit pension plans (“SERPs”) that provide supplemental
retirement benefits to certain of our current and former executives. The plans are not funded, and plan obligations are paid from
our working capital. Pension benefits are generally based on years of service and compensation. The following tables summatize
the balance sheet impact, as well as the benefit obligations, funded status and rate assumptions associated with the SERPs based
on actuarial valuations prepared as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:
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December 31,

Reconciliation of funded status of plans and the amounts 2012 2011
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Projected benefit obligations(1)
Begitiinig OBlIGAtIONS ...ccovcerrerereecrsressissirsstnssssierissasssss s ssssssssssssssssssssnissssssens $(285) $(268)
Service oSt ......coceeee ) 2)
INEETEST COST uvvruerenrerrcrnsinseesareesesenseseeesesessrsnsesatessesasonserssessnnasessansesssasssnersonsasssres (14) (14)
ACHUALIAL LOSS «.vvvereeurererretriaretreerarnsteui e eastssera bt s s e as s snaseasasseaeneseaaasenes (30) (19)
Benefits paid ......... 19 18
Ending obligations.....c..cccev oottt et esesnesssee st ceaes et annn e (312) (285)
Fair value of plans’ assets ........ ettt b et e RS s b e et e it et ens : 0 0
Funded SLatus OF PIANS ......ccvcierieimnrcneeireesieevninte e st saessr s s s s sesss e esessnsenas $(312) $(285)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
Other current Hability .......cocccoriverieiinrce e nas e st et saenenes $ 20) 5 Q0
Other long-term liability (292) (265)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 90 65
$(222) $(220)
Assumptions:
DHASCOUNE FALE .......ereieieeciateeeeaar et eieeeiaeseeeee et essesssasseant et eeansssssnasassssessnsssnsnsnsasasans 4.00% 5.00%
Compensation increase rate . 3.00% 3.00%
Measurement ALE ........eeoeeeeenieeiiirieiee et st seee e essrmbeesssenesss s et ssmemsrneeenns December 31,2012  December 31, 2011
(1) The accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2012 and 201 | was approximately $308 million and $280 million, respectively.
The components of net periodic benefit costs and related assumptions are as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Service costs $ 2 $ 2 $ 2
Interest costs 14 14 14
Amortization of prior-year service costs 0 0 0
Amottization of net actuarial 108§ ......cocoeeeeeeceireceiieec e 5 3 1
Net periodic benefit Cost ..........c..ovvmviinineneir e $ 21 $ 19 $ 17
Assumptions: v '
DISCOUNL FALE........ceenriersreeenereneernereeereasssaseer e rnssassassssessessesessesenssnes 5.00% 5.50% 5.75%
Long-term rate of return o @SSets...........ccoveevemmnicncneererericenenennes n/a n/a n/a
Compensation INCIEASE IALE ..........eereeureesrescensriessrrreesrmenssesersceannanens 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Measurement dAte ........cceueierereeerenenersrsesncssesessmssnesrseseseossasisesenions January 1,2012  Japuary 1,2011  Japuary 1, 2010
Census date........... ereeeesreentetetebessisbeneeetaeRe e s er s bt eressr s bt e s saseree January 1,2012  January 1,2011  January 1, 2010

Net periodic benefit costs for the current year are based on assumptions determined at the valuation date of the prior year.

We recorded loss adjustments of $25 million, $16 million and $20 million in other comprehensive income (loss) in the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, to recognize changes in the funded status of our SERPs. Changes in
the funded status are recorded as a direct increase or decrease to shareholders” equity through accumulated other comprehensive
loss. Net actuarial losses of $30 million, $19 million and $21 million during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and the amortization of net prior service costs of less than $1 million for the years ended December 31,2012, 2011
and 2010 were recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). Cumulative net actuarial losses of $90 million, $65 million and
$49 million as of December 31, 2012, 201 I and 2010, respectively, and unrecognized prior service costs of less than $1 million as .
of each of the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic
benefit costs. During the year ending Decembet 31, 2013, no net prior service costs are expected to be recognized as components

of net periodic benefit costs.

The following table presents our estimated future benefit payments for the next five years and in the aggregate for the

five years thereafter:
Years Ending December 31,

Five Years
Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter
SERP benefit payments ........cccovueeanne - e $.202 820 $20  $20  $21  $20 $101
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The SERP obligations of $312 million at December 31, 2012 are classified in the accompanying Consolidated Balance
‘Sheet as an other current liability ($20 million) and an other noncurrent liability ($292 million) based on an estimate of the
expected payment patterns.

NOTE 9. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS N

The principal components of other current assets are shown in the table below:

December 31,

2012 2011

Prepaid EXPENSES ...vvucererseeserineererecerseessersariessesteesesesesssessesese $ 76 $ 73
Physician receivables and relocation agreements 57 58
Physician and group coverage guarantees .............ecocoeveuererenncs 80 104
Disproportionate share hospital revenue receivables .........cooumerireericenees 47 27
Vendor and other nONPatient TECEIVADIES............vvcerereremniinrarirrensisesnreesearesssssssesssssssscsasassessenses 74 47
Grant receivable related to medical residEncy PrOZLAM .........uu.vveeerssressmecesssrsnsssesessssssssssenss 2 2
Electronic health record incentives 1ECEIVaDbIE .........c.vcvecemircurenrenesercienne st rsesecsessessenreses 8 13
Supplemental California Medi-Cal payment receivable ............vrrmeerireemvcunrnrionsnresrenseseesssnnnns 33 16
Sublease receivables.........ocenereieersiisinennmrec e 1 2
Other, net .......ccoovernrneneen 80 36
$ 458 $ 378

Other current assets

Of the total amounts in other current assets, $53 million and $38 million was past due more than 90 days as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively, primarily related to disproportionate share hospital revenue receivables and vendor and other nonpatient

receivables.
NOTE 10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The principal components of property and equipment are shown in the table below:

December 31,
- 2012 2011

LAN oottt ce et st st et st s e s e a s r e abe bbb bbb sra s ne ettt e etans $ 341 $ 350
Buildings and improvements 4,087 4,102
Construction in progress.... 140 236
Equipment..........ccereereene. 3,219 3,048

7,787 7,736
Accumulated depreciation and AMIOMTIZAUON .........c.ccveremeerrererrrineseeseeesessesereentesrssrsesessssasesarens (3,494) (3,386)
Net property and eqUEIPIIENL..........................coovvvveeiveeenieeesssmsess oo seessrsessesoesses s sesese e $4,293 $4,350

Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and impairment write-downs
related to assets held and used. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had $98 million and $109 million, respectively, of property
and equipment purchases accrued for items received but not yet paid. Of these amounts, $93 million and $104 million,
respectively, were included in accounts payable.

NOTE 11. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table provides information on changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, which is included in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Hospital Operations and other 2012 2011
As of January 1:
GOOAWILL......oeeeeeieicrmc it et aee e em e e e $ 3,166 $3,076
Accumulated impairment 10SSES ............cvoeeerverevererreerenrnnes . 2,430) (2424)
TOLAL..... s cerirceeeieinmreien e e are et st a s e b re R e ae R r e et 736 652
Goodwill acquired AUING the YEaT.......ccvruriereuieneetirrcerreeareteses et ntes e seese st sssanas s ses et esaes 104 90
Goodwill allocated to hospital sold... ? 0
Impairment of goodwill... 0 (6)
TOUAL........couvonieeriecineeit sttt isa e et s en s et e st et ta st st s abs st saa st rs s ra s s e ees e ban s b e $_838 $ 736
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2011

$ 3,166
(2,430)

$ 736

2011

oo

oo

Hospital Operations and other 2012
As of December 31: :
GOOAWILL...oeirree ettt ettt eit ettt te s s et ent s see e s e e s b et st sesenabe $3,268
Accumulated IMPAITMENE LOSSES ......cvrreeremrerereeasoaresesesmmesssesesmaersesssessmsssasesessessmsssssossastsssrnes (2,430
TOAL ...t b b e $ 838
Conifer 2012
As of January 1:
GOOAWILL ..oeeevrtrer et ettt s tere s s ssseeeessebssa s ssanse et s naseases st sneasar st st ensann ' $§ o0
Accumulated impairment losses 0
Total....oo et 0
Goodwill acquired during the year. 78
TOtAL. ..ot e e e S 78
As of December 31:
GOOAWITL....coviieemtiecr i csasi e st ca s s bbb s bt st nnee $ 78
Accumulated impairment losses 0
$ 78

$

0

The following table provides information regarding other intangible assets, which are included in the accompanying

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization Value
As of December 31, 2012:
Capitalized SORWAIE COSLS.......uemmirrrricrct ettt $927 $(399) $528
Long-term debt iSSUANCE COSES....ccirniaiiiriiteii ettt s seacesemeese st ane 106 25) 81
OHHET ..ottt s s et seae s ee s se st se e et en saae ot seeeness e e seesasaanessacree 43 2) 41
TOAL. ..ot e e ere et eeens $1,076 $(426) $650
As of December 31, 2011:
Capitalized software costs.. ettt $756 $(344) $412
Long-term debt iSSUANCE COSIS....c..vovrieeriecreiranrescrenceesceencnesessnscasaonesnnsenmsesens 88 (15) 73 ‘
Otter....... R | 5 0 4 1
TOUAL. ..ot e $849 $(369) $489 |
Estimated future amortization of intangibles with finite useful lives as of December 31, 2012 is as follows: ‘
Years Ending December 31, Later
Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Years
Amortization of intangible assets............coeeeeeerreerevereresnericenns $ 650 $106 $95 $79 $71 $57 $242

NOTE 12. INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

The principal components of investments and other assets in our accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets are as

follows:
December 31,
2012 2011
Marketable debt SECUTILIES. .....oceruruuriiereerecerieretereeeranscsrrrestetsese i sesssassessessasssasssssnssessesmnssassesasasensens $15 $ 22
Equity investments in unconsolidated health care entities(1) ......cooovveeerererrenreensecrncecneesensnarnnnae 22 23
Total investments 37 45
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies.. 21 18
LONGLETM EPOSILS.......cornrreerererereeerireestrererencasiinsassssesssrsressesstsnssessesssasantossssstensaesssnansatessssmsesassas 16 47
Land held for expansion, long-term receivables and other assets........covovcceeeverveeverseeniescencsnenene 88 46
$162 $156

Investments and other assets

(1) Equity earnings of unconsolidated atfiliates are included in net operating revenues in the accompanying Consolidated Staterents of Operations and were

$8 million in each of the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011.
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Our policy is to classify investments that may be needed for cash requirements as “available-for-sale.” In doing so, the
carrying values of the shares and debt instruments are adjusted at the end of each accounting period to their market values through
a credit or charge to other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes. At both December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were less than

$1 million of accumulated unrealized gains on these investments.

NOTE 13. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Our accumulated other comprehensive loss is comprised of the following:

December 31,
2012 2011
Unamortized realized losses from interest rate lock derivatives.........cccoouevececovecreroveresnonrerssenns $ O $
Adjustments for supplemental executive retirement plans............coceeeveceerrnrconnieesensnieerneresienne (67 (531
Accumulated other compPrehensive I0Ss..............ccoooovvvuoriveieeveis e sssee s $ (68) $ 59

There was a tax effect allocated to the adjustments for supplemental executive retirement plans for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 of $9 million and $7 million, respectively.

NOTE 14. PROPERTY AND PROFESSIONAL AND GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Praperty Insurance

We have property, business interruption and related insurance coverage to mitigate the financial impact of catastrophic
events or perils that is subject to deductible provisions based on the terms of the policies. These policies are on an occurrence
basis. For the annual policy periods April 1, 2010 through March 31, 2013, we have coverage totaling $600 million per
occurrence, after deductibles and exclusions, with annual aggregate sub-limits of $100 million each for floods and earthquakes and
a per-occurrence sub-limit of $100 million for windstorms with no annual aggregate. With respect to fires and other perils,
excluding floods, earthquakes and windstorms, the total $600 million limit of coverage per occutrence applies. Deductibles are 5%
of insured values up to a maximum of $25 million for floods, California earthquakes and wind-related claims, and 2% of insured
values for New Madrid fault earthquakes, with a maximum per claim deductible of $25 million. Other covered losses, including
fires and other perils, have a minimum deductible of $1 million.

Professional and General Liability Insurance

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the aggregate current and long-term professional and general liability reserves in our
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets were approximately $356 million and $412 million, respectively. These reserves
include the reserves recorded by our captive insurance subsidiaries and our self-insured retention reserves recorded based on
actuarial estimates for the portion of our professional and general liability risks, including incurred but not reported claims, for.
which we do not have insurance coverage. We estimated the reserves for losses and related expenses using expected loss-reporting
patterns discounted to their present value under a risk-free rate approach using a Federal Reserve seven-year maturity rate of
1.18%, 1.35% and 2.71% at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Self-insured retentions are determined for each claim period based on the following insurance policies in effect:

e Policy period June 1, 2012 through May 31, 20]13—Our hospitals generally have a self-insurance retention of
$5 million per occurrence for all claims incurred. Our captive insurance company, The Healthcare Tnsurance
Corporation (“THINC™), retains $10 million per occutrence coverage above our hospitals’ $5 million self-insurance
retention level. The next $10 miltion of claims in excess of these aggregate self-insurance retentions of $15 million
per occurrence are 80% reinsured by THINC with independent reinsurance companies, with THINC retaining 20%
or a maximum of $2 million. Claims in excess of $25 million are covered by our excess professional and general
liability insurance policies with major independent insurance companies, on a claims-made basis, subject to an
aggregate limit of $175 million.

e Policy period June 1, 2011 through May 31, 2012—Our hospitals generally have a self-insurance retention of
$5 million per occurrence for all claims incurred. THINC retains $10 million per occurrence coverage above our
hospitals’ $5 million self-insurance retention level. The next $10 million of claims in excess of these aggregate self-
insurance retentions of $15 million per occurrence are 65% reinsured by THINC with independent reinsurance
companies, with THINC retaining 35% or a maximum of $3.5 million. Claims in excess of $25 million are covered
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by our excess professional and general liability insurance policies with major independent insurance companies, on a
claims-made basis, subject to an aggregate limit of $175 million:

e Policy period June 1, 2010 through May 31, 2011—Our hospitals generally have a self-insurance retention of
$5 million per occurrence for all claims incurred. THINC retains $10 million per oceurrence coverage above our
hospitals’ $5 million self-insurance retention level. The next $10 million of claims in excess of these aggregate self-
insurance retentions of $15 million per occurrence are 55% reinsured by THINC with independent reinsurance
companies, with THINC retaining 45% or a maximum of $4.5 million. Claims in excess of $25 million are covered
by our excess professional and general liability insurance policies with major independent insurance companies, on a
claims-made basis, subject to an aggregate limit of $175 million.

o Policy period June 1, 2009 through May 31, 2010—Our hospitals generally have a self-insurance retention of
$5 million per occutrence for all claims incurred. THINC retains $10 million per occurrence above our hospitals’
$5 million self-insurance retention level. The next $10 million of claims in excess of these aggregate self-insurance
retentions of $15 million per occurrence are 65% reinsured by THINC with independent reinsurance companies,
with THINC retaining 35% or a maximum of $3.5 million. Claims in excess of $25 million are covered by our
excess professional and general liability insurance policies with major independent insurance companies, on a
claims-made basis, subject to an aggregate limit of $175 million, with Tenet retaining 20% of the initial $50 million
layer in excess of $25 million per claim or a maximum of $10 million.

If the aggregate limit of any of our professional and general liability policies is exhausted, in whole or in part, it could deplete or
reduce the limits available to pay any other material claims applicable to that policy period.

Included in other operating expenses, net, in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations is malpractice
expense of $92 million, $108 million and $56 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 15. CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS

We operate in a highly regulated and litigious industry. As a result, various lawsuits, claims, and legal and regulatory
proceedings have been and can be expected to continue to be instituted or asserted against us. The resolution of any of these
matters could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows in a given period.

In accordance with ASC 450, “Contingencies,” and related guidance, we record accruals for estimated losses relating to
claims and lawsuits when available information indicates that a loss is probable and the amount of the loss, or range of loss, can be
reasonably estimated. Where a loss on a material matter is reasonably possible and estimable, we disclose an estimate of the loss
or a range of loss. In cases where we have not disclosed an estimate, we have concluded that the loss is either not reasonably
possible or the loss, or a range of loss, is not reasonably estimable, based on available information.

1. Governmental Reviews—Health care companies are subject to numerous investigations by various governmental
agencies. Further, private parties have the right to bring qui tam or “whistleblower” lawsuits against companies that
allegedly submit false claims for payments to, or improperly retain overpayments from, the government and, in some
states, private payers. Certain of our individual facilities have received inquiries from govemment agencies, and our
facilities may receive such inquiries in future periods. The following material governmental reviews are currently
pending.

®  Review of Billing Practices for Kyphoplasty Procedures. The U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”), in
coordination with the Office of Inspector General (*OIG”) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services (“HHS”), has contacted a number of hospitals nationwide requesting information regarding their
billing practices in connection with kyphoplasty procedures. More specifically, the government is investigating
the appropriateness of Medicare patients receiving kyphoplasty — which is a surgical procedure used to treat
pain and related conditions associated with certain vertebrae injuries ~ on an inpatient as opposed to an
outpatient basis. In March 2009, one of our hospitals received an information request from the DOJ regarding
these procedures and, in July 2010, we were notified that seven additional hospitals were also under review.
Following a chart review by our external clinical expert and non-binding discussions with the government, we
entered into an agreement with the DOJ in January 2013 for approximately $900,000 (which was previously
reserved) to settle claims relating to the first hospital to receive an information request. In September 2012, we
reached agreement with the DOJ on the appropriate methodology to review the billing practices of a second
hospital, and our expert has completed the chart review for that hospital. As a result, in the three months ended
December 31, 2012, management established a reserve, as described below, to reflect the current estimate of
probable liability for that second hospital. Because we have not reached agreement with the DOJ on the
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appropriate methodology to review the billiug practices of the remaining five hospitals under review, we are
unable to calculate an estimate of loss or range of loss with respect to those hospitals.

»  Review of Billing Practices for Cardiac Defibrillator Implantation Procedures. The DOJ has contacted a
number of hospitals nationwide requesting information regarding their Medicare billing practices in connection
with the implantation of cardiac defibrillators. As previously reported, in March 2010, the DOJ issued a civil
investigative demand to one of our hospitals pursuant to the federal False Claims Act seeking information to
determine if procedures to implant cardiac defibrillators at that hospital from 2002 to 2010 were performed in
accordance with Medicare coverage requirements. Also as previously reported, in September 2010, the DOJ
notified us that its review may extend to billing procedures at 32 of our other hospitals in addition to the hospital
that received the original information request. The nurnber of hospitals under review may increase or decrease
depending on the timeframe of the govemment’s examination.

o Review of Arrangements with Local Service Provider. We received a subpoena from the OIG in Atlanta seeking
documents from January 2004 through May 2012 related to the relationship that Atlanta Medical Center, North
Fulton Regional Hospital, South Fulton Medical Center and Spalding Regional Hospital (all located in Georgia)
and Hilton Head Hospital (located in South Carolina) had with Hispanic Medical Management, Inc. (“HMM™).
HMM is an unaffiliated entity that owns and operates clinics that provide, among other things, prenatal care
predominately to Hispanic women. The hospitals contracted with HMM for translation services, marketing
services and Medicaid eligibility assistance. The investigation is being conducted by the U.S. Attormey’s Office
for the Middle District of Georgia along with the Civil Division of the DOJ. We understand the government’s
review focuses on whether the arrangements violated the federal Anti-kickback Statute and False Claims Act.
We have produced documents and information responsive to the subpoena and are cooperating with the
government’s review. At this time, we are unable to determine the potential impact, if any, that will result from
the final resolution of this investigation.

Except with respect to the recently settled matter involving one hospital discussed above, our analysis of these pending
reviews is still ongoing, and we are unable to predict with any certainty the progress or final outcome of any discussions
with government agencies at this time. Based on currently available information, as of December 31, 2012, we had
recorded reserves of approximately $3 million in the aggregate with respect to three hospitals under review in the
foregoing governmental proceedings. Changes in the reserves may be required in the future as additional information
becomes available. We cannot predict the ultimate resolution of any governmental review, and the final amounts paid in
settlement or otherwise, if any, could differ materially from our currently recorded reserves.

Hospital-Related Tort Claim—As previously reported, in May 2012, the Superior Court in Los Angeles County,
California reduced punitive damages awarded in connection with an alleged April 2006 assault at Tarzana Regional
Medical Center (a hospital we divested in 2008) from $65 million to $5 million, (The plaintiff was also previously
awarded compensatory damages of approximately $2.4 million in the lawsuit — which is captioned Rosenberg v. Encino-
Tarzana Regional Medical Center and Tenet Healthcare Corporation.) The plaintiff subsequently filed a motion seeking
attorneys’ fees in the amount of $6 million; however, the judge instead awarded attoreys’ fees of $1.5 million. Both
parties have filed notices appealing all aspects of the final judgment.

In the three months ended December 31, 2011, the Company recorded a reserve of approximately $6 million in
discontinued operations for this matter. For purposes of computing the reserve, management estimated that the probable
range of loss would be between approximately $6 million and $25 million (including approximately $1 million in
attorneys’ fees) based on our expectation, after analysis of relevant case law, that a California court would apply U.S.
Supreme Court opinions that generally limit, as a matter of constitutional law, the amount of a punitive award to be no
more than a multiple of nine times the compensatory award and, in the case of a substantial compensatory award, to be
no more than a multiple of one times that award. At that time, management concluded that no amount within this range is
any more likely than any other; therefore, in accordance with ASC 450, the accrual was recorded at the low end of the

estimated range.

Although we are unable to predict the ultimate resolution of this lawsuit at this time, we continue to believe that the
current reserve, recorded at the low end of the estimated range, reflects our probable liability. We intend to continue to
vigorously defend ourselves in this matter.

Ordinary Course Matters—Also, as previously reported, we are defendants in a class action lawsuit in which the
plaintiffs claim that in April 1996 patient identifying records from a psychiatric hospital that we closed in 1995 were
temporarily placed in an unsecure location while the hospital was undergoing renovations. The lawsuit, Doe, et al. v. Jo
Ellen Smith Medical Foundation, was filed in the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans in Louisiana in

March 1997 and is currently pending. The plaintiffs’ claims include allegations of tortious invasion of privacy and
negligent infliction of emotional distress. The plaintiffs contend that the class consists of approximately 5,000 persons;
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however, only eight individuals have been identified to date in the class certification process. The plaintiffs have asserted
each member of the class is entitled to common damages under a theory of presumed “common damage” regardless of
whether or not any members of the class were actually harmed or even aware of the incident. We believe there is no
authority for an award of common damages under Louisiana law. In addition, we believe that there is no basis for the
certification of this proceeding as a class action under applicable federal and Louisiana law precedents. However, the trial
court has denied our motions for summary judgment and our motion to decertify the class. In March 2012, the Louisiana
Supreme Court denied our interlocutory appeal of the trial court’s decision on summary judgment based on procedural
grounds, noting that we retain an adequate remedy to appeal any adverse judgment that might be rendered by the trial
court, In April 2012, we filed a notice of appeal of the trial court’s denial of our motion to decertify the proceeding as a
class action. The notice of appeal was granted, and the trial has been stayed pending the outcome of the appeal. At this
time, we are not able to estimate the reasonably possible loss or reasonably possible range of loss given: the small
number of class members that have been identified or otherwise responded to the class certification process; the novel
theories asserted by plaintiffs, including their assertion that a theory of presumed common damage exists under
Louisiana law; uncertainties as to the timing and outcome of the appeals process; and the failure of the plaintiffs to
provide any evidence of damages. We intend to vigorously contest the plaintiffs’ claims.

In addition to the matters described above, our hospitals are subject to investigations, claims and legal proceedings in the
ordinary course of our business. Most of these matters involve allegations of medical malpractice or otlier injuries
suffered at our hospitals. We are also party in the normal course of business to regulatory proceedings and private
litigation concerning the terms of our union agreements and the application of various federal and state labor laws, rules
and regulations governing, among other things, a variety of workplace wage and hour issues. Furthermore, our hospitals
are routinely subject to sales and use tax audits and personal property tax audits by the state and local government
jurisdictions in which they do business. The results of the audits are frequently disputed, and such disputes are ordinarily
resolved by administrative appeals or litigation. It is management’s opinion that the ultimate resolution of these ordinary
course investigations, claims and legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

New claims or inquiries may be initiated against us from time to time. These matters could (1) require us to pay substantial
damages or amounts in judgments or settlements, which individually or in the aggregate could exceed amounts, if any, that may be
recovered under our insurance policies where coverage applies and is available, (2) cause us to incur substantial expenses,

(3) require significant time and attention from our management, and (4) cause us to close or sell hospitals or otherwise modify the
way we conduct business.

The table below presents reconciliations of the beginning and ending liability balances in connection with legal
settlements and related costs recorded during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Balances at Litigation and Balances at

Beginning Investigation Cash End of
of Period Costs Payments Other Period

Year Ended December 31, 2012
Contining OPETALONS ......vceverrreemriremreecrscsrarsssasiaressons $ 49 $ 5 $ (49 $ 0 $ 5
Discontinued operations...............ooewvveererneena. 17 0 (12) 0 5
$ 66 $5 $ (61) $ 0 $ 10

Year Ended December 31, 2011
ContinUing OPETAtIONS .uee.vee.vueeerserecretresseessereeesssssanenns $ 30 $ 55 $ (36) $ 0 $ 49
Discontinued Operations.................ooocovveeeeserereeeseeesenne 0 17 0 0 17
$ 30 $72 $ (36) $ 0 $ 66

Year Ended December 31,2010

Continuing OPETAtONS ......c.vvievmecvervriueresssmssrseressensarans $ 95 $ 12 $ (78) $ 1 $ 30
Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0
$ 95 $12 $ (78) $ 1 $ 30

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recorded net costs of $5 million, $72 million and
$12 million, respectively, in connection with significant legal proceedings and investigations. The 2012 amount primarily related
to costs associated with various legal proceedings and governmental reviews. The 2011 amount primarily related to costs
associated with our evaluation of an unsolicited acquisition proposal received in November 2010 (which was subsequently
withdrawn), changes in reserve estimates established in connection with certain governmental reviews described above, accruals
for a physician privileges case and certain hospital-related tort claims, the settlement of a union arbitration claim, and costs to
defend the Company in various matters. The 2010 costs primarily related to costs to defend the Company in various matters and
changes in reserve estimates established in connection with certain governmental reviews, as well as costs associated with our
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evaluation of the unsolicited acquisition proposal received in November 2010, The amount for 2010 in the column entitled
“Qther” above related to the reclassification of previously recorded reserves associated with certain of the matters described above
to the accrued legal settlement costs caption in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
consists of the following:

_ Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Current tax expense (benefit):
FEATAL ..ottt st st bt bn s b se b en s e e § @3 $ o0 $ 6
SEALE coveverererenieeirrrsiesesaseseres st e st se st ssssatesastsssesssstessessesssessssrsseerbesebesaseseassasntarase 11 6 0
8 (©) 6
Deferred tax expense (benefit):
FEACTAL .. oeeeo oo eeee s eeeeeeesemesees e eseoesseseeee e seee st ee et eememeeess e eeseees e sesnne 117 62 (929)
SHALE 1.evecrieererrererrereeesststen e s sensinsaen 0 5 (54)
117 67 (983)
i $ 125 $ 61 $91)

A reconciliation between the amount of reported income tax expense (benefit) and the amount computed by multiplying
income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes by the statutory federal income tax rate is shown below:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Tax expense at statutory federal rate 0f 35%.......c.cvreerrvreencernenresirrsereresensnassencns $ 117 $ 57 $ 55
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit........ccoceovvieeecvievirercnnecinn, 13 10 10
Tax attributable to nONCONtTOlliNg INETESES ....cvuvcrreerieeireerieirearisarecrenerenceseenssansionns 4 4 3
Other changes in valuation allowance ®) 2) (1,054)
Change in tax contingency reserves, including iBterest ...........cooeevvreererecsernrensens 03] - (12) 16
Prior-year provision to return adjustment and other changes in deferred
taxes, net of valuation alloWancCe .........cccceuviieieicienece e seeas e sneenas 3 7 3)
Other items ......coeerrrensenen. bbb st bR r s s r s aR s ek st bt st sane 2 5 2
$ 125 $§ 61 $(977)

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for income tax purposes. The following table discloses those
significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, including any valuation allowance:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiliti¢s

Depreciation and fixed-asset differences...........coeceeversrceinnrirnreereenseseseas $ 0 $375 3 0 $418
Reserves related to discontinued operations and restructuring charges...... 5 0 5 0
Receivables (doubtful accounts and adjustments).........cccevererecermrrreseececs 173 0 178 0
Deferred gain on debt exchanges...........ccocecunnees : 0 53 0 53
Accruals for retained insurance risks... 182 0 197 0
TNLANZIDIE @SSEIS......coreucureerisicnirnitene e seneees ettt cs st sssns st s e s sreenessnenssnens 0 122 0 115
Other long-term liabilities 55 0 53 0
Benefitplans........cccovreennee. 214 0 190 0
Other accrued liabilities............ccoucveverervinievccnerieennnas tl 0 31 0
Investments and other assets. 6 0 5 0
Net operating loss carryforwards 588 0 695 0
Stock-based COMPENSALON ... .......cevrreuereriremieenreseeeeressiareesssersesssasesssasass 32 0 44 0
Other HemS .....ooeeeeeeeeeeenenns e eter et e eteteteseeaee et asaneaastetaesas s et nranan 36 0 41 0
1,302 550 1,439 .586

Valuation ALIOWANCE ......cvreererrressessssrsirsseenssesessnssssssssssssassionssnsssasssenssessans (56) 0 (61) 0
$ 1,246 $550 $1378 $586
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Below is a reconciliation of the deferred tax assets and habilities and the coresponding amounts reported in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

December 31,
2012 2011
Current pottion of deferred INCOME LAXES ......cvrreerecrecmcrermnrenininre s ieniessessessiecssesererses $ 354 $ 418
Deferred income taxes, net Of CUITENL POITION ..........ceverensrecaeerersesesesesssensuntesenssenssesesssasens 342 374
Noncurrent deferred income tax liability................. et ettt et 0 0
$ 696 $ 792

Net deferred tax aSSeL..............cooooviiiiiiiiiiieecee et et et et a e eensere e tene e e

The provision for income taxes in the year ended December 31, 2010 included an income tax benefit of $998 million in
continuing operations related to a decrease in the valuation allowance for our deferred tax assets and other tax adjustments. The
net decrease in the valuation allowance during the year ended December 31, 2010 is primarily attributable to the estimated
realization of deferred tax assets resulting from the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards against projected future years’
taxable income. After considering all available evidence, both positive (including cumulative profits, carryforward periods for
utilization of federal net operating loss carryovers and other factors) and negative (including cumulative Josses in past years and
other factors), we concluded that the valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets should be reduced by approximately
$1.06 billion. The remaining $66 million balance in the valuation allowance as of December 31, 2010 was primarily attributable to
certain state net operating loss carryovers and federal tax credits that, more likely than not, will expire unutilized. Based on the
improvement of our operating results in 2009 and 2010 and our assessment of projected future results of operations, we
determined that realization of the deferred income tax benetit was more likely than not. As a result, our judgment about the need
for this valuation allowance changed and the reduction in the valuation allowance was recorded as a benefit in the provision for

income taxes.

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted ASC 740-10-25, which prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial
statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income
tax returns. The table below summarizes the total changes in unrecognized tax benefits during the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, The additions and reductions for tax positions include the impact of items for which the
ultimate deductibility is highly certain, but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductions. Such amounts
include unrecognized tax benefits that have impacted deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. -

Continuing Discontinued

Operations Operations Total
Balance at December 31,2009 .................cooooiiiiiineeii et $ 34 $ 12 $ 46
Additions for prior-year taxX POSItIONS. .......ccvereriieeessescoeersoriresransesssssssessessassssessanas 12 0 12
Reductions for tax positions Of PIiOL YEAIS ..........evruereeeecercerumirsresesescssiennressensane (12) in (23)
Additions for current-year tax positions .... 1 0 1
Reductions for current-year tax POSIIONS ......cerwrrueereesereorercerisnasnasassserssasresssssceens 0 0 0
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authorities .......c.vecerremvcenerisecosrennnecans 0 0 0
Reductions due to a lapse of statute of limitations ....... ) 0 §)
Balance at December 31,2010............ 34 1 35
Additions for prior-year taX POSIIONS..........ccorcetrurricrcrraertrrecrriaieseeeeeereresmenessaeseneans 15 0 15
Reductions for taxX POSIHONS 0 PHOL YEAIS ...oveeueremeeonssseseeseresorecesseesmsssesressecsameene @) 0 @)
Additions for current-year tax POSIHOMS ......c.cereurirererereeeereerecnscemesseeesescssensenese 3 0 3
Reductions for current-year taX POSIIONS ......cocreerecrererrecrmreesisevsssesesssensesersnseseraes 0 0 0
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authorities ..........cocoeevinerevceccrcnrracenne (12) 0 (12)
Reductions due to a lapse of statute of limitations ...........ccccveesrennne “) 0 )
Balance at December 31, 2011 ........... 34 1 35
Additions for prior-year tax positions 0 0 0
Reductions for tax poSItions Of PriOT YEAIS .........cccveerieuriererieiernmsrsssmeeencsceneenns @ 0 @
Additions for current-year taX POSILIONS .........oeeveeeeeieereesneeeencuesseserescnsssssesneens 2 0 2
Reductions for current-year taX POSHIONS .......ccseereeeeeueeereerenrsceroniarerseessensencsssreessneens 0 0 0
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authOHHES ......cvcirvrveeeecccmrinerinnnenns ©) 0 3
Reductions due to a lapse of statute of limitations .............. teeee st © 0 ©
Balance at December 31, 2012 ................ccoooovomeiiiiieiene et $ 3 $§ 1 $ 32
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The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2012 was $32 million, which, if recognized, would affect our
effective tax rate and income tax expense (benefit) from continuing and discontinued operations. Income tax expense in the year
ended December 31, 2012 includes expense of $3 million in continuing operations attributable to an increase in our estimated
liabilities for uncertain tax positions, net of related deferred tax effects. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of
December 31, 2011 was $35 million, which, if recognized, would impact our effective tax rate and income tax expense (benefit)
from continuing and discontinued operations. Income tax expense in the year ended December 31, 2011 includes a benefit of
$21 million ($2 million related to continuing operations and $19 million related to discontinued operations) attributable to a
reduction in our estimated liabilities for uncertain tax positions, net of related deferred tax effects. The total amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2010 was $35 million of which $23 million, if recognized, would affect our
effective tax rate and income tax expense (benefit) from continuing and discontinued operations. Income tax expense in the year
ended December 31, 2010 inchides a benefit of $58 million ($45 million related to continuing operations and $13 million related
to discontinued operations) attributable to a reduction in our estimated liabilities for uncertain tax positions, net of related deferred
tax effects, primarily as a result of audit setflements and the expiration of statutes of limitation.

Our practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense in our
consolidated statements of operations. Approximately $1 million of interest and penalties related to accrued liabilities for uncertain
tax positions related to continuing operations are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year
ended December 31, 2012. Total accrued interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2012 were
$8 million, all of which related to continuing operations.

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) has completed the audits of our tax returns for all tax years ending on or before
December 31, 2007. All disputed issues with respect to these audits have been resolved and all related tax assessments (including
interest) have been paid. Tax returns for years ended after December 31, 2007 are not cutrently under examination by the IRS.
During 2011, the resolution of tax and interest computations by the IRS resulted in a net refund of tax and interest of $18 million
with respect to the tax years ended May 31, 1998 through December 31, 2003, and payment of ${5 million of tax and interest with
respect to the tax years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007.

As of December 31, 2012, approximately $8 million of unrecognized federal and state tax benefits, as well as reserves for
interest and penalties, may decrease in the next 12 months as a result of the settlement of audits, the filing of amended tax returns

or the expiration of statutes of limitations.

At December 31, 2012, our carryforwards available to offset future taxable income consisted of (1) federal net operating
loss (“NOL”) carryforwards of approximately $1.5 billion pretax expiring in 2024 to 2029, (2) approximately $19 million in
alternative minimum tax credits with no expiration, (3) general business credit carryforwards of approximately $14 million
‘expiring in 2023 through 2032, and (4) state NOL carryforwards of $3.2 billion expiring in 2012 through 2032 for which the
associated deferred tax benefit, net of valuation allowance and federal tax impact, is $34 million, Our ability to utilize NOL
carryforwards to reduce future taxable income may be limited under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code if certain
ownership changes in our company occur during a rolling three-year period. These ownership changes include purchases of
common stock under share repurchase programs (see Note 2), the offering of stock by us, the purchase or sale of our stock by
5% shareholders, as defined in the Treasury regulations, or the issuance or exercise of rights to acquire our stock. If such '
ownership changes by 5% shareholders result in aggregate increases that exceed 50 percentage points during the three-year period,
then Section 382 imposes an annuai limitation on the amount of our taxable income that may be offset by the NOL carryforwards
or tax credit carryforwards at the time of ownership change.

NOTE 17. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

The table below is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of our basic and diluted eamings (loss) per
cormmon share calculations for income from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.
Income is expressed in millions and weighted average shares are expressed in thousands.

2
Weighted
Average
Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denomi ) A t
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Income available to Tenet Healthcare Corporation common shareholders
for basic earnings Per Share.........c.covereirricreureriecernrmrsenmenssenseseseceereresenaernees $ 185 104,200 $1.77
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock URILS.........coreverreenmcrvenuennecn. 0 4,726 (0.07)
Income available to Tenet Healthcare Corporation commeon
shareholders for diluted earnings per share................coincn $ 185 108,926 ' $1.70
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‘Weighted

. Average
Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (D inator) Am
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Income available to Tenet Healthcare Corporation common shareholders :
for basic earnings per Share..........ccocoveevvvererecsnnrerersseenrene $ o8 117,182 $0.58
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock units 0 . 4,113 (0.02)
Income available to Tenet Healthcare Corporation common
shareholders for diluted earmings per share ... $ 68 121,295 $0.56
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Income available to Tenet Healthcare Corporation common shareholders
for basic €armings PEr SHATE. .........c...cereeereininriereecensiecminenerineessesserecitransanssenns $1,101 121,080 $9.09
Effect of dilutive stock options, resiricted stock units and mandatory
convertible preferred Stock.........ocenicineimvcencinnccsencons et e 24 19,078 (1.06)
Income available to Tenet Healthcare Corporation common
shareholders for diluted earnings per share..............ccc.ccovecnnincccnnnenna. $1,125 140,158 $8.03

Stock options (in thousands) whose exercise price exceeded the average market price of our common stock and,
therefore, were not included in the computation of diluted shates for the years ended December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010 were

2,876, 3,421 and 5,043 shares, respectively.

NOTE 18. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Our financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis primarily relate to investments in available-
for-sale securities held by our captive insurance subsidiaries and our derivative contracts. The following tables present information
about our assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31,2012 and 2011. The
following tables also indicate the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques we utilized to determine such fair values. In
general, fair values determined by Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. We consider a security that trades at least weekly to have an active market. Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs
utilize data points that are observable, such as quoted prices, interest rates and yield curves. Fair values determined by Level 3
inputs are unobservable data points for the asset or liability, and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for

the asset or liability.

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets tor Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inpauts
Investments: December 31,2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Marketable securities — CUTent.....co...ovveeievirrreeriaereneenn $ 4 $ 4 $ 0 $0
Investments in Reserve Yield Plus Fund.. 2 0 2 0
Marketable debt securities — noncurrent.......................... 14 2 11 1
: $ 20 $ 6 $ 13 $1
Derivative Contracts (see Note 6):
LIBOR €ap agreement aSSEt ......vemreummerrrvsmesessonresnrnnnsnanese $ 0 $§ 0 $ 0 50
Quoted Prices
in Active . Significant
Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
Investments: December 31,2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments in Reserve Yield Plus Fund...........co.oeo....... $ 2 $ 0 $ 2 $0
Marketable debt securities — noncurrentt..........coenen....... 22 - 6 15 1
$ 24 $ 6 $ 17 $1
Derivative Contracts (see Note 6):
LIBOR cap agreement asset .........u....revveseemsserereveennn. $ 0 $ 0 $0 $0

There was no change in the fair value of our auction rate securities valued using significant unobservable inputs during
the years ended December 31, 2012 or 2011.

116

ATTACHMENT 39

/57




At December 31, 2012, one of our captive insurance subsidiaries held $1 million of preferred stock and other securities
that were distributed from auction rate securities whose auctions have failed due to sell orders exceeding buy orders. We were not
required to record an other-than-temporary impairment of these securities during the years ended December 31, 2012 or 2011.

Our non-financial assets and liabilities not permitted or required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis
typically relate to long-lived assets held and used, long-lived assets held for sale and goodwill. We are required to provide
additional disclosures about fair value measurements as part of our financial statements for each major category of assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. The following table presents this information and indicates the fair value
hierarchy of the valuation techniques we utilized to determine such fair values. In general, fair values determined by Level 1
inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which generally are not applicable to
non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs utilize data points that are observable, such as
definitive sales agreements, appraisals or established market values of comparable assets. Fair values determined by Level 3 inputs
are unobservable data points for the asset or liability and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset
or liability, such as internal estimates of future cash flows.

Quoted Prices
in Active . Significant
Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
December 34, 2044 (Level 1) Level 2) (Level 3)
Long-lived assets held and used .........co.cccoeermeeirerennnnn.. $ 20 $ o0 $ 20 $ o0
GOOAWIIL..e.cenvveurerreeaererame ettt sbens oo $ 0 $ o 8% 0 $ o

As described in Notes 4 and 5, we recorded $12 miilion in impairment charges in the year ended December 31, 2011
consisting of (i) $6 million in continuing operations for the write-down of buildings and equipment of one of our previously
impaired hospitals to their estimated fair values of $20 million primarily due to a decline in the fair value of real estate in the
market in which the hospital operates and a decline in the estimated fair value of equipment and (ii) $§6 million in discontinued
operations for the write-off of goodwill associated with our diagnostic imaging center business in Louisiana to its implied fair

value of $0.

The fair value of our long-term debt is based on quoted market prices (Level 1). At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
estimated fair value of our long-term debt was approximately 108.2% and 104.9%, respectively, of the carrying value of the debt.

NOTE 19. ACQUISITIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we acquired a diagnostic imaging center, an oncology center, an urgent care
center, a health plan, a cyberknife center in which we previously lield a noncontrolling interest, a majority interest in nine
ambulatory surgery centers (in one of which we had previously held a noncontrolling interest), as well as 20 physician practice
entities and a physician practice management company in which we had previously held a noncontrolling interest as part of our
Hospital Operations and other segment. Also during the year ended December 31, 2012, our Conifer segment acquired an
information management and services company and a hospital revenue cycle management business. The fair value of the
consideration conveyed in the acquisitions (the “purchase price”) was $211 million.

We are required to allocate the purchase prices of the acquired businesses to assets acquired or liabilities assumed and, if
applicable, noncontrolling interests based on their fair values. The excess of the purchase price allocation over those fair values is
recorded as goodwill. We are in process of finalizing the purchase price allocations, including valuations of the acquired property
and equipment, for several recently acquired outpatient centers; therefore, the purchase price allocations for those centers are
subject to adjustment once the valuations are completed. We are also in process of finalizing the purchase price allocations,
including valuations of the acquired identifiable intangible assets, for the recent acquisitions made by our Conifer subsidiary;
therefore, the purchase price allocations for those acquisitions are subject to adjustment once the valuations are completed. During
the year ended December 31, 2012, we finalized the purchase price allocations for various outpatient centers acquired in 2011,
which resulted in an increase in goodwill of $1 million with a corresponding decrease in property and equipment.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we acquired 5 outpatient centers — four diagnostic imaging centers, a
majority interest in one other diagnostic imaging center, three oncology centers, an urgent care center, a majority interest in five
ambulatory surgery centers, and a majority interest in one other ambulatory surgety center in which we previously held a minority
interest. In 2011, we also acquired 26 physician practice entities. The fair value of the consideration conveyed in the acquisitions

(the “purchase price™) was $84 million.
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Purchase price allocations for the acquisitions made during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2012 2011

Current assets.......ouceereereene RRUIOTOTRIOS $ 19 $ 8
Property and equipment. 24 34
Other intangible assets........ccocoeeierrcereeccnennnen. 53 2
GOoodWilL ...t 182 86
Current liabilities ....... 23) @
Long-term liabilities D . (8)
Redeemable noncontrolling interests in

equity of consolidated subsidiaries............ 0 (16)
Noncontrolling interests .... 37 (15)
Netcashpaid .................coooveviiiiiceeceie § m $ 84

The goodwill generated from these transactions, which we anticipate will be fully deductible for income tax purposes, can be
attributed to the benefits that we expect to realize from operating efficiencies and increased reimbursement. Approximately

$6 million and $4 million in wansaction costs related to prospective and closed acquisitions were expensed during the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

NOTE 20. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In the three months ended June 30, 2012, we began reporting Conifer as a separate reportable business segment. Our
other segment is Hospital Operations and other. Historically, our business has consisted of one repottable segment. However,
during the three months ended June 30, 2012, our Hospital Operations and other segment and our Conifer subsidiary entered into
formal agreements, pursuant to which it was agreed that services provided by both parties to each other would be billed based on
estimated third-party pricing terms. The factors for determining the reportable segments include the manner in which management
evaluates operating performance combined with the nature of the individual business activities.

Our core business is Hospital Operations and other, which is focused on owning and operating acute care hospitals and
outpatient facilities. We also own various related health care businesses. At December 31, 2012, our subsidiaries operated
49 hospitals with a total of 13,216 licensed beds, primarily serving urban and suburban communities, as well as 117 free-standing
and provider-based outpatient centers.

We also operate revenue cycle management and patient communications services businesses under our Conifer
subsidiary. In addition, Conifer operates a management services business that supports value-based performance through clinical
integration, financial risk management and population health management. At December 31, 2012, Conifer provided services to
more than 600 Tenet and non-Tenet hospital and other clients nationwide.

As mentioned above, in 2012, our Conifer subsidiary and our Hospital Operations and other segment entered into
formal agreements documenting terms and conditions of various services provided by Conifer to Tenet hospitals, as well as
certain administrative services provided by our Hospital Operations and other segment to Conifer. The services provided by
both parties under these agreements are charged to the other party based on estimated third-party pricing terms. Tn 2011 and
2010, the services provided by both parties were charged to the other party based on an estimate of the internal costs to provide
such services. The amounts in the tables directly below reflect the services being charged based on estimated third-party terms
in 2012, but not in 2011 or 2010.

The following table includes amounts for each of our reportable segments and the reconciling items necessary to agree
to amounts reported in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Operations:

December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Assets:
Hospital Operations and other...... ........ccccoeeiienerresniscenenssssssseerssesseessennss $ 8825 $ 8389 $ 8437
COBIEET c.vovv s eeeevvsse e eeeseessa et sene s e base s ssss s ssses s e s sbnse b5t esesr e 219 73 63
TOCAL ...ttt ee e ee et e e e e s a e st e e et veeneeesine $ 9’044 $ 87462 $ 8,500
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Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Capital expenditures:
Hospital Operations and Other............c.cccrcverimemrissmmsicrsessssessesseseseesesesnaenns $ 495 $ 461 $ 465
COMTEE ..ottt et et s s sttt v s s sneee 13 14 11
TOAL ..o seeessseestss s s e $ S08 $ 475 $ 47
Net operating revenues:
Hospital Operations and Other .............couvcereeeeerrensunncasinsiressssesesseesasrossesens $ 9,002 $ 8575 $ 8216
Conifer ..... et ettt st r e et r s et aereeee '
Tenet ...ccocvrvcnenanee 371 261 206
Other CUSEOMETS........oeciceieiiiririt sttt i e tces s e s 117 79 49
: 9,490 8,915 8,471
Intercompany elimiNAtions ...........ouvuurveereeenreresnessnnresrsissnssssnssserssescsssnessennes (371 (261) (206)
Total........... ettt et ettt ettt $ 9119 $ 8654 $ 8265
Adjusted EBITDA:
Hospital Operations and OtheT.............oovoveceerernesrreeiereeessessssesas e msassesssseens $ 1,098 $ 1,083 $ 1,021
COMITRT ettt e s s bs b e et e ae s 105 43 15
TOUAD ... ..ot et e $ 1,203 $ 1,126 $ 1,036
Depreciation and amortization:
Hospital Operations and other.......... et ab e r e aa e s $ 420 $ 389 $ 372
COMILEE 1vvvuvvvnseressessaesstsssessssan s esrsssssasosss s sesasssssnsssessssesssensssesassstonsessensssonns 10 9 8
TOUAL .....ooocooooe e ettt ot $§ 430 $ 398 $ 38
Adjusted EBITDA ..........c.oooviiiiieeiceeercnec vt incese i cenesnnies $ 1,203 $ 1,126 $ 1,036
Depreciation and amortization.. (430) (398) (380)
Interest EXPEnse .....c.coveveurermrremerenceerenennnas 412) 375) (424)
Loss from early extinguishment of debt .........cccvevreereecirnecricrinieenrinncnenn. ) (117) 67
Litigation and IVeStiZation COSLS ..........coerrrccireciinmirenenceeteeresennietserssnssescnnes ) (55) (12)
Impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill, and restructuring .
CRATEES, NEL ...ovrcriireecrencree ittt s sese s st seensesasessneneasbensnansen s (19) (20) (10)
INVESHMENE CAITUNES. cvvavvereesresncssreseasisnniansrsssssensssnssesssssssnssanscossssnssoreeeeneneeeen 1 3 5
Tncome before income taxes ......... R SR § 34 $ 164 § 138

Due to the fact that Conifer’s revenues from providing services to Tenet’s hospitals are based on estimated third-party billing
terms in 2012 but not in 2011 or 2010, the following supplemental table presents 2012 Adjusted EBITDA on a comparable
basis to the 2011 and 2010 presentation.

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Adjusted supplemental EBITDA:
Hospital Operations and other..........ccoe.eronirieiceentrinnnsecssesesesesessessnseeaaans $ L167 $ 1,083 $ 1,021
Conifer .- 36 43 15
TOLRL ..ottt stetes e s s ca s bt st $ 1,203 $ 1,126 $ 1,036

NOTE 21. RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Changes in Accounting Principle

Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted ASU 2010-24, “Health Care Entities (Topic 954): Presentation of Insurance
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries,” which clarifies that a health care entity should not net insurance recoveries against a

related claim liability. The adoption had no impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted ASU 2010-23, “Health Care Entities {Topic 954): Measuring Charity Care for
Disclosure,” which prescribes a specific measurement basis of charity care for disclosure. The adoption had no impact on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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Effective December 31, 2011, we adopted ASU 2011-07, “Health Care Entities (Topic 954): Presentation and Disclosure
of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities,”
which requires health care entities to present the provision for doubtful accounts relating to patient service revenue as a deduction
from patient service revenue in the statement of operations rather than as an operating expense. Additional disclosures relating to
sources of patient revenue and the allowance for doubtful accounts related to patient accounts receivable are also required. Such
additional disclosures are included in Notes 1 and 3. The adoption of this ASU had no impact on our financial condition, results of

operations or cash flows.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2012-02, “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other
(Topic 350): Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment,” which permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors
to determine whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining
whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test as described in Topic 350. The guidance provided in the ASU
is effective for annual and interim impairment testing performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. The adoption
of this standard is not expected to have any impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 22. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Issuance of New Notes; Repurchase of Outstanding Notes

In February 2013, we sold $850 million aggregate principal amount of 4'4% senior secured notes, which will mature on
April, 1 2021, We will pay interest on the 4/4% senior secured notes semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 of each
year, commencing on October 1, 2013. We used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the notes to purchase approximately
$645 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of our 10% senior secured notes due 2018 in a tender offer and to call
approximately $69 million of the remaining aggregate principal amount outstanding of those notes. In connection with the
purchase, we expect to record a loss from early extinguishment of debt of approximately $179 million primarily related to the
difference between the purchase prices and the par values of the purchased notes, as well as the write-off of unamortized note
discounts and issuance costs. The remaining net proceeds will be used for purchases of our other outstanding senior secured notes
through public or privately negotiated transactions and for general corporate purposes, including strategic acquisitions and the
repayment of indebtedness and drawings under our senior secured revolving credit facility.
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Téenet

‘Daniel Cancelini

Chief Financial Officer

Tel: 469-893-2246

Fax: 469-893-3246

danie) cancelmif@tenethealth.co

Fuly 10, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery
1llinois Health Facilities

And Services Review Board
5325 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL. 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

On June 24, 2013, Vanguard Health Systems, Inc. (“Vanguard™) entered into an Agreement and Plan of
Merger to sell 100% of its stock (by way of merger) to Tenet Healthcare Corporation (“Tenet”). Both
Vanguard and Tenet are publicly traded companies. The shares of both companies are traded on the New
York Stock Exchange.

Vanguard through its wholly owned subsidiaries has an ownership interest in each of the followmg [linois~
hospitals (“Illinois Hospitals™):

VHS - West Suburban Medical Center
VHS - Westlake Hospital

VHS - MacNeal Hospital

VHS - Weiss Memorial Hospital

In accordance with the requirements of Review Criteria 1120.120 and 1120.130, and as represented in the
respective Certificate of Need Apphcatlons for each hospital, Tenet confirms it will fund all project capital
expenditures (i.e., the imputed purchase price attributable to the Illinois Hospitals) entirely through
available/internal resources {cash and cash equivaients), the availability of which is documented, as provided
under Review Criterion.1120.130,.in. Tenet’s most recent audited financial statements, which are on file with.
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. These financial resources as shown in the most recent audited
financial statements are in excess of the amount necessary to fund the imputed cash purchase price attributed
to the Illinois hospitals. Tenet will maintain sufficient available financial resources to fund the imputed cash
purchase price attributed to the Illinois Hospitals and will use these resources to complete such acquisition.

g,
o *"04{'3, KATHLEEN M. KENNEDY
T s Notary Public, State of Texas
“-. ,32-*: My Commission Expiy,
RS
RiEA September 30, 20)s

Chlef Financial Officer
Notarized: “fY 77 s fhdgt /0] - ALy %%
Tenet Healthcare Corporation « Headquarters %e .

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1400  Dallas, TX 75202 = tenetheaith.com 7
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 139036 s Dallas, TX 75313-9036 vf C‘%N[ENT 42
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After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant/Coapplicant identification including Certificate of Good
Standing 24
2 | Site Ownership 27
3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be
identified with the % of ownership. 29
4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of
Good Standing Etc. 30
5 | Flood Plain Requirements '
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements -
7 | Project and Sources of Funds Itemization 31
8 | Obligation Document if required
9 | Cost Space Requirements
10 | Discontinuation :
11 | Background of the Applicant 32
12 | Purpose of the Project 37
13 | Alternatives to the Project 39

14 | Size of the Project

15 | Project Service Utilization

16 | Unfinished or Shell Space

17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space
18 | Master Design Project

19 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions 40

Service Specific:

20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU

21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

22 | Acute Mental lliness

23 | Neonatal Intensive Care

24 | Open Heart Surgery

25 | Cardiac Catheterization

26 | In-Center Hemodialysis

27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

28 | General Long Term Care

29 | Specialized Long Term Care

30 | Selected Organ Transplantation

31 | Kidney Transplantation

32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

34 | Children’s Community-Based Health Care Center
35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital

37 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

Financial and Economic Feasibility:
39 | Availability of Funds 124
40 | Financial Waiver -

41 | Financial Viability

42 | Economic Feasibility ) 164
43 | Safety Net Impact Statement
44 | Charity Care Information 20
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